
Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 

 
Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

AGENDA 
 

2022/23-20 
 

       Allotted Time 
4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (Sacramento County Superior Court case No. 2:19-cv-01768-DAD-
KJN) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 

 
           3.4       Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 
                        a) Principal, Crocker/Riverside 
 
 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

2 

 
3.4 Government Code 54956.8-Conference with Real Property Negotiators 

Property: 3200, 3301 37th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824 
 Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 
Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and La Familia 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 

 
6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement  
 
4.3 Stellar Student introduced by Board Member Lavinia Grace Phillips 

 
6:35 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
6:40 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

6:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                            15 minutes 
 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the District’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; 
or (3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall 
be no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please 
fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are 
received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no 
more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the 
Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a 
matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

 
 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  

 
7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

8.1 National Eating Disorder Awareness  
           Resolution No. 3307 (Victoria Flores) 

 
 

 
           8.2      Building Academic Office Coherence to Support Student 
                     Achievement (Yvonne Wright) 
 
 
 
           8.3      Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update  
                    (Rose Ramos) 

 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

5 minute discussion 
 

 
Information 

15 minute presentation 
            20 minute discussion 

 
 
                 
                Information 

30 minute presentation 
20 minute discussion 

 
 
 
 
 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

3 

 
 
 

8:35 p.m. 
 

9.0 BOARD WORKSHOPS/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

 
 
 
8:37 p.m. 

9.1     SEIU Sunshine Proposal (Pam Manwiller) 
 

 
10.0 BOARD WORKSHOPS/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER 

INITIATIVES 
 
 
            10.1    District SCTA Sunshine Proposal (Pam Manwiller) 

Information  
2 minutes 

 
 

  
 
 Public Hearing/Action 

2 minute presentation 
10 minute discussion 

 
8:49 p.m. 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                    Action 

2 minutes 
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
11.1   Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 

 
11.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 

Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose Ramos) 
 
11.1b Approve Business and Financial Report, Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers issued for the Period of January 1-31 (Rose Ramos) 
 

11.1c Approve Donations to the District for the Period of January 1-31, 2023 
 (Rose Ramos) 

 
11.1d Approve Update of Board Policy Titles and Numbers (Lisa Allen) 

 
11.1e  Approve Board Policy 6142.6- Visual Performing Arts Education (Charles 

Deangelus) 
 
11.1f  Approve Minutes for the February 2, 2023, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1g  Approve C.K. McClatchy Portugal and Spain Field Trip April 1-8, 2023 (Lisa 

Allen and Vanessa Buitrago) 
 
11.1h  Approve C.K. McClatchy New York City Field Trip April 2-7, 2023 ( Lisa Allen 

and Vanessa Buitrago) 
 
11.1i  Approve John F. Kennedy field trip to Washington, D.C. May 1-5, 2023 (Lisa Allen 

and Tuan Doung) 
 
11.1j  Approve Minutes for the August 11, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

4 

 
11.1k  Approve Minutes for the September 8, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1l  Approve Minutes for the September 15, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1m  Approve Minutes for the October 6, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

11.1n  Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 

 
8:51 p.m. 12.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information 

      12.1 Business and Financial Information: 
Enrollment Report-Month 4, Ending Friday, December 16,2022 and P.O. Board Report 
Period of December 15,2022 through January 14, 2023 (Rose Ramos) 

 
       12.2 Head Start/Early Head Start Required Reports 

 
 

8:53 p.m. 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 March 2, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Board Meeting 
 

 March 16, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Board Meeting 
 

 
8:55 p.m. 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 
  

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 8.1 

Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3307:  Recognition of National Eating Disorders 

Awareness Week February 27 – March 5, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3250 recognizing National Eating 
Disorders Awareness Week (February 27 - February 27, 2022) 
 
Background/Rationale:  National Eating Disorders Awareness Week (NEDAwareness 
Week) is an annual campaign to educate the public about the realities of eating 
disorders and to provide hope, support, and visibility to individuals and families affected 
by eating disorders. NEDAwareness Week 2023 will take place during the week of 
February 27 – March 5, 2023 with the theme “It’s Time for Change”.   
 
According to the National Association of Anorexia Nervosa and Associated Disorders, 
over twenty million girls and women and ten million boys and men across the country 
suffer from clinically significant eating disorders at some point in their lives. Eating 
disorders affect persons of every race, color, gender, and socioeconomic category and 
are increasing among people in younger age groups.  The best-known environmental 
contributor to the development of eating disorders is the sociocultural idealization of 
thinness. Concerns about weight start as young as 6 years of age and persist 
throughout life.  Over one-half of teenage girls and nearly one-third of teenage boys use 
unhealthy weight control behaviors. At this time, eating disorders have the highest 
mortality rate of any mental illness.  Effective prevention of eating orders is needed.  
Prevention focuses on learning how to live healthy lifestyles, challenging society’s 
misleading messages about beauty, developing realistic expectations of self and body 
image, and accepting one’s physical characteristics.   
 
Financial Considerations:  CARES/ESSER funding 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy, and Engaged Students; Family and 
Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Resolution No. 3307 



Page 2 of 2 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 minutes 
Submitted by:  Victoria Flores, Executive Director Student Support 

& Health Services 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3307  

 
“Recognition of National Eating Disorders Awareness Week, February 27 – March 5, 2023” 

 
WHEREAS, the week of February 27 – March 5, 2023 is designated as National Eating 

Disorders Awareness Week “It’s Time for Change” dedicated to raising awareness of eating disorders 
and how with early detection, intervention, and awareness, we can make a positive difference; and 
 

WHEREAS, according to the National Association of Anorexia Nervosa and Associated 
Disorders, 28.8 million Americans will have a clinically significant eating disorder at some time in 
their life.  Eating disorders are among the deadliest mental illnesses, second only to opioid overdose. 
Studies find that 40-70% of individuals with eating disorders also experience symptoms of depression, 
anxiety or other mood disorders.  About 26% of people with eating disorders attempt suicide: and 
 

WHEREAS, eating disorders affect persons of every age, race, size, gender identity, sexual 
orientation, and socioeconomic background and are increasing among people in younger age groups.  
Concerns about weight start as young as 6 years of age and persist throughout life.  Over one-half of 
teenage girls and nearly one-third of teenage boys use unhealthy weight control behaviors, such as 
such as skipping meals, fasting, smoking cigarettes, vomiting, and taking laxatives: and 

 
WHEREAS, media pressures and genetic, social, and familial factors are all known to be 

related to eating disorders; and, while eating disorders are treatable when diagnosed early, they are 
often misunderstood and stigmatized, and pose a public health challenge that must be addressed to the 
fullest extent; and 

 
WHEREAS, eating disorders can profoundly affect a child’s ability to learn. Eating disorders 

may cause students to feel irritable, decrease ability to concentrate, focus, listen and process 
information.  Students with eating disorders may have deficiencies in specific nutrients, which has an 
immediate effect on students’ memory and ability to concentrate.  Students may become less active 
and more apathetic, withdrawn, and engage in fewer social interactions.  Eating disorders may impair 
the immune system and make students more vulnerable to illnesses, leading to increased absenteeism 
in school.  A students’ cognitive function will also be affected by the mental disorders that often 
coexist with an eating disorder, including anxiety, depression, and obsessive-compulsive disorder.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sacramento City Unified School District 

Board of Education recognizes the importance of supporting the health and well-being of students and 
has undertaken efforts, leveraging COVID funds, to expand social-emotional and mental health 
staffing to address the social, emotional and physical health needs of our students, to raise mental & 
physical health awareness, and to provide support and resources to students experiencing health 
challenges and their families.  
 

 
 
 
 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 16th day of February 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
         
ATTESTED TO: 
 
______________________________________      ______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar                                      Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                President of the Board of Education 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION  

 
Agenda Item _8.2 

 
Meeting Date:  February 2, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Building Academic Office Coherence to Support Student Achievement 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Academic Office 
 
Recommendation: NA   
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
SCUSD’s achievement data reveals significant challenges and persistent performance and 
opportunity gaps across every indicator on the CA School Dashboard, particularly for student 
groups who are historically under-served. The Academic Office, with its various departments 
including, PreK-Adult Education Schools, Curriculum and Instruction, Special Education, 
Multilingual Education, Adult Education, and Early Learning and Care, is pivotal in providing the 
necessary supports to school sites that can change these student outcomes. The successful 
deployment of services requires a concerted effort by staff to build system coherence. The 
Academic Office is working to build coherence through a laser focus on the district’s strategic 
priorities, intentional collaboration within the Academic Office as well as across other 
offices/departments in the organization, and the use of disciplined inquiry and data use to learn 
and improve.  
 
Financial Considerations:  NA 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 1: College Career Readiness 

Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for 
ALL students  
Goal 3: Integrated Supports 
Goal 4: Culture and Climate – Dismatling Systems 
Goal 6: Implementation of MTSS/Data-Based Decision Making 
Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide Operations/Supports  
Goal 9: Focus on Students with Disabilities 
Goal 10: Focus on Homeless Youth 
Goal 11: Focus on Foster Youth 

 
Documents Attached: NA 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  15 min 

Submitted by:  Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer 

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 8.3 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facility Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Receive update on the Facilities Master Plan’s implementation since 
initially approved by the Board of Education in October 2021. 
 
Background/Rationale:  A Facilities Master Plan (FMP) is a collection of data that serves as a 
basis for planning future facilities improvements, providing a rationale to the school community 
and public for the use of capital project funds. The data most readily utilized in traditional master 
plans is current facilities condition and enrollment or capacity trends in district facilities. 
Unfortunately, this can lead to the prioritization of capital improvement funds being spent in 
affluent neighborhoods that have enrollment growth while historically marginalized 
neighborhoods witness continued disinvestment. 
 
The Sacramento City Board of Education witnessed previous capital project dollars that were 
spent inequitably and directed staff to develop “a clear system of accountability to the public 
including…the development of internal District equity indices to help identify funding priorities 
based on level of need” (Board Resolution 3113, 2019). This created an equity framework to 
prioritize capital projects in marginalized neighborhoods.   
 
The Board passed the equity-based Facilities Master Plan in October 2021 that called for the 
funding of major modernizations in neighborhoods that had been previously overlooked. This 
Board presentation provides the Board and community an update on how the Facilities Master 
Plan has been used over the first 16 months of implementation to address previous inequities in 
capital project funding. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The District’s Facilities Master Plan (FMP) provides the 
assessments, educational planning assessment, vision, and criteria to develop the capital 
project priority list. 



Page 2 of 2 

 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally 
Healthy and Engaged Students; Family and Community Engagement; Operational 
Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Executive Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 30 minutes 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

  Nathaniel Browning, Director I of Facilities 

  Chris Ralston, Director III of Facilities  

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update 
February 16, 2023  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services 1 

 
I. Overview/History of Department or Program:  
The SCUSD Facilities Master Plan (FMP) was approved by the Board in October 2021 and includes a 
comprehensive set of data used to prioritize capital improvement projects, including Measure H 
general obligation bonds. During the March 2020 election, Sacramento City USD voters approved 
Measure H, the District’s $750 million bond proposal, to provide safe, environmentally adaptable, 
modern schools and playfields through an equitable framework.   
 
The District’s FMP website remains available to the public and can be found at https://scusd-
fmp.webflow.io/.  
 
Board Resolution 3113 (2019) calling for the Measure H campaign required “a clear system of 
accountability to the public including…the development of internal District equity indices to help 
identify funding priorities based on level of need.” Furthermore, the FMP Community Steering 
Committee—consisting of community members, academics, and staff—developed Four Principles to 
continue to guide the work of Facilities staff throughout the FMP development and implementation 
processes. Those Four Principles were developed to effectively “confront and interrupt inequities that 
exist” and to begin to “level the playing field” in ways that are consistent with the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan’s (LCAP) guiding principle to “improve outcomes for all students and close the 
significant performance gaps between student groups.” Those Four Principles include: 

1. Ensure that the voices of students, parents, and community members – all of whom have 
informed insights and knowledge – inform District planning. 

2. Utilize student, neighborhood, and school site demographic data, as enrollment numbers. 
3. Closely align the goals of the LCAP, which has been collectively developed with parents, 

students, and community members, with facilities priorities in ways that in turn prioritize the 
same student groups as identified in the LCAP. 

4. Be visionary as well as practical (e.g., fully implement even modest projects, set baseline 
standards for all schools, and account for long-term maintenance and operations).  
 

The FMP itself consists of the following four components: 
1. Campus assessments. 
2. Educational specifications outlined by the District’s “educational petals.” 
3. Equity index based on student populations identified within the Local Control and 

Accountability Plan (LCAP) and neighborhood opportunity indicators. 
4. Project Priority Methodology that outlines two types of construction project categories: 

Type A and Type B. 
 
Campus Assessments 
Campus assessments identified facility deficiencies in areas of safety, elements not meeting 
accessibility requirements, additional elements within the learning environment that may be 
improved, and the identification of potential energy upgrades. Each facility was objectively 
measured by its Facilities Condition Index (FCI), the FCI is the projected cost of deferred 
maintenance for the next ten years divided by the current replacement value of the facility. 
 

 

https://scusd-fmp.webflow.io/
https://scusd-fmp.webflow.io/


Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update 
February 16, 2023  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services 2 

Six Educational Petals 
The six “educational petals” are research-based recommendations for facility improvements. The 
petals include the following categories:  

1) Learning Environments,  
2) Safety and Security,  
3) Inquiry and Experiential Learning,  
4) Individualized Support,  
5) Fitness and Athletics, and  
6) Dining and Nutrition.    

 
Equity Index 
An additional unique component of SCUSD’s plan is the “equity index,” a data-informed tool to 
identify Type B projects.  The equity index utilized data from the District’s LCAP as well and 
neighborhood data, which allowed staff to identify schools in historically marginalized communities 
and schools with a high proportion of student groups identified within the District’s LCAP. The FMP, 
due to the equity index component, was recognized by the Coalition of School Housing (CASH), 
receiving its highest honor, the Leroy Greene Memorial award.   
 
Project Type A and Type B 
Two project types were defined in the master plan; Type A projects and Type B projects. Type A 
projects would address deferred maintenance and liability issues at individual school sites. Type B 
projects, which were identified as the “vision” projects.  Vision projects include design features 
outlined by the six educational petals that will lead to improved learning outcomes. Type B projects 
are envisioned to replace an existing school with new construction, or significantly renovate an 
existing school. 
 
Four Principles Developed by the Core Planning Group 
The Core Planning Group that participated in the facilities master planning process developed Four 
Principles to guide the work of Facilities staff throughout the development and implementation 
process. These Four Principles were developed to effectively “confront and interrupt inequities that 
exist” and to begin to “level the playing field” in ways that are consistent with the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan’s (LCAP) guiding principle to “improve outcomes for all students and close the 
significant performance gaps between student groups,” 
 
Current FMP Projects 
At this time, the District is designing the first three (Type B) vision projects. All three projects are 
elementary schools, have a high concentration of LCAP target student groups, and all are in 
neighborhoods that are classified as High Segregation & Poverty by the Berkeley TCAC Opportunity 
Index.  The three initial Type B projects include: 

• Edward Kemble/Cesar Chavez Elementary Schools (both elementary schools share a single 
property and are considered one project). 

• Nicholas Elementary School 
• Oak Ridge Elementary School 

 

https://belonging.berkeley.edu/2021-tcac-opportunity-map
https://belonging.berkeley.edu/2021-tcac-opportunity-map


Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update 
February 16, 2023  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services 3 

Edward Kemble Elementary/Cesar Chavez Intermediate statistics 
• LCAP target students  

o Edward Kemble  
 Ranked 24 for concentration of LCAP target students out of 80 schools (including 

independent charters). 
 39% English Learners (EL); 96% Black, Indigenous, and People of Color (BIPOC); 

10% Special Education (SpEd). 
o Cesar Chavez 

 Ranked 5 for concentration of LCAP target students out of 80 schools (including 
independent charters). 

 25% EL; 97% BIPOC; 16% SpEd. 
• Located within a neighborhood classified at High Segregation & Poverty by the Berkeley 

Opportunity Index. 
• Edward Kemble is partially meeting one of the six education petals. 
• Cesar Chavez is meeting or partially meeting two of the six educational petals. 
• Other criteria considered when selecting this project: 

o Edward Kemble Elementary (grades tK-3) and Cesar Chavez Intermediate (grades 4-6) are 
two separate schools located on one property that is about 10 acres in size. The site 
initially only housed Edward Kemble Elementary until the early 2000s when Cesar Chavez, 
an all portable site, was built over a summer to help house a drastic increase in students 
within the neighborhood. The entire site currently houses about 900 students.  The Cesar 
Chavez playground primarily consists of a blacktop with no play structures and very little 
grass field areas. 

Nicholas Elementary Statistics 
• Ranked 4 for concentration of LCAP target students out of 80 schools (including independent 

charters). 
• 34% EL; 98% BIPOC; 9% SpEd. 
• Located within a neighborhood classified at High Segregation & Poverty by the Berkeley 

Opportunity Index. 
• Partially meeting three of the six education petals. 
• Other criteria considered when selecting this project: 

o Nicholas Elementary has the third worst Facilities Condition when compared to all other 
sites. The current facility sites directly under high-voltage power lines that would not be 
acceptable to build under with today’s code requirements. 

 
 
 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update 
February 16, 2023  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services 4 

Oak Ridge Elementary Statistics 
• Ranked 18 for concentration of LCAP target students out of 80 schools (including independent 

charters). 
• 30% EL; 97% BIPOC; 9% SpEd. 
• Located within a neighborhood classified at High Segregation & Poverty by the Berkeley 

Opportunity Index. 
• Meeting or partially meeting three of the six education petals. 
• Other criteria considered when selecting this project: 

o Oak Ridge is located right off of the MLK Blvd, which creates a very unsafe environment 
for students, staff, and parents. The site also consists of a large number of old portable 
buildings. 

 
II. Driving Governance:   
Board Policy 7110 requires the District to maintain a facilities master plan, including priorities and funding 
needs. 
Board Resolution 3113 outlines allowable bond projects under Measure H.  It calls for “a clear system of 
accountability to the public including…the development of internal District equity indices to help identify 
funding priorities based on level of need.” 
 
 
III. Budget:   
The Facilities Master Plan will help the District prioritize capital improvement projects. Specific project 
budgets will be shared in future Board presentations as additional projects are identified. 
 
 
IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:   
To provide safe, environmentally adaptable, modern schools and playfields. 
 
 
V. Major Initiatives:  
The award-winning FMP includes Facilities Condition Assessments and an equity index to identify 
funding priorities. The equity index includes demographic data from District neighborhoods and student 
data from the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). These three components drive how projects 
are identified within the District’s capital projects planning. 
 
 
VI. Results:   
The design of the FMP and the Four Principles developed by the District’s Steering Committee 
provide a robust rubric for staff as they implement capital projects within the District. Staff is 
committed to creating an authentic engagement with families, students, and neighborhood leaders 
in the design of these projects. 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update 
February 16, 2023  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services 5 

Community meetings that have taken place at each of the three sites include: 
• Edward Kemble Elementary/Cesar Chavez Intermediate 

o August 20, 2022 Community Fair booth 
o September 21, 2022 Back-to-School night and free taco truck 
o September 22, 2022 lunch recess visit and discussion with students 
o September 29, 2022 Construction Town Hall (offered twice that evening) 
o October 20, 2022 Edward Kemble teacher collaboration time presentation 
o November 3, 2022 Cesar Chavez teacher collaboration time presentation 

• Nicholas Elementary  
o September 16, 2022 Community Coffee Chat 
o September 21, 2022 Back-to-School night and free taco truck 
o October 3, 2022 lunch recess visit and discussion with students 
o October 3, 2022 Construction Town Hall (offered twice that evening) 

• Oak Ridge Elementary 
o September 8, 2022 Community Coffee Chat 
o September 14, 2022 Back-to-School night and free taco truck 
o October 4, 2022 Construction Town Hall (offered twice that evening) 
o October 6, 2022 lunch recess visit and discussion with students 
o December 1, 2022 teacher collaboration time presentation 

 
VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:   
 
Architects are currently developing plans for the three projects (Edward Kemble Elementary/Cesar 
Chavez Intermediate, Nicholas Elementary and Oak Ridge Elementary. The three projects are expected 
to kick off construction during the summer of 2023 and to be completed by the start of the 2025 school 
year. 
 
Facilities staff will begin reengaging students, families, and the community over the next few months to 
gather input on student interim housing and busing accommodations during construction, share best 
practices in school site safety planning that will be incorporated into the new projects, and to begin 
gathering input on final design and finish elements for each school site. Staff had success this past fall 
2022 in hosting community engagement sessions at back-to-school nights. Those efforts will be 
replicated going into a second round of community engagement sessions in the coming weeks. 
 
Driving community participation is mission critical to current and future projects.  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _9.1_ 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resource Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Receive Service Employee International Union (SEIU) Sunshine 
Letter for Reopener Negotiations for 2022-2023 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Under the Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA), 
the District and employee organizations shall publicly present their initial proposals 
related to collective bargaining, which shall thereafter be public records (Government 
Code § 3547).  
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Sunshine Letter 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 2 minutes 

Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
Page 1 of 1 

Subject:  Receive Service Employee International Union (SEIU) 
                Sunshine Letter for Reopener Negotiations for 2022-2023 



 

VIA EMAIL  

February 10, 2023 

 

Jorge Aguilar 

Superintendent 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

 

Re: Sunshine Letter for Reopener Negotiations for 2022-2023 

 

Dear Superintendent Aguilar, 

In accordance with the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between the Service Employees Union (SEIU), Local 

1021 (SEIU Local 1021) and Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) for the year 2022-2023 requests to 

initiate reopener negotiations.  

 

SEIU Local 1021 opens Article 16, Safety, in addition to Article 6, Compensation that is mutually agreed upon 

between the parties pursuant to the July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023 CBA between the parties. 

 

Please sunshine this letter per our request at the upcoming School Board meeting. 

 

Please contact Kaden Kratzer and me at your earliest convenience at arrange mutually suitable negotiating date(s), 

time(s) and place(s). Kaden Kratzer can be reached at (415) 717-9153. I can be reached at (510) 424-1666. We can 

also be reached via email. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Hari Subramanian 
Hari Subramanian  

 

Kaden Kratzer, Director, Education, SEIU Local 1021 

SEIU Local 1021 SCUSD Bargaining Team 

File  



{SR794340} 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item 10.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
Subject:   Consideration and Public Notice of the District’s Initial Proposal for 

Reopener Negotiations with the Sacramento City Teachers 
Association for the 2022-2023 school year. 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Labor Relations 
 
 
Recommendation:  Consider and adopt the District’s initial proposal for reopener 
negotiations with SCTA for the 2022-2023 school year. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Under the Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA), 
the District and employee organizations shall publicly present their initial proposals 
related to collective bargaining.  The purpose of this item is to provide public notice of 
the District’s initial proposal for these reopener negotiations.  After the public has had an 
opportunity to review and provide comment, the Board of Education adopts the initial 
proposal. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy 
and Engaged Students and Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   

1. Public Hearing Notice 
2. District’s Initial Proposal 

 



{SR794340} 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 2 minutes 
Submitted by:  Pam Manwiller, Chief Negotiator  
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar 

 
Page 1 of 1 



Sacramento City Unified School District 
Consideration and Public Notice of the District’s Initial Proposal for Reopener Negotiations with 

the Sacramento City Teachers Association for the 2022-2023 school year. 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

The Sacramento City Unified School District hereby gives notice that a  
Public Hearing will be held as follows: 

 
 

Topic of Hearing: 
 

Consideration and Public Notice of the District’s Initial Proposal for Reopener 
Negotiations with the Sacramento City Teachers Association for the 2022-2023 
school year. 

 
Copies of this program may be inspected at: 

 
Serna Educational Center 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 
HEARING DATE:  Thursday, February 16, 2023 
 
TIME:  6:30 p.m. 
 
LOCATION:  Serna Educational Center 
                       5735 47th Avenue 
                       Sacramento, CA 95824 
 
 
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONTACT:  SCUSD Legal Services (916) 643-9034 

  
 



{SR794387} 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
February 16, 2022 

SUNSHINING OF DISTRICT’S INITIAL PROPOSAL TO THE SACRAMENTO CITY 
TEACHERS ASSOCIATION FOR 2022-2023 REOPENER NEGOTIATIONS 

The current master agreement for the employee bargaining unit represented by the Sacramento City 
Teachers Association (“SCTA”) provides for reopener negotiations for the 2022-2023 school year.  
That Agreement provides for reopeners on salary and one additional article selected by the District and 
one additional article selected by SCTA, for the period of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.  A copy of 
the agreement is available for viewing on the District’s web site at https://www.scusd.edu/collective-
bargaining-and-contracts.  

Pursuant to Government Code section 3547, the District’s initial bargaining proposal for these reopener 
negotiations are required to be presented at a public meeting where members of the public may 
comment prior to commencing negotiations.  The District’s initial proposal for 2022-2023 reopener 
negotiations is presented to the Board of Education (“Board”) for a public reading at this public 
meeting. The District’s initial proposal is also now presented to the Board at this public meeting on for 
final approval and “sunshining.”  

The below initial proposal seeks to negotiate in good faith additions and changes to the collective 
bargaining agreement that continue to provide an efficiently operating school district and provide fair 
and competitive compensation to SCTA unit members, while at the same time ensuring the fiscally 
sustainable operation of the District in the short and long term.   

ACTION BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION AS FOLLOWS: 

The Board hereby presents the District’s initial proposal for public comment, and thereafter adopts the 
following initial proposal for a 2022-2023 reopener negotiations.  It is the Board’s intent that the District 
work collaboratively with SCTA’s negotiations team to reach a fair and equitable agreement that protects 
the interests of students, parents/guardians, unit members, and the District, while ensuring the fiscally 
sustainable operations of the District.  The following articles are subject to proposed amendments and 
modifications to identify efficiencies and areas of improvement, to maintain competitive total 
compensation and support the District’s fiscal solvency. 

 

ARTICLE 8: TRANSFERS 

ARTICLE 12:  COMPENSATION  

 

 

 

https://www.scusd.edu/collective-bargaining-and-contracts
https://www.scusd.edu/collective-bargaining-and-contracts


{SR794387} 

 

 

APPROVED: ______ 

AYES: ______ 

NOES: ______ 

ABSTAIN: ______ 

ABSENT: _______ 

Action was taken to adopt this District Initial Proposal for 2022-2023 reopener negotiations with SCTA 
on February 16, 2023. 

 

___________________________________  

Jorge A. Aguilar 
Superintendent 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 11.1a 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 
2. Expenditure and Other Agreements 
3. Recommended Bid Awards – Facilities Projects 
4. Change Notices – Facilities Projects 
5. Notices of Completion – Facilities Projects 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 

  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent



 Page 1 of 3  

GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS – REVENUE 

Contractor New Grant   Amount 

DEPARTMENT 

City of Elk Grove 
A23-00060 

☒  Yes 
☐  No  

Up to $304,261.74 
 

02/02/23 – 01/31/25:  The City of Elk Grove, a municipal corporation (“City”),  has awarded a contract 
to Sacramento City Unified School District, a California school district (“Service Provider”) for services 
provided ON REFERRAL by Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center (CAJ) Regional 
Manufacturing Training Center (RMTC) as the responsive responsible Service Provider who best 
meets the City’s needs by demonstrating the competence and qualifications necessary for the 
satisfactory performance of the required service of providing manufacturing training to Elk Grove 
Residents who are unemployed or underemployed as a result of COVID-19.  Under the grant award, 
SCUSD CAJ RMTC and employment partner Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance (SVMA) 
(as subcontractor) will collaborate and perform on the objectives of the Elk Grove City 
Workforce Development Training and Certification Program to train, upskill, and place referred Elk 
Grove residents in the key growth industry of manufacturing.   As a regional service provider, the CAJ 
RMTC also serves Elk Grove Residents for career and education services 
 

 

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 

Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description 
 

Amount 
 

BUSINESS SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Kami Kalay 
SA23-00043 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

Amendment No. 1 to increase the 2022/23 contract by 
$180,000 in order to provide additional financial consulting.  
Financial consulting related to COVID relief funds, setting 
up budgets, reconciling budget items and financial 
reporting during fiscal year 2022-2023. 

Original Contract 
Amount: 
$98,000 

ESSER III Funds 
 

Requested 
Increase: 
$100,000 

ESSER III Funds 
 

New Contract 
Amount: 

$198,000 
ESSER III Funds 

   
  



 Page 2 of 3  

   
SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Care Inc. 
S23-00014 
 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

Amendment No. 1 to increase the September 20, 2022 
contract by $215,000 for the purpose of providing special 
education and/or related services to LEA students with 
exceptional needs under the authorization of California 
Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. 
and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 
3000 et seq., AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and 
AB 1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). 
 

Original Contract 
Amount:  
$90,000 
Special 

Education Funds 
 

Requested 
Increase: 
$215,000 

Special 
Education Funds 

 
Total Contract 

Amount: 
$305,000 

Special 
Education Funds 

 
   
Unrestricted Funds 

 

 

Contractor Description Amount 

TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
 
Bluum USA Inc. 
R23-03241 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 
 
Purchasing thru 
National Cooperative 
Purchasing Alliance 
Contract No. 01-150 

The District will provide new 1:1 devices to all 4th and 9th 
graders and replace broken and non-supported devices. 
Chromebooks will be used to fill classroom carts for the K-
3 students. 
 
 

Original Contract 
Amount: 

$1,663,625 
Measure H 

Funds 

 
 

  

ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL DEPARTMENT 
 
Margarita Maldonado 
SA23-00118 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

Amendment No. 1 to increase the January 31, 2022 
contract by $87,500 and extend the contract from October 
24, 2022 to June 30, 2023, in order.to provide support in 
the area of labor relations, including drafting proposals and 
collecting, reviewing and analyzing data. 
 

Original Contract 
Amount: 
$82,500 

General Funds 
 

Requested 
Increase: 
$87,500 

General Funds 
 

New Total 
Amount: 

$170,000 
General Funds 

   



 Page 3 of 3  

 
RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – FACILITIES PROJECTS 

Bid No:    CB Wire Deferred Maintenance (Site Preparation for Interim Housing)  
Prepare the site for interim housing for Nicholas students for the school years 
23-24 and 24-25 while Nicholas undergoes modernization and construction.  
The work will include replacing carpet, provide for internal/external painting, 
repair restrooms and offices, asphalt repair, and minor landscape. 

 
Bids received: January 26, 2023 

Recommendation: Award to Otto Construction 

Funding Source:  Measure H 

 
BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION AMOUNT 
   
Otto Construction Sacramento, CA $2,832,000 
AM Stephens Lodi, CA $2,876,000 
Joe’s Landscaping Newman, CA $3,470,000 
   

 

CHANGE NOTICES – FACILITIES PROJECTS 
The following change notice is submitted for approval. 

Project: Bret Harte Playground  
 
Recommendation: Approve increase contract to Studio W Architects Architectural.  The 

agreement was awarded on November 15, 2022 for $88,562. 
 
 Original Contract Amount: $88,562, funding source is GO Bond Measure Q 
 
 Approve Change Order No. 1: $29,340, to reimburse Studio W Architects for 

Division of State Architect (DSA) Access Compliance, Fire and Life Safety and 
Structural Safety Startup Fees.  The District was not able to directly process 
the payment to DSA by the deadline and Studio W Architects paid this fee on 
behalf of the District.  The funding source is GO Bond Measure Q.  This 
change does not represent an overall increase to the project budget. 

  
 Original Contract           $88,562 
 Requested Increase      $29,340 
 New Contract Amount: $117,902, funding source is GO Bond Measure Q 
 
 
NOTICES OF COMPLETION – FACILITIES PROJECTS 

Contract work is complete and Notices of Completion may be executed. 

Contractor Project Completion Date 
   
MCM Roofing American Legion Roof Replacement 1/20/23 
   

 

 



 

 

CITY OF ELK GROVE 

 

 

 

SERVICE PROVIDER CONTRACT FOR 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

 

 



 

1 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 

 THIS CONTRACT is made on _________________, 2023, by and between City of Elk Grove, a 

municipal corporation (“City”) and Sacramento City Unified School District, a California school district 

(“Service Provider”), collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, Service Provider has presented a proposal to provide services, which services are 

identified in the Scope of Work attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit A, 

and by reason of its qualifications, experience, and facilities, is duly authorized to perform the type of 

services contemplated herein; and, 

 

WHEREAS, City desires to hire Service Provider to perform the Scope of Work pursuant to the 

terms and conditions set forth herein;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, City and Service 

Provider agree to as follows: 

 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. Service Provider shall do all work, attend all meetings, produce all reports and carry out 

all activities necessary to complete the services described in the Scope of Work. This Contract and its 

exhibits shall be known as the “Contract Documents.”  Terms set forth in any exhibits shall be deemed 

to be incorporated in all Contract Documents as if set forth in full therein.  In the event of conflict 

between terms contained in these Contract Documents, the more specific term shall control. 

B. Service Provider agrees it has satisfied itself by its own investigation and research 

regarding the conditions affecting the work to be done and labor and materials needed, and that its 

decision to execute this Contract is based on such independent investigation and research. 

2. TERM OF CONTRACT 

A. This Contract shall be effective as of the date executed by the Parties and approved as to 

form by the City Attorney and shall terminate at 11:59 p.m. on January 31, 2025, unless earlier 

terminated pursuant to Section 11 of this Contract.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 

Contract, the City Manager shall be authorized to modify the Scope of Work and/or extend the 

termination date of this Contract (including, as necessary, modification of the Scope of Work and/or 

Schedule of Performance as to time of performance) by a writing signed by the City Manager and the 

Service Provider prior to the initial termination or any extended termination date.   

3. SCHEDULE FOR PERFORMANCE 

 City and Service Provider agree that time is of the essence and Service Provider agrees that 

services shall be undertaken and completed in accordance with the schedule of performance (the 

“Schedule of Performance”), attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit B.  

Deviations from the time schedule stated in the Schedule of Performance may be made with the written 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2 

approval of City Manager, or his/her authorized representative.  Service Provider’s failure to complete 

work in accordance with the Schedule of Performance may result in delayed compensation as described 

in Section 4. 

4. COMPENSATION 

A. Service Provider shall be paid monthly as set forth in Exhibit C, “Compensation and 

Method of Payment,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, for the actual fees, costs and 

expenses for the time and materials required and expended, and approved by City, but in no event shall 

total compensation under this Contract exceed Three Hundred Four Thousand Two Hundred Sixty-One 

and Seventy-Four Cents ($304,261.74) without City’s prior written approval.  Said amount shall be paid 

upon submittal of a monthly invoice showing completion of the tasks that month, including the services 

rendered, the costs incurred for materials, the person(s) rendering performed services, the amount of 

time spent by such person(s), and the applicable hourly rate. 

B. If Service Provider’s performance is not in conformity with the Scope of Work or 

Schedule of Performance, payments may be delayed or denied, unless otherwise agreed to by City in 

writing. 

C. If the work is halted at the request of City, compensation shall be based upon the 

proportion that the work performed bears to the total work required by this Contract, subject to Section 

11. 

5. NOTICES 

A. Service Provider shall transmit invoices and any notices to City, with copy (excepting 

invoices) to City Attorney, as follows: 

City of Elk Grove     City of Elk Grove  

Attn: Finance Department   Attn: City Attorney’s Office 

8401 Laguna Palms Way   8401 Laguna Palms Way 

Elk Grove, California 95758   Elk Grove, California 95758 

 

 

B. City shall transmit payments on invoiced amounts, and any notices required by this 

Contract to Service Provider as follows: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Attn:  Angela Hatter, Site Administrator 

Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center 

5451 Lemon Hill Avenue 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

 

 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3 

6. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Service Provider agrees that services shall be performed and completed in the manner and 
according to the professional standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which 
Service Provider and its subcontractors or agents are engaged.  Service Provider shall not, either during 
or after the term of this Contract, make public any reports or articles, or disclose to any third party any 
information, confidential or otherwise, relative to the work of City or the operations or procedures of 
City without the prior written consent of City. 
 

Service Provider further agrees that it shall not, during the term of this Contract, take any action 
that would affect its impartiality or professionalism due to City whether perceived or actual. 

 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

A. It is understood and agreed that Service Provider (including Service Provider's 

employees) is an independent contractor, and that no relationship of employer-employee exists between 

the Parties hereto. 

B. Service Provider's assigned personnel shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to 

employees of City. 

C. City is not required to make any deductions or withholdings from the compensation 

payable to Service Provider under the provisions of the Contract and is not required to issue W-2 Forms 

for income and employment tax purposes for any of Service Provider's assigned personnel. 

D. Service Provider, in the performance of its obligation hereunder, is only subject to the 

control or direction of City as to the designation of tasks to be performed and the results to be 

accomplished. 

E. Any third-party person(s) employed by Service Provider shall be entirely and exclusively 

under the direction, supervision, and control of Service Provider. 

F. Service Provider hereby indemnifies and holds City harmless from any and all claims that 

may be made against City based upon any contention by any third party that an employer-employee 

relationship exists by reason of this Contract. 

8. AUTHORITY OF SERVICE PROVIDER 

Service Provider shall possess no authority with respect to any City decision and no right to act 
on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as agent, or to bind City to any obligations whatsoever. 
 

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 Service Provider certifies that it has disclosed to City any actual, apparent, or potential 
conflicts of interest that may exist relative to the services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.  



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4 

Service Provider agrees to advise City of any actual, apparent or potential conflicts of interest that may 
develop subsequent to the date of execution of this Contract.  Service Provider further agrees to 
complete any statements of economic interest if required by either City ordinance or State law. 

 

10. AMENDMENTS, CHANGES OR MODIFICATIONS 

Amendments, changes or modifications in the terms of this Contract may be made at any time by 

mutual written agreement between the Parties hereto and shall be signed by the persons authorized to 

bind the Parties. 

 

11. TERMINATION 

A. This Contract may be terminated by City, provided that City gives not less than thirty 

(30) calendar days’ written notice (delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested) of intent to 

terminate.  Upon termination, City shall be entitled to all work, including but not limited to, reports, 

investigations, appraisals, inventories, studies, analyses, drawings and data estimates performed to that 

date, whether completed or not, and in accordance with Section 15, Property of City. 

B. City may temporarily suspend this Contract, at no additional cost to City, provided that 

Service Provider is given written notice (delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested) of 

temporary suspension.  If City gives such notice of temporary suspension, Service Provider shall 

immediately suspend its activities under this Contract. A temporary suspension may be issued 

concurrent with the notice of termination provided for in subsection A of this section. 

C. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Contract, Service Provider shall not be relieved of 

liability to City for damages sustained by City by virtue of any breach of this Contract by Service 

Provider, and City may withhold any payments due to Service Provider until such time as the exact 

amount of damages, if any, due City from Service Provider is determined. 

D. In the event of termination, Service Provider shall be compensated as provided for in this 

Contract, except as provided in Section 11C.  Upon termination, City shall be entitled to all work, 

including but not limited to, reports, investigations, appraisals, inventories, studies, analyses, drawings 

and data estimates performed to that date, whether completed or not, and in accordance with Section 15, 

Property of City. 

12. FUNDING 

Service Provider agrees and understands that renewal of this Contract in subsequent years is 

contingent upon action by City Council consistent with the appropriations limits of Article XIII B of the 

California Constitution and that the City Council may determine not to fund this Contract in subsequent 

years. 

13. NOTICE TO PROCEED 

Prior to commencing work under this Contract, Service Provider shall receive a written “Notice 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5 

to Proceed” from City.  A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurances 

have been received.  City shall not be obligated to pay Service Provider for any services prior to 

issuance of the Notice to Proceed. 

14. EXTENSIONS OF TIME 

 Service Provider may, for good cause, request extensions of time to perform the services 

required hereunder.  Such extensions must be authorized in advance by City, in writing, and at City’s 

sole discretion.  Such extensions, if authorized, shall be incorporated in written amendments to this 

Contract or the attached Scope of Work in the manner provided in Section 10.   

 

15. PROPERTY OF CITY 

A. It is mutually agreed that all materials prepared by Service Provider under this Contract 

shall become the property of City, and Service Provider shall have no property right therein whatsoever.  

Immediately upon termination, City shall be entitled to, and Service Provider shall deliver to City, 

reports, investigations, appraisals, inventories, studies, analyses, drawings and data estimates performed 

to that date, whether completed or not, and other such materials as may have been prepared or 

accumulated to date by Service Provider in performing this Contract which is not Service Provider’s 

privileged information, as defined by law, or Service Provider’s personnel information, along with all 

other property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession.  Publication of 

the information derived from work performed or data obtained in connection with services rendered 

under this Contract must be approved in writing by City. 

B. Additionally, it is agreed that the Parties intend this to be a contract for services and each 

considers the products and results of the services to be rendered by Service Provider hereunder to be 

work made for hire.  Service Provider acknowledges and agrees that the work (and all rights therein, 

including, without limitation, copyright) belongs to and shall be the sole and exclusive property of City 

without restriction or limitation upon its use or dissemination by City. 

C. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed to be any representation by Service 

Provider that the work product is suitable in any way for any other project except the one detailed in this 

Contract.  Any reuse by City for another project or project location shall be at City’s sole risk. 

16. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

 Service Provider shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of federal, State 

and local governments, and shall commit no trespass on any public or private property in performing 

any of the work authorized by this Contract.   

 

 

 

 

 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6 

17. REPRESENTATIONS 

A. Service Provider agrees and represents that it is qualified to properly provide the services 

set forth herein, in a manner which is consistent with the generally accepted standards of Service 

Provider’s profession. 

B. Service Provider agrees and represents that the work performed under this Contract shall 

be in accordance with applicable federal, State and local law. 

C. Service Provider shall designate a project manager who at all times shall represent 

Service Provider before City on all matters relating to this Contract.  The project manager shall continue 

in such capacity unless and until he or she is removed at the request of City, is no longer employed by 

Service Provider, or is replaced with the written approval of City, which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

D. Service Provider shall provide corrective services without charge to City for services 

which fail to meet the above professional and legal standards, and which are reported to Service 

Provider in writing within sixty (60) calendar days of discovery.  Should Service Provider fail or refuse 

to perform promptly its obligations, City may render or undertake performance thereof and Service 

Provider shall be liable for any expenses thereby incurred. 

18. APPROVAL OF STAFF MEMBERS 

A. Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 

continuity of Service Provider’s staff assigned to perform the services required under this Contract.  

Service Provider shall notify City of any changes in Service Provider’s staff to be assigned to perform 

the services required under this Contract and shall obtain the approval of the City Manager of a list of all 

proposed staff members who are to be assigned to perform services under this Contract prior to any such 

performance. 

19. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING 

A. Except as expressly authorized herein, Service Provider's obligations under this Contract 

are not assignable or transferable, and Service Provider shall not subcontract any work, without the prior 

written approval of City.  However, claims for money due or which become due to Service Provider 

from City under this Contract may be assigned to a financial institution or to a trustee in bankruptcy, 

without such approval.  Notice of any assignment or transfer whether voluntary or involuntary shall be 

furnished promptly to City. 

B. Service Provider shall be as fully responsible to City for the negligent acts and omissions 

of its contractors and subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, in 

the same manner as persons directly employed by Service Provider. 

 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7 

20. MATERIALS CONFIDENTIAL 

All of the materials prepared or assembled by Service Provider pursuant to performance of this 

Contract are confidential and Service Provider agrees that they shall not be made available to any 

individual or organization without the prior written approval of City or except by court order.  If Service 

Provider or any of its officers, employees, or subcontractors does voluntarily provide information in 

violation of this Contract, City has the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provider for 

any damages caused by Service Provider releasing the information, including, but not limited to, City’s 

attorney’s fees and disbursements, including without limitation experts’ fees and disbursements. 

21. LIABILITY OF SERVICE PROVIDER—NEGLIGENCE 

 Service Provider shall be responsible for performing the work under this Contract in a manner 

which is consistent with the generally accepted standards of Service Provider’s profession and shall be 

liable for its own negligence and the negligent acts of its employees, agents, contractors and 

subcontractors.  City shall have no right of control over the manner in which the work is to be done but 

only as to its outcome and shall not be charged with the responsibility of preventing risk to Service 

Provider or its employees, agents, contractors or subcontractors. 

 

22. INDEMNITY AND LITIGATION COSTS 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend, and 

hold harmless City, its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and all 

claims, damages, demands, liability, costs, losses and expenses, including without limitation, court costs 

and reasonable attorneys’ and expert witness fees, arising out of any failure to comply with applicable 

law, any injury to or death of any person(s), damage to property, loss of use of property, economic loss 

or otherwise arising out of the performance of the work described herein, to the extent caused by a 

negligent act or negligent failure to act, errors, omissions, recklessness or willful misconduct incident to 

the performance of this Contract on the part of Service Provider, except such loss or damage which was 

caused by the sole negligence, or willful misconduct of City, as determined by a Court of competent 

jurisdiction.  Unless and until such judicial determination is made, or as otherwise agreed by the parties, 

Service Provider shall remain obligated to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its officers, 

officials, employees, volunteers, and agents pursuant to this Contract.  The provisions of this section 

shall survive termination or suspension of this Contract. 

  

 In any contract that Service Provider enters into with any subcontractor in any capacity related to 

any and all duties under this Contract, there must be an indemnification provision identical to the one 

provided in this Section applicable to the subcontractor requiring the subcontractor to assume the 

defense, indemnify and save harmless City to the same extent as Service Provider.  Service Provider’s 

failure to include such an indemnification provision in any contract with a subcontractor shall constitute 

a material breach of this Contract.  In the event Service Provider fails to obtain such indemnity 

obligations from others as required herein, Service Provider agrees to be fully responsible and 

indemnify, and save harmless City as prescribed under this Section. 

 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8 

23. EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE 

Prior to commencement of any work under this Contract, Service Provider shall provide and 
maintain in effect during the term of this Contract evidence of insurance coverage as set forth in Exhibit 
D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  These insurance requirements are summarized 
as follows: 

 

TYPE SINGLE LIMIT / 

OCCURRENCE 

AGGREGATE ENDORSEMENTS*** 

General Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Additional Insured 

Waiver of Subrogation 

Work Comp 

Employer’s Liability 

Statutory 

$1,000,000 each 

 Waiver of Subrogation 

 

Professional Liability $1,000,000 each   

 
***Must be actual endorsements. Typed statements on Certificates of Liability are unacceptable. 

This is a summary only. Please refer to the insurance section and/or exhibit of this Agreement for specific 

requirements. 
 
Furthermore, Service Provider shall certify its compliance with Labor Code Section 3700 in the 

form attached hereto and incorporated by reference, as Exhibit E. 
 
24. EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE COMPLIANCE 

Service Provider or its insurance broker shall deliver the required proof of insurance compliance, 

consisting of Insurance Services Office (ISO) endorsement forms or their equivalent and the ACORD 

form 25-S certificate of insurance (or its equivalent), evidencing all required coverage to City. City may 

designate an insurance certificate processor (“Processor”) to accept and process Service Provider’s proof 

of insurance. Service Provider shall deliver copies of the actual insurance policies, renewals, or 

replacements directly to City or Processor upon their request. 

 

25. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 

Service Provider, by execution of this Contract, certifies that it does not discriminate against any 

person upon the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, age, sex, disability or marital status in its 

employment practices. 
 
26. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS 

 Service Provider hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the federal 

immigration and nationality act (8 U.S.C.A. § 1101 et seq.), as amended; and in connection therewith, 

shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein. Should Service Provider so employ such 

unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this Contract, and should 

the federal government impose sanctions against City for such use of unauthorized aliens, Service 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9 

Provider hereby agrees to, and shall, reimburse City for the cost of all such sanctions imposed, together 

with any and all costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by City in connection therewith. 

27. LICENSES, PERMITS, AND OTHER APPROVALS 

Service Provider represents and warrants to City that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications 
and approvals of whatsoever nature legally required for Service Provider to practice its profession and 
perform the work described herein.  Service Provider represents and warrants to City that Service 
Provider shall, at its sole cost and expense, obtain and/or keep in effect at all times during the term of 
this Contract any licenses, permits, and approvals which are legally required for Service Provider to 
practice its profession at the time the services are performed.   

 

28. RECORDS AND INSPECTION 

Service Provider shall maintain records, books, documents and other evidence directly pertinent 
to the performance of work under this Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and practices.  City shall have the right to access and examine such records, without charge, 
during normal business hours.  City shall further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts 
therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities. 

 

29. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. Attorneys’ Fees:  In the event an action or proceeding is instituted by either party for the 

breach or enforcement of any provision of this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and all litigation expenses, including, but not limited to expert’s fees and 

disbursements.   

B. Venue:  This Contract shall be deemed to be made in, and the rights and liabilities of the 

Parties, and the interpretation and construction of the Contract governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action arising out of this Contract shall be filed in and 

adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of Sacramento, State of California. 

C. Enforceability:  If any term or provision of this Contract is found to be void, voidable, 

invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction under the laws of the State of California, 

any and all of the remaining terms and provisions of this Contract shall remain binding. 

D. Time:  All times stated herein or in any other Contract Documents are of the essence. 

E. Binding:  This Contract shall bind and inure to the heirs, devisees, assignees and 

successors in interest of Service Provider and to the successors in interest of City in the same manner as 

if such parties had been expressly named herein. 

F. Survivorship:  Any responsibility of Service Provider for warranties, insurance, 

indemnity, record-keeping or compliance with laws with respect to this Contract shall not be invalidated 

due to the expiration, termination or cancellation of this Contract. 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10 

G. Construction and Interpretation:  Service Provider and City agree and acknowledge that 

the provisions of this Contract have been arrived at through negotiation and that each party has had a full 

and fair opportunity to revise the provisions of this Contract and to have such provisions reviewed by 

legal counsel.  Therefore, any ambiguities in construing or interpreting this Contract shall not be 

resolved against the drafting party.  The titles of the various sections are merely informational and shall 

not be construed as a substantive portion of this Contract. 

H. Waiver:  The waiver at any time by any party of any of its rights with respect to a default 

or other matter arising in connection with this Contract shall not be deemed a waiver with respect to any 

subsequent default or other matter. 

I. Severability:  The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability, of any provision of this 

Contract shall not render the other provisions invalid, illegal or unenforceable. 

J. No Third-Party Beneficiary:  It is expressly understood and agreed that the enforcement 

of these terms and conditions shall be reserved to City and Service Provider.  Nothing contained in the 

agreement shall give or allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any third party.  It is the 

express intent of City and Service Provider that any such person or entity, other than City or Service 

Provider, receiving benefits or services under this agreement shall be deemed as incidental beneficiary. 

K. Non-Discrimination/Non-Preferential Treatment Statement:  In performing this Contract, 

the parties shall not discriminate or grant preferential treatment on the basis of race, sex, color, age, 

religion, sexual orientation, disability, ethnicity, or national origin, and shall comply to the fullest extent 

allowed by law, with all applicable local, state, and federal laws relating to nondiscrimination. 

 L. Authority to Execute:  The person or persons executing this Contract on behalf of Service 

Provider warrant and represent that they have the authority to execute this Contract on behalf of their 

agency and further warrant and represent that they have the authority to bind Service Provider to the 

performance of its obligations hereunder. 

 M. Dispute Resolution:  Prior to either party commencing any legal action under this 

Contract, the parties agree to try in good faith, to settle any dispute amicably between them.  If a dispute 

has not been settled after forty-five (45) days of good-faith negotiations and as may be otherwise 

provided herein, then either party may pursue available legal and equitable remedies against the other. 

N. Force Majeure:  Neither party shall be in default by reason of any failure in the 

performance of this Contract if such failure arises out of causes beyond its reasonable control.  Such 

causes may include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of government in 

either its sovereign or contractual capacity, acts of the party whose performance is not sought to be 

excused, fires, flood, weather, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, failure of 

transmission or power supply, mechanical difficulties with equipment which could not have been 

reasonably forecasted or provided for, or other causes beyond its sole control.  The party so affected will 

resume performance as soon as practicable after the force majeure event terminates. 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

11 

30. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This instrument and any attachments hereto constitute the entire Contract between City and 

Service Provider concerning the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior oral and written 

communications between the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof. 

 

AGREED to this ______ day of _________, 2023, by the Parties as follows: 

 

SERVICE PROVIDER 

 

By: ________________________________ 

      Rose Ramos, CBO  

      

 

Approved as to form:     CITY OF ELK GROVE 

 

By: ________________________________  By: _________________________________  

       Jonathan P. Hobbs, City Attorney         Jason Behrmann, City Manager 

 

Attest to: 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

     Jason Lindgren, City Clerk 

 

Dated: ________________________________ 

 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

12 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Scope of Work 

 

 

Service Provider shall design, develop, market, implement, and administer a workforce development and 

training program for Elk Grove residents in the field of manufacturing known as the Manufacturing 

Training Program for Elk Grove Residents (Program). The Program shall offer training and certification 

for adults in Elk Grove who are dislocated, unemployed, or underemployed as a result of the COVID-19 

pandemic or related factors and who wish to advance their careers through reskilling and upskilling and 

obtaining employment in the field of manufacturing. The Program will be provided at no cost to Elk 

Grove residents. The goal of the Program is to develop a pipeline of skilled and trained employees for 

local and regional employers to access to meet their employment needs. The Program will be designed 

to increase the number of employed residents generating income that produces economic sustainability 

for themselves, their families, and the community. 

 

Accordingly, Service Provider shall complete, to the City’s satisfaction, the following deliverables and 

activities: 

 

1. PROGRAM DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION 

 

A.       Design and Implementation – The Program shall be designed and implemented with the 

components identified in and consistent with the Final Proposal provided by the Service 

Provider dated October 25, 2022, and attached to this Exhibit A and made a part of the 

Contract. 

 

B.       Key Program Components—Key Program components shall include the following as 

delineated in the Final Proposal: 

 

i. Program design and development 

ii. Program marketing to residents and businesses 

iii. Intake and enrollment of students 

iv. Enrollment of businesses wishing to accept Program graduates 

v. Course instruction 

vi. Post -graduate job placement, tracking, and payment of employment bonuses 

vii. Reporting to City 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

13 

Attachment to Exhibit A 

 



 

 

Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center  

  

 

  

Manufacturing Training Program  

for Elk Grove Residents  

Workforce Development Training and Certification  

Program Proposal for the City of Elk Grove  
 

Angela Hatter-Site Administrator  

Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center 

5451 Lemon Hill Avenue  

Sacramento, CA 95824  

June 30, 2022 

Revised: October 25, 2022  

 







 

4 

 

2. Table of Contents 

Contents 

1. Introductory Letter ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

2. Table of Contents ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

3. Qualifications and Experience .................................................................................................................... 6 

Table 1 -Program Roles and Responsibilities .............................................................................................. 6 

Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center........................................................................................... 7 

Lemon Hill Job Center ............................................................................................................................... 10 

Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance.............................................................................................. 11 

4. Work Plan .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove Residents ....................................................................... 15 

5. Conflict of Interest Statement .................................................................................................................. 30 

6. Supportive Information/References ......................................................................................................... 31 

Resumes and Applicable Credentials of Key Staff .................................................................................... 31 

Project References .................................................................................................................................... 41 

Detailed Intake Process Outlines .............................................................................................................. 43 

Overview Of The Region’s Manufacturing Sector .................................................................................... 51 

Illustrative Exhibits .................................................................................................................................... 60 

CAJ Manufacturing Training Program Descriptions .................................................................................. 63 

CAJ Refund Policy ...................................................................................................................................... 67 

CAJ Student Enrollment ............................................................................................................................ 68 

Program Business Enrollment ................................................................................................................... 69 



 

5 

 

7. Budget And Fees ....................................................................................................................................... 70 

Table 6 -Aggregate Proposed Program Fees ............................................................................................ 71 

Table 7 -Proposed Training Scholarship and Placement Bonuses ............................................................ 73 

Table 8 -Schedule of Expense Payments ‐ Elk Grove City Grant .............................................................. 74 

8. Secretary of State ...................................................................................................................................... 75 

 

  



 

6 

 

3. Qualifications and Experience  
Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center (CAJ), in partnership with the Lemon Hill Job 
Center and Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance (SMVA), are uniquely qualified to be the 
service provider for the Elk Grove Workforce Development program. CAJ and the Lemon Hill 
Job Center have been working seamlessly at a shared location for over 30 years. CAJ is well-
positioned to meet the training and certification needs of individuals pursuing a career in the 
manufacturing sector. CAJ also offers. The Lemon Hill Job Center has a proven track record 
of providing services for students that qualify for WIOA Title I services. SVMA was founded by 
local manufacturers In 2018 and had unparalleled access to manufacturers in the region to 
market the program and place students in positions in the Sacramento Valley region. The 
responsibilities of the three organizations are summarized in Table 1 below. Detailed 
descriptions of qualifications and experience are in the following sections. 

Table 1 -Program Roles and Responsibilities 

Organization Key Staff Title Program Responsibilities 

CAJ Angela Hatter  Site Administrator ● Primary Liason 
● Administration of Progam 
● Manage Program Development 

 Todd Frazee Manufacturing 
Career Technical 
Education (CTE) 
Instructor 

● CTE Instruction 
● Skills Certification 

Lemon Hill Job 
Center 

Eileen Ramos-
Prince 

Manager III Adult 
Education 

Supervise: 
● Case Management* 
● Job Placement* 
● Track Employment Longevity* 

SVMA Dean Peckham Executive Director ● Market Program 
● Job Placement** 
● Track Employment Longevity** 
● Issue Placement Bonuses 
● Program Metrics 
● Transportation Stipends 

* WIOA Title I participants 
** Non-WIOA Title I participants 



 

7 

 

Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center 

Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center (CAJ) is part of the Sacramento City Unified 
School District (SCUSD) and operates under the governance of the State of California 
Department of Education (CDE). CAJ opened in 1967 as the Skills and Business Education 
Center, and classes have been held at the current site at 5451 Lemon Hill Avenue, augmented 
with online components when appropriate. CAJ offers vocational training programs in Medical 
Assistant, Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship, Nurse Assistant Training, Pharmacy Technician, 
and Vocational Nursing.  

Budget and Funding Sources 

In the 2021-22 program year, Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center and the Lemon 
Hill Job Center have been funded through several sources. Both organizations are operated 
by SCUSD staff, so the budgets are combined in Table 2 below: 

 

Table 2 -CAJ and Lemon Hill Job Center Funding Sources 

Source Amount 

California Adult Education Program (CAEP) $1,508,793 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Title (WIOA) I through (SETA) $603,950 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Title II $169,807 

California Firefighters Apprenticeship $487,196 

CalWorks $47,252 

Student Fees generated through Federal Financial Aid*. $1,288,060 

Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF)* $1,375,839 

TOTAL $5,480,897 

*The figures listed for student fees are based on the 2020-2021 school year. The.2021-2022 school year student 
fees have not yet been determined. Enrollment declines due to the COVID-19 pandemic have drastically reduced 
income from student fees. HEERF funding provided by the U.S. Department of Education has covered shortfalls 
and losses. 

CAJ has also benefited from in-kind funding provided in equipment and tooling donations from 
manufacturing industry partners totaling approximately $335,000.00 since the manufacturing 
program's inception. 



 

8 

 

List of Jurisdictions and Projects Similar To The Proposed Program 

CAJ launched the Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program in 2020 with CARES Act funding 
as Workforce Development Certification Program to train, upskill, and place individuals who 
have had their employment disrupted by the pandemic in the manufacturing industry. 
Manufacturing has been identified as a key area of growth in the region. The CAJ 
Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship program is a “boot camp” style of training. In 90 contact 
hours over a few weeks, successful students learn entry-level skills and certifications to prepare 
them for an entry-level position in the manufacturing industry. Successful students earn (1) 
Forklift Operator Certification, (2) 10-hr. Cal/OSHA General Industry Safety and Health Card, 
(3) SME ToolingU Pre-Apprenticeship Certificate, (4) CAJ Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship 
Program Completion Certificate, and (5) are prepared to earn the Society Of Manufacturing 
Engineers (SME) Certified Manufacturing Associate (CMfgA) exam. The Manufacturing Pre-
Apprenticeship Program provides skills for immediate job placement and entry into an industry-
sponsored apprenticeship program and is also a prerequisite for the new Manufacturing 
Technician Program CAJ is launching in the Fall of 2022. 

To date, CAJ Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program has served 68 individuals, issued 62 
Forklift Operator Certifications, 65 10-hr. OSHA Safety and Health Cards, 50 SME ToolingU 
Pre-Apprenticeship Certificates, and 16 students elected to test and earn SME CMfgA 
certification. CAJ has also issued an additional 22 Forklift Operator Certifications to individuals 
that elected to take the forklift operator class component of the Program separately. Council on 
Occupational Education (COE) requirements for CTE programs require 60% completion and 
70% placement rate minimum. For the 2021-2022 program year, the Program has a current 
completion rate of 75% of participants completing all components and 87.5% completing at 
least one industry-recognized certification  The placement reporting period for this Program 
ends 12/30/2022, and we are confident we will meet the placement goal of 70% by that date 
with a current placement rate of 60% with five months left to place participants from the last 
cohort that ended on 6/24/2022. 

References for previous projects are in Exhibit 6 of the Supporting Information/References 
section of this proposal. 

Primary Liaison For This Proposal: 
 
Angela Hatter -Site Administrator 
Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center 
5451 Lemon Hill Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
916-394-5800 X701011 
Angela-Hatter@scusd.edu 



 

9 

 

Key Staff 

The CAJ has an experienced team of education professionals with backgrounds that include 
experience with instruction, instructional design, and program administration. Presented below 
is a matrix of staff responsibilities for this proposal and a summary of the qualifications of the 
members of the CAJ team. Detailed resumes and applicable credentials are in Exhibits 1-3, 
the Supportive Information/References section of this proposal. 

Angela Hatter -Site Administrator & Primary Liaison 

Angela Hatter is the Site Administrator for Charles A Jones Career and Education Center and 
would administer the Program, manage program development, and act as the Primary Liaison 
for this proposal. 

Angela Hatter has over 25 years of experience in the field of education, with 13 years of 
experience serving as a principal administrator for public adult schools and correctional 
education programs in California. Ms. Hatter has supervised secondary and post-secondary 
academic, substance abuse recovery, and career technical education programs and worked 
closely with industry partners on program development and placement services. She has 
overseen CTE programs in health occupations, manufacturing, computers, and information 
technology pathways. 

Charles A Jones Career and Education Center 
5451 Lemon Hill Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
916-394-5800 X701011 
Angela-Hatter@scusd.edu 

Todd Frazee -Manufacturing Career Technical Education Instructor 

Todd Frazee is the primary Career Technical Education (CTE) instructor for the manufacturing 
Pre-Apprenticeship program and would be providing the technical training and certification 
services for this proposal. Todd has over 25 years of manufacturing engineering and 
management experience with a wide breadth of production systems. Todd developed the CAJ 
Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program and has taught the program classes since the 
Program launched in the Fall of 2020. Todd has also taught in the Advanced Manufacturing 
department at Sierra College and is currently on faculty at Folsom Lake College as an Adjunct 
Professor in the Manufacturing and Industrial Technology Program. Todd earned a Bachelor 
of Arts in Industrial Arts (BAIA) in Product Development from San Francisco State University in 
1996 and a  Master of Education (MEd) in Learning Design and Technology from Arizona State 
University in 2020. He holds a CTE Teaching Credential from the California State Commission 



 

10 

 

on Teacher Credentialing for the Product Development and Manufacturing pathway and is 
qualified to teach all program topics, including those requiring certification.   

Todd is an Authorized Outreach Trainer with the Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA) through the OSHA Training Institute (OTI) at the University of California San Diego 
Extension (UCSD Extension). He is authorized to teach both the OSHA and Cal/OSHA 10-Hr. 
and 30-Hr. General Industry Safety and Health Training Card programs. Todd is currently 
certified by Toyota Material Handling Northern California to train and certify operators in the 
use of Class I-V Counterbalance Industrial Lift Trucks [Forklifts] and is also registered with the 
Society Of Manufacturing Engineers (SME) to proctor SME Certified Manufacturing Associate 
(CMfgA) exams. 

Charles A Jones Career and Education Center 
5451 Lemon Hill Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
916-394-5800 X701307 
Todd-Frazee@scusd.edu 

Lemon Hill Job Center 

The Lemon Hill Job Center and CAJ have been working seamlessly at a shared location for 
over 30 years. The Lemon Hill Job Center is well-positioned to meet the Case Management, 
Job Placement, and tracking participant employment after training for participants that qualify 
for WIOA Title I services that are pursuing a career in the manufacturing sector. The Lemon 
Hill Job Center has a proven track record of providing services for students that qualify for 
WIOA Title I services. 

Budget and Funding Sources 

See CAJ Budget and Funding Sources section. SCUSD staff operates both organizations, so 
the budgets and sources listing are combined under the CAJ budget and Funding Sources 
section.  

Key Staff 

The Lemon Hill Job Center has an experienced team of professionals with backgrounds that 
include experience with participant Case Management, Job Placement, and tracking participant 
employment after training has been completed. Presented below is a summary of the 
qualifications of the members of the Lemon Hill Job Center team. A detailed resume for key 
Lemon Hill Job Center staff members is Exhibit 4 in the Supportive Information/References 
section of this proposal. 



 

11 

 

Eileen Ramos-Prince -Manager III Adult Education 

Eileen Ramos-Prince is the Manager for Lemon Hill Job Center and manages the job center 
staff who provide Case Management, Job Placement Services and track Employment 
Longevity for program participants that are eligible for WIOA Title I services. 

Eileen Prince has been employed with Sacramento City Unified School district for 26 years with 
increasing levels of responsibility. For the last ten years, Mrs. Prince has worked in the Lemon 
Hill AJCC, first as a Job Coach (Education Entrepreneur) and later as the Job Center 
supervisor. In her current role as CAJ Manager III, Mrs. Prince oversees all CAJ enrollment, 
assessment, and placement activities and services. 

Lemon Hill Job Center 
5451 Lemon Hill Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
916-394-5800 X701059 
Eileen-Prince@scusd.edu 

Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance 

Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance (SVMA) has experience in the manufacturing 
sector, including human resources, skills development, market analysis, program marketing, 
employer recruitment and participation, community outreach and partnerships, and program 
administration.  

  



 

12 

 

Budget and Funding Sources 

In the 2021-22 program year, SVMA has been funded through several sources, as shown in 
Table 3 below: 

 

Table 3 -SVMA Funding Sources 

Source Amount 

CA Manufacturing Technology Consulting (Grant) $ 80,000 

CA Mobility Center (High Roads Training Partnership Grant) $100,000 

Memberships $ 40,000 

Contributions - Program $120,000 

Contributions - Events $ 10,000 

TOTAL $350,000 

Organizational Information 
 
Organization Name:   Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance 
Date of Incorporation: 12/20/2020 
IRS Tax ID #:    86-1596027 

List of Jurisdictions and Projects Similar To The Proposed Program 

In 2018 and 2019, SVMA (formerly SVMI) managed two manufacturing pre-apprenticeship 
programs and $40,000 grant funding to train 25 individuals for manufacturing machinist roles 
within the local industry. Funding was provided by the California Manufacturing Technology 
Association (CMTA) Employment Training Panel Fund ($20,000) and the Sacramento Small 
Business Development Center (SBDC) ($20,000).    The training was held at Sierra College. 
SVMA was responsible for recruiting instructors, students,  developing curriculum (with the 
support of industry partners), and placement of students with area employers. 

In 2020/2021, SVMA (formerly SVMI) received a $55,000 CA Apprenticeship Initiative (CAI) 
grant from Los Rios Community Colleges. The grant was used to build the SVMA CNC 
machinist apprenticeship program curriculum, recruit, train, and certify four experienced 
machinists as journeymen, and manage grant funding to support the success of the Program. 



 

13 

 

All four program participants received their CNC machinist journeyman certificates from the 
U.S Department of Labor (DOL) and the C.A. Dept of Apprenticeship Standards (DAS). 

Between 2020 and 2022, SVMA managed a $160,000 grant from the Sacramento Employment 
Training Agency (SETA) to support the development of the  SVMA CNC Machinist 
Apprenticeship Program,  purchase materials and equipment for the CAJ Regional 
Manufacturing Training Center, and pay for instructional services provided by CAJ. In 2021 & 
2022, SVMA received formal approval for the apprenticeship program by the DOL & DAS, 
respectively. 

Between 2020 and 2021, SVMA received a $262,000 grant from the City of Sacramento 
CARES Grant Program to recruit and train individuals for manufacturing careers, partnering 
with CAJ.   Funding was used to recruit individuals from job centers within the City of 
Sacramento, pay for additional equipment at CAJ, provide stipends to the students, and support 
their placement with area manufacturers.   

References for previous projects are in Exhibit 7 of the Supporting Information/References 
section of this proposal. 

Key Staff 

Presented below is a summary of the qualifications of the member of the Sacramento Valley 
Manufacturing Alliance. A detailed resume is Exhibit 5 in the Supportive 
Information/References section of this proposal. 

Dean Peckham, Executive Director 

Dean Peckham is the Executive Director of SVMA. Dean would Market the Program to 
employers, prepare Program Metrics, and Issue Placement Bonuses for participants of the 
Program in this proposal. He would also provide Job Placement services and track Employment 
Longevity for program participants that are not eligible for WIOA Title I services. 

Dean has served as the SVMA executive director since its formation in April 2018. Between 
April 2018 and June 2021, SVMA was organized under Valley Vision, which served as the 
SVMA fiscal sponsor. In 2020/2021, Dean successfully led SVMA’s incorporation as a 501(c)3 
nonprofit. Dean is responsible for all administrative oversight of SVMA programs & committees, 
business development, and day-to-day management activities. 

In 2018 & 2019, Dean successfully implemented a manufacturing pre-apprenticeship training 
program in collaboration with Sierra College, training 28 people for manufacturing careers. In 
2021, Dean successfully secured a State of CA CAI grant to train and certify four machinists 
as journeymen apprentice machinists. Certificates were awarded by the U.S. Dept of Labor & 
the C.A. Dept of Apprenticeship Standards. In 2020 Dean led SVMA’s effort to form a strategic 



 

14 

 

partnership w/ CAJ to develop the Regional Manufacturing Training Center and the 
manufacturing training program. SVMA received two grants from SETA ($160,000) and the City 
of Sacramento CARES ($262,000), which helped launch the Program at CAJ and train 
individuals for manufacturing careers. The SETA grant also helped launch the SVMA CNC 
Machinist Apprenticeship Program, approved by the C.A. Dept of Apprenticeship Standards in 
March  2022.  

Prior to 2018, Dean served as a Senior Project Manager for the City of Sacramento Economic 
Development Dept.  Responsibilities included business retention activities for city businesses, 
with an emphasis on industrial retention, Sacramento Enterprise Zone Manager,  conversion 
of the Sacramento Army Depot to a privately-owned industrial business park (Depot Park), and 
the recruitment of local contractors and labor for the Golden 1 Center construction. 

SVMA 
3053 Freeport Blvd, #417  
Sacramento, CA  95818 
916-508-0892 
dpeckham@sacvalleymfg.org 

  



 

15 

 

4. Work Plan    

Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove Residents  

SACRAMENTO REGION MANUFACTURING SECTOR OVERVIEW 

In 2021, the Los Rios Community College Center of Excellence prepared an overview of the 
region’s manufacturing sector. See Exhibit 10 in the Supportive Information/References section 
of this proposal for the data source. The Sacramento Region is home to over 4,000 
manufacturing companies employing 35,561 people. Over 1,800 of these companies are 
located within Sacramento County, including 196 manufacturers in the City of Elk Grove and 
over 1,000 in the City of Sacramento. The region’s manufacturers are projected to add !,677 
jobs by 2025. In 2020, 27 percent of the manufacturing workforce was within ten (10) years of 
retirement, creating a great opportunity for individuals interested in manufacturing careers. This 
is especially true for women, who only make up 27 % of the manufacturing workforce. 

Population Served: City of Elk Grove Demographic Profile 

The City of Elk Grove has an estimated 2021 population of 178,997, with 61.3% of the 
population between the ages of 18 and 65, i.e., the primary working age of the population. 
Female residents represent 51.9% of the population, just slightly higher than Sacramento 
County at 51.1%. Elk Grove has a very racially diverse population; the Black population 
represents 11%, American Indian and Native Alaskan represent 0.6%, Asian alone is 28.9%, 
Native Hawaiian and Pacific Islander represent 2%, while the Latino population is 19%, and 
white alone, not Hispanic or Latino is 33.5%. 

Elk Grove has a higher percentage of the population being foreign-born (24.2%)  than 
Sacramento County (20.9%) or Sacramento City (21.3%).   

The  Elk Grove population is a very diverse population that can support the area manufacturers 
who are struggling to build a more diverse workforce that reflects the diversity of the region. In 
2021-22, CAJ served 613 students: including, 41% Asian; 23% Hispanic; 21% white; 11% 
African American/Black; 1% American Indian; 1% Filipino; and 1% Native Hawaiian/Pacific 
Islander. 

Elk Grove is fortunate to have several favorable demographic factors on its side; high school 
graduation rates are 91%, compared to Sacramento County (87.9%), and a higher percentage 
of the population has a bachelor's degree than the County (36.7% vs. 31.4%), a 2020 median 
household income of $101,776, which is 42% higher than Sacramento County and a lower 
poverty rate than Sacramento County (8% vs. 12.5%). Last, the Elk Grove population has a 
high school graduation rate higher than the region. Enrolling Elk Grove residents at CAJ 
requires a high school diploma as an admission requirement for most programs.   



 

16 

 

Elk Grove residents are computer and Internet-literate, with 97.4% of the households owning 
a computer and 93.6% having a broadband subscription. 

Program Design, Development and Implementation 

CAJ in partnership with SVMA and the Lemon Hill Job Center, will design, develop, market, 
implement, and administer a workforce development and training program for Elk Grove 
residents in the field of manufacturing. The Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove 
Residents will provide training and certification for adults in Elk Grove who have been 
dislocated, unemployed/underemployed due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and related factors. 
The program aims to advance the careers of Elk Grove residents who wish to pursue 
employment in the manufacturing industry by reskilling and upskilling. The proposed program 
will be provided at no cost to Elk Grove residents to develop a pipeline of skilled and trained 
employees for local and regional employers to access to meet their employment needs. The 
program design is to increase the number of employed residents generating income that 
produces economic sustainability for themselves, their families, and their community. 

The team led by CAJ will provide the City of Elk Grove with deliverables and activities, including 
the  following key program components: 

● Program design and development 
● Program marketing to residents and businesses 
● Intake and enrollment of students 
● Enrollment of businesses wishing to accept program graduates 
● Course instruction 
● Postgraduate job placement, tracking, and payment of employment bonuses 
● Reporting to the City of Elk Grove 

The design and development of the program leverage resources and partnerships that are in 
place and modeled after prior experience with similar workforce development projects. The 
program's marketing will be a collaborative effort between CAJ and SVMA, leveraging 
existing networks and establishing new connections targeted at marketing to Elk Grove 
residents and businesses. CAJ and the Lemon Hill Job Center will intake and enroll students 
through established intake and enrollment processes. Several SVMA members, such as 
Insight Manufacturing Services, Siemens Mobility and Greenheck have hired our graduates 
and expressed interest in ongoing pipeline of candidates from our program. SVMA will recruit 
and enroll manufacturing businesses in Elk Grove and the surrounding region willing to 
interview program graduates for employment. CAJ will provide manufacturing skills instruction 
options for the participants, including single-day courses and more robust programs ranging 
from 3 weeks to 9-months. The team will provide postgraduate job placement, tracking, and 
payment of employment retention bonuses with tracks that include collaboration between The 
Lemon Hill Job Center, SVMA, and SETA Job Centers that refer participants to the program. 



 

17 

 

CAJ will provide quarterly reports on key activities and outcomes for the program, including 
marketing/outreach efforts, budget expenditures, and performance metrics for the number of 
people interested enrolled, graduated, placed in employment, and retained by those 
employers for 90 days. 
 

Program Marketing to Residents and Businesses 

The Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove Residents will be focused on marketing to 
targeted populations within the community for program participants. The focus of the marketing 
to business will be first to market to manufacturing businesses within Elk Grove and 
neighboring communities and second to the region at large. SVMA will lead and coordinate the 
marketing efforts. 

Marketing to Elk Grove Residents 

The marketing effort to potential program participants will be explicitly focused on Elk Grove 
residents. The targeting marketing will be focused on residents within Elk Grove Zip Codes 
95624, 95757, 95758, and 95759. For the program, following sources will be used to market 
the program to Elk Grove Residents: 

● Social media, such as Google & Facebook ads,  

● A dedicated webpage, “Manufacturing Cares - Elk Grove,”  

● CAJ & SVMA host quarterly job fairs at the CAJ campus with social media ads marketing 
to Elk Grove residents and employers. 

● Collaboration with the Elk Grove libraries to distribute marketing flyers  

● Collaboration with the City of Elk Grove to identify and participate in community events to 
distribute marketing flyers  

● Direct outreach to community-based organizations, including but not limited to area 
churches and groups such as Chicks in Crisis,  Elk Grove Food Bank, Elk Grove Homeless 
Assistance Resource Team, Uplift People of Elk Grove, Asian Resources Inc,  LaFamilia 
Counseling Center, and local service organizations such as Rotary and Kiwanis.   

● Outreach to the EGUSD Job Center and EGUSD high schools. School college and career 
fairs are a great opportunity to market the program to high school seniors, their parents, 
family, and friends.  



 

18 

 

Marketing to Businesses 

SVMA will initially conduct a survey of Elk Grove manufacturers to determine their current and 
projected hiring needs.  The SVMA team will follow up with employers by calling them directly 
to confirm current and projected workforce needs as well as reach those companies not 
responding to the survey. 

Phase II will include a survey of manufacturers within a 5 to 10 mile radius of Elk Grove to 
determine their current and projected hiring needs.  The SVMA team will follow up with 
employers by calling them directly to confirm current and projected workforce needs as well as 
reach those companies not responding to the survey. 

Intake and Enrollment of Students  

Step 1 -Orientation 

Individuals interested in participating in CAJ programs are required to attend a CAJ orientation, 
which is held every Wednesday morning except for school holidays. The Lemon Hill Job Center 
staff facilitate the orientation and give a presentation about all programs offered at CAJ, as well 
as inform participants about Job Center services. 

Step 2 -Assessments 

Immediately after the informational orientation presentation, participants are required to take 
either academic assessments or Workkeys assessments. The assessment requirements 
depend upon which program(s) to which the individual intends to seek enrollment. Assessment 
and prerequisite requirements for the manufacturing pre-apprenticeship programs may be 
found in Table 4 in the Strategies To Ensure Skills Development & Employee Retention section 
of the Work Plan. 

Step 3 -Job Center Coach Conference 

After the assessment, the intake process continues with the Job Center coaches meeting 
individually with each participant for one or more sessions to discuss the participant’s interest 
and assessment scores and determine program suitability. Participants are assessed for WIOA 
Title I eligibility and suitability.  

Step 4 -Job Services Pathway Determination 

This proposal presents two pathways for job services: 

1. Basic Career services with the Lemon Hill Job Center and individual job placement and 
follow-up services provided by SVMA. SVMA will track participants placed with a local 



 

19 

 

manufacturer for 90 days after placement and issue placement bonuses to individuals who 
retain the position for 90 days. 
 

2. Individualized Career Services with the Lemon Hill Job Center, including individual job 
placement and follow-up services for a period of one year. The Lemon Hill Job center will 
report to SVMA the placement status of Job Center clients after placement so SVMA can 
issue placement bonuses to individuals who retain the position for 90 days. 
 

3. SVMA and the Lemon Hill Job Center would coordinate services with EGUSD Job Center 
coaches, when required, for program client participants referred to the program. SVMA will 
track participants placed with a local manufacturer for 90 days after placement and issue 
placement bonuses to all participants who retain the position for 90 days. 

All students are eligible for Basic Career Services. However, if the individual is eligible and 
willing to enroll in WIOA Title I, they are assigned a Job Coach and receive Individualized 
Career Services. The outline below gives all participants a general outline of the intake process. 
For more detail on the specifics of Basic Career Services, please see Exhibit 8 in this proposal's 
Supportive Information/References section. 

All Participants 

Basic Career Services: Information-only and Self-service Activities 

I. Welcoming/Engaging the Customer – Basic Career Services- Basic Career services: 
Information-only and Self-service activities  

A. The customer’s first visit may include  
● Orientation/Tour of the Center 
● Completion of the CalJOBS Registration 
● Receipt of a SWAJCC Welcome Packet 
● Assignment of a SWAJCC Card 

 
B. Basic Career services that are self-service or informational-only activities: 

● Welcome MAP (My Action Plan) – Optional 
● Self-Directed Assessments-Skills Assessments 
● Background Wizard-Skills Identification  
● Resume Development and Updating 
● Job Search 
●  Informational Sessions 
●  Labor Market Information 



 

20 

 

In addition to accessing Job Center services on the CAJ campus, non-WIOA Title I Elk Grove 
participants will receive job placement and follow-up services through SVMA and the CAJ 
instructional staff assistance. 

WIOA Title I Participants 

Elk Grove resident participants that are eligible and willing to enroll in WIOA Title I are assigned 
a Job Coach and receive the enhanced Individualized Career Services are summarized in the 
outline below. For more detail on the specifics of the enhanced Individualized Career Services: 
please see Exhibit 9 in the Supportive Information/References section of this proposal. 

Individualized Career Services: WIOA Title I Program Enrollment required  
  

II. Individual and Staff Assisted Career Services 
A. Individualized Career and Training Services 
B.  Preparation for Enrollment 

1. Customer Status Review in CalJOBS 
2. Eligibility 
3. Priority of Service  
4. Self Sufficiency Calculator 

C. Point of WIOA Title I Enrollment  
D. Case Review Team 

Step 5 -Register for CAJ Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program Class  

The final step in the intake process is registering for an eligible course by providing the 
documentation required for enrollment and paying the program fees. Elk Grove Residents that 
participate in the proposed Program will be issued a scholarship voucher as Payment for the 
course, and the City of Elk Grove will be billed for the agreed-upon fee of the courses on a 
quarterly basis by CAJ. Program refund policy and sample scholarship voucher can be found 
as Exhibits 19 & 20 in the Supportive Information/References section of this proposal. 



 

21 

 

Enrollment of Businesses Wishing to Accept Program Graduates  

SVMA will lead a campaign to engage the Elk Grove manufacturing community, the areas 
surrounding Elk Grove, and the region to recruit and maintain a list of companies interested in 
accepting applications for employment for program graduates.  Businesses will be identified 
who are willing to interview graduates for training programs for positions related to the area of 
study.  Each business enrolled will fill out a CAJ Employer Verification form for each respective 
training program.  A sample form may be found as Exhibit 21 in the Supportive Information 
/References section of this proposal. 

Model of Service Delivery 

The CAJ Manufacturing programs have specific start dates that are posted in the CAJ Program 
Catalog. Job Center coaches, SVMA staff, and CAJ Teachers mentor participants and assist 
them through the job search and placement process. Individualized employment plans (IEP) 
for WIOA Title I participants are developed as described above. IEPs for non-WIOA Title I 
participants will be developed by SVMA with teacher input and collaboration. 

CAJ and the Lemon Hill Job Center will provide in-person counseling and classroom instruction 
for the students. Because manufacturing instruction is a very hands-on experience, students 
must participate in person. Elements of employer recruitment, student placement, and follow-
up can and will be done in-person, online, or via telephone. Establishing strong relationships 
with employers is critical to ensuring students’ placement and success. Similarly, following up 
with the students during the initial 90 days following placement will help address challenges 
the students may experience in a new work environment.    

Strategies To Ensure Skills Development & Employee Retention 

Skills Development 

The curriculum framework for the manufacturing pre-apprenticeship programs at CAJ was 
developed around the Society of Manufacturing Engineers (SME) core competency model for 
the Certified Manufacturing Associate (CMfgA) and Certified Manufacturing Technologist 
(CMfgT) programs. The CAJ manufacturing utilizes online instructional materials on SME 
ToolingU in lieu of textbooks. SME ToolingU is an online learning management system that 
includes not only instructional materials, assessment, and progress tracking capability. Much 
of the SME ToolingU curriculum is also aligned with the National Metalworking Skills Institute 
(NIMS) or American Welding Society (AWS) standards to prepare students for certifications 
offered by the organizations. The training and learning materials are reviewed twice annually 
in occupational advisory committee meetings with input from industry partners to ensure skills 
learned are relevant to employment. Some program certifications are also aligned with 
standards established by the Occupational Health and Safety Administration (OSHA) Outreach 



 

22 

 

Training programs such as the 10-Hr. Cal/OSHA General Industry Safety and Health training 
card program and Forklift Operator Certification. See Exhibit 11 in the Supportive 
Information/References section of this proposal for examples of certifications and certificates 
participants have earned at CAJ  

The skills learned in the manufacturing programs are currently being offered through an in-
person and hands-on learning experience. The Cognitive Apprenticeship pedagogy is 
employed in a lab that involves learners working in pairs or small groups, with at least one 
student that has a higher knowledge of the subject matter than their partner(s). Research 
indicates that when the method is successful, there is deeper learning by all participants in 
such groups. The Instructional modality is a combination of classroom instruction, supervised 
computer lab (SME ToolingU or CAD/CAM software), demonstrations, and application of skills 
in manufacturing lab projects. Instructional methods model documentation and processes 
typical in a modern manufacturer, providing students with the opportunity to apply trade skills 
but also learn organizational practices to be expected in a modern manufacturing environment. 
Class sessions are 6-7.5 hours sessions four to five days per week for the duration of the 
course block with a 90% attendance requirement, simulating the demands of working full-time 
in an industrial environment.   

Learning in the Program is assessed through formative and summative methods using 
computer-based testing, simulation exercises, skill demonstration evaluations, applied 
projects, and certification testing. Most of the manufacturing courses incorporate a custom 
series of SME ToolingU learning modules that are aligned with the lab and lecture topics. Each 
of these learning modules requires an assessment test that participants must pass to complete 
the module. An SME ToolingU completion certificate is issued once the student completes the 
series of modules as proof of competency in the subject matter. Students must achieve a score 
of 75% overall mastery to complete the Program successfully. The mastery of individual 
industry certification exams is governed by the accrediting organization and may vary by 
organization but typically range from 70%-80%.   

Course Instruction 

This work plan proposes to offer six options to Elk Grove residents to meet the City of Elk 
Grove’s goal to implement a Workforce Development Certification Program is to train, upskill, 
and place Elk Grove residents who are unemployed or underemployed because of the 
pandemic in growth industries in need of trained workers in the key industry of Manufacturing. 
This proposal offers entry into the new 900-hour Manufacturing Technician Program for the 
Welder Specialty Track or to take one or more of the five Manufacturing Technician component 
blocks as stand-alone courses. The six options are: 

● Forklift Operator Class 
● Material Handling and Logistics 



 

23 

 

● Introduction to Manufacturing (Formerly Titled Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship) 
● Electro-Mechanical Assembly 
● Welding Fabrication I 
● Manufacturing Technician -Welder Specialty Track (13 components of the courses above) 

Please refer to Table 4 below for a summary of the course prerequisites, assessment 
requirements, duration, and certificates earned in each course. Detailed descriptions of each 
course and a diagram of the Manufacturing Technician Program may be found in the 
Supportive Information/References section of this proposal labeled Exhibits 12-18. 

 

Table 4 -Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Courses 

Course Title Prerequisit
e 

Assessmen
t 

Ho
urs 

Certificates 

Single Day Course 

Forklift Operator* None Workkeys 7.5 ● Forklift Operator 
Certification  

Manufacturing short-term 2-3 Week Manufacturing Technician Component Courses 

Material Handling 
& Logistics 

Forklift 
Operator 
Certification for 
Class I &  IV 
vehicles 

CASAS 
Scores: 

Reading: 
239Math: 236 

40 ● SME-ToolingU 
Completion Certificate 

● CAJ Program Completion 
Certificate 

Electro-
Mechanical Assembly 

Introduction 
to Manufacturing 

CASAS 
Scores: 

Reading: 
239Math: 236 

40 ● SME-ToolingU 
Completion Certificate 

● CAJ Program Completion 
Certificate 

Introduction to 
Manufacturing* 

None CASAS 
Scores: 

Reading: 
239Math: 236 

80 ● 10-Hr. Cal/OSHA GI 
Safety & Health Card 

● SME-ToolingU 
Completion Certificate 

● SME CMfgA 
● CAJ Program Completion 

Certificate 

Welding 
Fabrication I 

Introduction 
to Manufacturing 

CASAS 
Scores: 

Reading: 
239Math: 236 

90 ● SME-ToolingU 
Completion Certificate 

● CAJ Program Completion 
Certificate 



 

24 

 

Full 9-Month Manufacturing Technician Program 

Manufacturing 
Technician -Welder 
Tack 

None CASAS 
Scores: 

Reading: 239 
Math: 236 

900 ● Forklift Operator 
Certification  

● 10-Hr. Cal/OSHA GI 
Safety & Health Card 

● SME-ToolingU 
Completion Certificates 

● SME CMfgA & CMfgT 
● CAJ Program Completion 

Certificate 

*Foundational Prerequisite Courses 

 

Postgraduate Job Placement, Tracking, and Payment of Employment 
Bonuses 

Job Placement  

SVMA and the Lemon Hill Job Center will use the combined data/reports to contact employers 
regarding employment opportunities for the Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove 
Residents graduates,  schedule interviews,  secure employment, and follow up with the 
program graduates and the employers to ensure their success. Ensuring program graduates' 
success during the first three months with monthly calls and check-ins is critical, so that they 
pass probation. Thereafter, SVMA & Lemon Hill Job Center staff will follow up on a quarterly 
basis.  

Employee Retention 

Recognizing that Elk Grove residents spend an average of 32.9 minutes traveling to work  (U.S. 
Census QuickFacts), SVMA will focus its employer outreach efforts on those manufacturing 
employers within a 10-mile radius of Elk Grove, including the communities of Elk Grove, South 
Sacramento (Power Inn),  West Sacramento & Rancho Cordova. 

SVMA has a comprehensive database of employers for the 7-county region and subscribes to 
labor market reports from EMSI/Burning Glass which allows SVMA and CAJ to focus on those 
employers actively recruiting within the targeted communities.  

Program Incentives for Elk Grove Residents 

Under the Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove Residents, the graduates will receive 
bonuses from SVMA after passing their employee 90-day probation period. Second,  CAJ and 



 

25 

 

SVMA do not intend to award students stipends or bonuses for program completion only.  There 
is little incentive to find a job if a stipend or bonus is awarded for completion only. Likewise, 
offering a bonus or stipend after one year may be too long to wait to provide incentive if an 
employee can simply go to another employer and make an additional  $1 to $5/hour elsewhere.  
A 90-Day employment bonus captures completion and gives incentive to maintain employment. 
after the initial hire. 

Payment of Employment Bonuses 

Under the City of Sacramento Cares Program, SVMA provided stipends to students after the 
Program, regardless of employment status. In retrospect, SVMA and CAJ determined that 
students at that time appeared less interested in pursuing a manufacturing career than they 
were in obtaining the completion stipend. Given that the County and the country were amid 
COVID-19 and many people had been laid off from work, immediate income was a focus. To 
ensure graduates pursue employment, SVMA and CAJ will implement  bonuses after 90-days 
of employment. 

Past Performance and Planned Outcomes 

Workforce Development Employment & Training Services Program Experience 

CAJ launched the Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program in 2020 with CARES Act funding 
as Workforce Development Certification Program to train, upskill, and place individuals who 
have had their employment disrupted by the pandemic in the manufacturing industry. 
Manufacturing has been identified as a key area of growth in the region. The CAJ 
Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship program is a “boot camp” style of training. In 90 contact 
hours over a few weeks, successful students learn entry-level skills and certifications to prepare 
them for an entry-level position in the manufacturing industry. Successful students earn (1) 
Forklift Operator Certification, (2) 10-hr. Cal/OSHA General Industry Safety and Health Card, 
(3) SME ToolingU Pre-Apprenticeship Certificate, (4) CAJ Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship 
Program Completion Certificate, and (5) are prepared to earn the Society Of Manufacturing 
Engineers (SME) Certified Manufacturing Associate (CMfgA) exam. The Manufacturing Pre-
Apprenticeship Program provides skills for immediate job placement and entry into an industry-
sponsored apprenticeship program and is also a prerequisite for the new Manufacturing 
Technician Program CAJ is launching in the Fall of 2022. 

Key Benchmarks And Outcomes 

To date, CAJ Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program has served 67 individuals, issued 62 
Forklift Operator Certifications, 62 10-hr. OSHA Safety and Health Cards, 49 SME ToolingU 
Pre-Apprenticeship Certificates, and 16 students elected to test and earn SME CMfgA 



 

26 

 

certification. CAJ has also issued an additional 22 Forklift Operator Certifications to individuals 
that elected to take the forklift operator class component of the Program separately.  

Strategy For Monitoring, Measuring Performance, And Outcomes. 

WIOA Title I Participants  

Elk Grove residents enrolling who are determined to be WIOA Title I eligible will be enrolled 
and monitored by the Lemon Hill Job Center staff. The job center staff will provide counseling, 
enrollment, job placement, and monitoring services for qualified students for a period up to one 
year after graduating. Job Center staff will communicate with SVMA staff to ensure that 
bonuses are paid after 90 days and will communicate on a quarterly basis with SVMA regarding 
students’ employment status. 

Non-WIOA Title I Participants  

Elk Grove residents that are not eligible or unwilling to enroll in WIOA Title I will be enrolled as 
any other student at Charles A Jones. However, SVMA staff will be responsible for placing the 
students with the employers, paying the bonus after 90 days, and monitoring their employment 
for a period of one year. 

CAJ staff, SVMA, and Lemon Hill Job Center will provide monthly reports to Angela Hatter, 
outlining our metrics for meeting identified program goals. This will include monthly marketing 
reports, social media reports, candidate interest, enrollment, the status of each class, data 
regarding students to ensure consistent messaging and communication,  employer outreach, 
and student placement with employers.   

Assuming the City of Elk Grove is interested in periodic progress reports, CAJ can provide 
quarterly reports to the Elk Grove staff to ensure that appropriate and timely data is captured 
and reported.  

Staff Capacity 

CAJ employs 32 staff, including three administrators, a school office, a job center, and facilities 
academic and career technical education teachers. Currently, there is one teacher overseeing 
the Regional Manufacturing Training Center. Program expansion would require hiring 
additional manufacturing instructional staff. 

SCUSD Non-Discrimination Policy 

Charles A, Jones Career and Education Center operates under the Sacramento City Unified 
School District, which prohibits discrimination, intimidation, harassment (including sexual 



 

27 

 

harassment), or bullying based on a person’s actual or perceived ancestry, color, disability, 
race, or ethnicity, religion, gender, gender expression, gender identity, immigration status, 
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, or association with a person or group with one or more 
of these actual or perceived characteristics. For questions or complaints, contact Equity 
Compliance Officer and Title IX Coordinator: Stephan Brown – 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento 
CA, 95824; 916.643.9425; stephan-brown@scusd.edu 

Project Expected Timeline  

The timeline below assumes that CAJ has an executed contract with the City of Elk Grove by 
Dec. 31, 2022. CAJ and SVMA will initially focus on the marketing strategy and related items 
such as a dedicated website, collateral materials, and social media targeting Elk Grove 
residents. CAJ hosts a weekly orientation for prospective students, allowing them to begin the 
testing and enrollment process as soon as all paperwork has been completed. The three key 
training programs: forklift certification, pre-apprenticeship training, and the nine-month 
manufacturing technician program, have staggered start dates, as identified below.    

Each class or training program is limited to a maximum of 15 students, allowing multiple 
opportunities for Elk Grove residents to enroll. But none of the cohorts will be exclusive to Elk 
Grove residents.   Because the forklift class is only one (1) day, enrollment in the forklift class 
is the easiest and allows one to begin working immediately, hence the multiple scheduled 
classes. The Introduction To Manufacturing, Material Handling & Logistics, and the Electro-
mechanical Assembly have three (3) scheduled start dates, and Welding Fabrication I has one 
(1) scheduled start date. Each of these courses is a component of the longer Manufacturing 
Technician program offered as stand-alone component classes. Students are welcome to apply 
to transfer to the longer Program and receive credit for the components they have already 
taken. Classes are limited to 15 students based on the student-teacher ratio. The 
manufacturing technician program is a nine-month program, hence CAJ will offer only two (2) 
cohorts of this Program during the period of this proposal. 

CAJ and SVMA propose that the timeline for training students will occur between January 9th, 
2023, & Sep 30, 2024. This will provide the parties with adequate time to place the students 
with the employers, track their progress, provide any follow-up support, disburse the placement 
bonuses after ninety (90) days and prepare a final report to the City of Elk Grove.   

There will be some flexibility in the schedule to add additional short-term classes, depending 
upon interest by the students, and adequate financial support to continue the Program. If CAJ 
finds that program interest and enrollment are high, but grant funds are limited, CAJ will inform 
the City of Elk Grove to determine if additional grant support is available.    

 



 

28 

 

finds that program interest and enrollment are high, but grant funds are limited, CAJ will inform 
the City of Elk Grove to determine if additional grant support is available.    

 

Table 5 -Project Expected Timeline 

Milestone Date Prerequisite 
Milestone/Contingency 

Contract  Executed    Mar 1, 2023 Contract Awarded  

Identify & Outreach to Key CBO 
Partners  

Mar 1, 2023 
Ongoing  

Contract Executed  

Update Manufacturing Cares Website  Mar 1, 2023 
Ongoing  

Marketing Strategy  

In-House Marketing Flyers to CBO’s 
    

Mar 1, 2023 
Ongoing  

Marketing Strategy  

Develop Marketing Plan; Social Media 
Ads Schedule; Professional Marketing 
Flyers; Career Fairs; Other identified  

strategies    

Mar 1, 2023 
Ongoing  

Marketing Strategy  

Start of Instructional Period  Mar 1, 2023    

Weekly Participant Orientation, 
Assessment and Registration  

Mar 1, 2023 – Sep 30, 2024 
Ongoing  Orientation, Assessment and  

Registration for Participating Elk  
Grove Residents  

Forklift Operator Certification Training (1 
Day)  

24 classes offered from   
Mar 1, 2023 – Sep 30, 2024 

Enrolled Elk Grove Residents  

Material Handling & Logistics  3 Cohorts offered Between  
Mar 1, 2023 – Sep 30, 2024 Participant holds valid Forklift  

Operator Certification; Orientation,  
Assessment and Registration  



 

29 

 

Introduction To Manufacturing  3 Cohorts offered Between  
Mar 1, 2023 – Sep 30, 2024 Participant has successfully 

completed Orientation, 
Assessment and Registration  

Electro-Mechanical Assembly class  3 Cohorts offered Between  
Mar 1, 2023 – Sep 30, 2024 Participant has successfully 

completed Introduction to 
Manufacturing; Orientation,  
Assessment and Registration  

Manufacturing Technician -Welder 
Specialty Track Program  

3 Cohorts offered Between  
Mar 1, 2023 – Sep 30, 2024 

Participant has successfully 
completed Orientation, 
Assessment and Registration  

Table 5 -Project Expected Timeline(Cont.)  
  
Welding Fabrication I  

3 Cohorts offered Between  
Mar 1, 2023 – Sep 30, 2024    

  
Participant has successfully 
completed Introduction to 
Manufacturing; Orientation,  
Assessment and Registration  

End of Instruction Period  Sep 30, 2024   

Participant Job Placement activities  Mar 1, 2023 to December 31, 
2024 Placement activities for Elk Grove 

participants who have completed a 
Regional Manufacturing Training 
Center program  

Tracking Participant employment and 
Issuing of Placement Bonuses  

May 2023 to December 2024  Placed with employer - must retain 
position for 90 Days  

Tracking period ends for all participants  
December 31, 2024    

CAJ, Lemon Hill Job Center & SVM draft 
final report to the City of Elk Grove  

January 2025  Final Report generated  

 

  



 

30 

 

Reporting to the City of Elk Grove 
Charles A. Jones will complete the following quarterly reports detailing and summarizing key 
activities and outcomes for the program, including the following elements: 

• Marketing and outreach efforts 
• Number of interested participants and number enrolled 
• Number of graduates and number of participants who successfully secured employment 
• Number of participants who retained employment for 90 days 
• Budget expenditures 

Report format and mode of delivery to be provided to the satisfaction of the City of Elk Grove. 

5. Conflict of Interest Statement  
Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center affirm, to the best of their knowledge, that there 
exists no actual or potential conflict of interest with family, business, or financial interest and 
the services provided under this Proposal. In the event of a change in either private interest or 
services under this Proposal, any question regarding possible conflict of interest which may 
arise as a result of such change will be brought to the attention of the City of Elk Grove in 
writing.  

  
  



 

31 

 

6. Supportive Information/References  

Resumes and Applicable Credentials of Key Staff 

Exhibit 1: Angela Hatter’s Resume 

ANGELA L. HATTER 

(916) 395-5800 Ext. 701011     Angela-Hatter@scusd.edu 

 

EDUCATION: 

Class of 1996   SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY 

M.A. Adult Education 

Class of 1989   UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, LOS ANGELES 

B.A. Sociology/Business Administration 

ADMINISTRATIVE / SUPERVISORY: 

● Supervised K-12 and adult education CTE and academic programs with up to 50 teachers and staff 

● Monitored statewide & local sites and data for operational, WASC & COE accreditation, and FSA compliance 

● Responsible for teacher/staff recruitment, evaluation, training, and discipline – No. and So. California sites 

● Analyzed WIOA, CAEP, Perkins, & other program budgets, from $200K to $6 million per year 

● Collaborate with Parents, Probation, Sheriff, Parole; community partners; employment and social agencies 

● Write course manuals & grants in career technical education, academic and human development areas 

● Managed Criminal, Civil, and Family Law courtrooms and supervised court employees for 4 years 

● Prepared court trial minutes, judgments, verdicts, calendars, reports and legal correspondence 

TEACHER / COUNSELING: 

● Developed program and teacher training materials for Parolee Education and Jail Education curricula 

● Taught Basic Education & High School Diploma/GED courses to students in K-12 and adult settings 



 

32 

 

● Assessed learning needs using CASAS, Evidenced-Based Reading Instruction, SBAC and STAR assessments 

● Managed computer lab daily operations, advertising, student recruitment and enrollment 

● Taught adult ESL and GED courses in California, and English as a Foreign Language in South Korea 

● Facilitated educational workshops - CDE, CASAS, CALPRO, CCAE, CATESOL, OTAN 

● Counseled students on career goals and referred them to appropriate schools and agencies 

● Certified Trainer: Parenting Inside Out, STAR-EBRI, Transitions Skills, Thinking for a Change & Seeking Safety 

● Trained Superior Court employees in Family Law courtroom procedure 

WORK EXPERIENCE: 

11/16 – Present   SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Adult Education Coordinator III / Site Administrator 

1/00 – 11/16    CONTRA COSTA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Principal -7 yrs * Program Coordinator * Mentor Teacher * Educational Consultant 

9/97 – 12/99    HACIENDA LA PUENTE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Computer-Assisted Learning ABE/GED Teacher (HLPUSD-CCCOE program) 

5/96 – 5/97    JOONG ANG FOREIGN LANGUAGE INSTITUTE, South Korea 
English as a Foreign Language Teacher 

4/94 – 12/95    RICHMOND ADULT SCHOOL, Richmond, CA 
Computer-Assisted Learning HS Diploma/GED Teacher 

10/93 – 1/94    LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, Los Angeles, CA 
Instructional Aide (Part-time) 

8/89 – 5/93    LOS ANGELES SUPERIOR COURT, Los Angeles, CA 
Judicial Assistant * Acting Chief Clerk * Family Law Court Clerk Instructor 

COMPUTER SKILLS: 

● Proficient: Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint & Outlook; Adobe Acrobat; Internet. 

● Experienced with information data systems and educational software including: Munis; Escape; Aeries; TOPSpro 

Enterprise; ASAP; AZTEC; Burlington English; Odysseyware; Reading Horizons 

HONORS / CREDENTIALS: 

● Clear Administrative Services Credential 

● Clear Adult Education Designated Subjects Credential – Elementary/Secondary Basic Skills and Social Sciences 

● Graduate Award of Distinguished Achievement in Education and Graduate Scholastic Achievement Award, 1996 



 

33 

 

Exhibit 2: Todd Frazee’s Resume 

Todd Frazee 

Cameron Park   -   408-807-9125   -   Todd-Frazee@scusd.edu 
 
SUMMARY - Over 20 years of manufacturing experience 

- Developed instructional materials for industrial settings including presentations, instructions, multimedia 
tutorials. 

- Developed plans for equipment implementation, processes improvement, training, safety, & quality standards. 
 
COMPUTER - Fluent in M.S. Office Suite & Management tools: Outlook, Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Project & Visio 
SKILLS  - Instructional Systems: Canvas LMS, Adobe Spark, Articulate Storyline 360, PowerDirector 18 
 
CREDENTIALS    Career Technical Education Teaching Credential 210042883    Exp. 4/1/2026 

-Manufacturing and Product Development  
 
  Authorized OSHA Safety and Health Outreach Trainer 

-OSHA General Industry Authorization 34-0080330     Exp. 11/6/2024 
-Cal/OSHA General Industry Authorization 34-0080363    Exp. 11/6/2024 

 
Certified Powered Industrial Truck [Forklift] Operator Trainer    Exp. 10/14/2023 
-Class I-V Industrial Lift Trucks  
  

EDUCATION M.Ed Learning Design and Technology         August  2020 
 Arizona State University, Tempe AZ  
         

B.A. Industrial Arts –Product Development     January 1996 
San Francisco State University, San Francisco, CA 
- Honors: Magna Cum Laude, Golden Key Honor Society, Epsilon Pi Tau  

EXPERIENCE 
Manufacturing Instructor  
Charles A Jones Career and Education Center, Sacramento, CA        October 1, 2020-Present 

Primary Career Technical Education (CTE) instructor for the manufacturing Pre-Appenticeshi[p program. Has provided 
technical training and certification to successful program participants since its launch in the Fall of 2020. Developed 
the Pre-Apprenticeship program and the related nine-month Manufacturing Technician Program which will roll out the 
first pathway to students in the Fall semester of 2022.  
 
Adjunct Assistant Professor/ PEX Contractor    
-Manufacturing and Industrial Technology Dept. (MITECH) 
Folsom Lake College, Folsom, CA          January 2020-Present 

mailto:Todd-Frazee@scusd.edu


 

34 

 

Initially worked for Folsom Lake College (FLC) on contract to develop a new advanced manufacturing program 
curriculum titled Manufacturing and Industrial Technology (MITECH) and act as a subject matter expert for Strong 
Workforce Grant Proposals. The MITECH program involved the curriculum development of a new associate's Degree 
and three certificate programs that required the addition of eleven new courses. Transitioned to an Adjunct Assitant 
Professor position to teach new MITECH course offerings in the Fall of 2021 semester and currently teaching MITEHC 
courses for FLC on a part-time basis. 

Adjunct Professor      
-Advanced Manufacturing Dept (ADVM) & Drafting and Engineering Support Dept. (DES) 
Sierra College, Rocklin, CA             January 2019-June 2021 

As a part-time Adjunct Professor who developed lesson plans and taught advanced manufacturing courses offered by 
Sierra College Advanced Manufacturing Department (ADVM). Collaborated with Sacramento Valley Manufacturing 
Alliance (SVMA) to offer a custom course offering involving five guest co-instructors from SVMA member companies. 
Taught Intermediate level mechanical drafting course for the DES department as well. 
 
Manufacturing Engineering Manager 
Aerometals Inc., El Dorado Hills, CA           September 2012 - September 2018 

Manufacturing Engineering Manager with a cross-functional working relationship with multiple groups including Project 
Engineering, Quality, and Fabrication groups for all product lines. Directly managed Manufacturing Engineering Group focused 
specifically on supporting the manufacture of aircraft parts for U.S. Government contracts. 
 
Manufacturing Engineering Manager 
Schilling Robotics, Shingle Springs, CA                    July 2010 - May 2012 

Managed the Manufacturing Engineering Group at the Shingle Springs Fabrication Facility. Manufacturing Engineering Group 
included CAD/CAM Programmers and Manufacturing Engineers.   

Laboratory Manager 
Eloret Corporation, Sunnyvale, CA (Worksite TSM TPSMP Lab, NASA ARC, Moffett Field, CA)               July 2007- July 2010 

Managed all operations and projects for Eloret Corporation’s presence in the NASA ARC Thermal Protective Systems Materials 
Processing Laboratory. 

President, Owner/Operator 
Cycle Start, Inc., Sunnyvale, CA                August 2000 - July 2007 
 
Founded company in 2000 and built it from the ground up. Cycle Start, Inc. specialized in custom CAD/CAM machining, 
fabrication of prototypes, and short-run production. 

Project Manager, CAD/CAM Programmer 
Contour Inc., Mountain View, CA        August 1995 - August 2000 

Lead teams of technicians to fabricate complicated prototypes. Utilized Pro/Engineer to model client designs, SURFCAM 
CAD/CAM System to CAD/CAM program complicated machined prototypes & casting patterns.   



 

35 

 

Exhibit 3: Todd Frazee’s Credentials 

Career Technical Education Teaching Credential 

  

 

OSHA Authorized General Industry Trainer Card [Federal] 

 

 



 

36 

 

 

OSHA Authorized General Industry Trainer Card, Cal/OSHA [State] 

 

 

 

Powered Industrial Truck Trainer Certification for Class I-VII Vehicles 

 

  



 

37 

 

Exhibit 4: Eileen Ramos-Prince’s Resume 

Eileen Ramos- Prince 

 

I Telephone: (916) 395-5800 Ext. 70-1059 I Email: Eileen-Prince@scusd.edu 

Core Competencies

Execution  
Decision Making 
Effective Communication  
Technical Competence  
Business Acumen 

Team Management Strategy  
Development Risk  
Management Negotiation/Networking  
Excellent Organization 
Task Management  

Solution-Focused Driven  
Maintain Confidentiality  
Financial Accounting Skills 
Contract Management /Compliance

Education 

B.S. Financial Accounting: University of Puerto Rico 
Master -Business Administration: American University of Puerto Rico 
Project Management, Certificate Program: University of California, Berkley 
California State University, Sacramento: Workforce Development Apprenticeship Program 
In Progress: Phoenix University: Social Services (COVID-on HOLD) 
Section 504 Accommodation Plan Development: SCUSD-Student Support & Health Services Department 

Skills & Abilities 

Supervise school front office and job center staff. Manage school and financial records. Collect, compile, interpret, and manage 
data WIOA Title I,II , CAEP and Adult Education Program for state and federal reports; monitor the documentation and timelines 
for all federal and state reports to assure compliance with funding requirements.  

System alignment of social services, job center services, Adult Education, and other partners to ensure services are provided 
for efficiency and ensure all population are receiving required and needed services. Train job center staff and agency partners 
and hold bi-weekly staff meetings, monitor and approve WIOA Title I training scholarships, budgets and supportive services. 
Monitor, prepare and approve WIOA Title II and CAEP budgets and program activities. Responsible for the contractual 
requirements and performance measures are met for the following WIOA Title I Job Center Grant Programs: Adult, Dislocated 
Worker, Out of School Youth, and ELL Workforce Navigator Program. Develop integrated partnerships for a seamless One-Stop 
of incorporate services for the common customers served by multiple program partners of the American Job Center. Implements 
operational policies that reflect an integrated system of performance, communication, and case management, and uses 
technology to achieve integration and expanded service offerings and align where necessary. Attend SETA Job Center 
Supervisor Meetings and Trainings. Develop 504 Accommodation Plans for ESL, ABE, HSE and CTE Students. Capital Adult 
Education Regional Consortium (CAERC) Network of Transition Navigators - SCOE.  

  



 

38 

 

Experience 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adult Education Manager III - Charles A. Jones Career & 
Education Center  

Adult Education Supervisor II - Charles A. Jones Career & Education 
Center 

Education Entrepreneur - Charles A. Jones Career & Education Center  

Management Information Technician - Charles A. Jones Career & 
Education Center 

Technical Specialist - Office of the Superintendent Application  

Specialist II - Assessment, Research & Evaluation 

January 2020 - Present 

March 2018 - December 2019 

July 2010 - March 2018 

July 2009 - June 2010 

October 2004 - June 2009 

July1994- October 2004

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

39 

 

Exhibit 5: Dean Peckham’s Resume 

Dean Peckham 

Sacramento   -   916-508-0892  -  dpeckham@sacvalleymfg.org   

Executive Director 
Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance      (2017 – Present) 
Sacramento, CA 

Executive director and a Founding member of Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance (SVMA). SVMA was 
founded 4.5 years ago and has led the organization’s efforts as a regional leader in developing and supporting 
educational and workforce development partnerships and programs. SVMA is focused on developing 
manufacturing career pathways for youth and adults, with a focus on the equity and inclusion of 
underrepresented populations in the region. 

Leadership: 

● Responsible for implementing SVMA’s strategic objectives. 

● Responsible for day-to-day administrative responsibilities. 

● Development of strategic partnerships. 

● Implemented 2 manufacturing pre-apprenticeship programs (2018 & 2019) in 
collaboration with Sierra College to train 28 individuals for careers as machinists. 

● Managed State of CA CAI grant to train four individuals as CNC journeyman machinists. 

● Four individuals received apprenticeship certification from the U.S. Dept of Labor and the 
C.A. Dept of Apprenticeship Standards. 

● In 2020 successfully lead SVMA’s collaboration with the Charles A Jones Career &amp; 

● Education Center (CAJ) to develop the Regional Manufacturing Training Center (RMTC) 
and the Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program. SVMA members donated over 
$250,000 in equipment to the RMTC. 
 

● Secured and managed a $160,000 SETA RPI grant to development the CAJ RMTC, and 
implement a CNC Machinist Apprenticeship Program. 
 

● Successfully secured and managed a $262,000 grant from the City of Sacramento CARES 
 

● Program to train 62 individuals in the manufacturing pre-apprenticeship program. Grant 
supported, equipment purchase, training, and job placement with area manufacturers. 
 
 

● In 2021 & 2022 SVMA received approval from the U.S. Dept of Labor and the C.A. Dept of Apprenticeship 



 

40 

 

Standards. for the CNC Machinist Apprenticeship program 

Program Consultant 
California Capital          (2017/2018) 
Sacramento, CA 
 
Program consultant to California Capital providing employer outreach and marketing 
supporting various small business programs, including health care, and manufacturing. 
 
Senior Project Manager 
City Of Sacramento, Economic Development Department     (1992 – 2017) 
Sacramento, CA 
 
Prior to leading SVMA Dean served as senior project manager for the City of Sacramento 
Economic Development Dept, overseeing the region’s Enterprise Zone, the conversion of the 
Sacramento Army Depot to the Depot Business Park, City business retention efforts, and the 
City’s local hiring/recruitment manager of qualified construction contractors and employees 
building the Golden 1 Center (Home of the Sacramento Kings Basketball team). 

  



 

41 

 

Project References 

Exhibit 6: Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center 
 
SETA RPI Grant Contact: 
Roy Kim, Deputy Director 
925 Del Paso Blvd 
Sacramento, CA  95815 
roy.kim@seta.net 
916-263-3814 
 
City of Sacramento CARES Grant 
Ms. Kriztina Palone, Workforce Development Manager 
915 I Street 
Sacramento, CA  95814 
kpalone@cityofsacramento.org 
916-808-2260 
 

Exhibit 7: Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance 
 
2018/2019 Pre-Apprenticeship Program 
Amy Schulz -Dean of Business and Technology 
Sierra College 
5100 Sierra College Blvd. 
Rocklin, CA 95677 
(916) 660-7802 
aschulz1 @ sierracollege.edu 
 
2020/2021 CAI Apprenticeship Grant 
Connie Ayala 
Director, American Apprenticeship Initiative 
American River College 
Workforce Development 
Lower Library 
ayac@arc.losrios.edu 
(916) 484-8694 
 

  



 

42 

 

SETA RPI Grant Contact: 
Roy Kim, Deputy Director 
925 Del Paso Blvd 
Sacramento, CA  95815 
roy.kim@seta.net 
916-263-3814 
 
City of Sacramento CARES Grant 
Ms. Kriztina Palone, Workforce Development Manager 
915 I Street 
Sacramento, CA  95814 
kpalone@cityofsacramento.org 
916-808-2260 
 

  



 

43 

 

Detailed Intake Process Outlines 

Exhibit 8: Basic Career Services: Information-only and Self-service 
activities (WIOA Title I enrollment not required) 

I. Welcoming/Engaging the Customer – Basic Career Services- Basic Career services: 
Information-only and Self-service activities (WIOA Title I enrollment not required) 

A. Customer’s first visit may include (In no specific order): 

● Orientation/Tour of the Center 
The orientation/tour will include an explanation of 
available services provided by the SWAJCC system. 

● Completion of the CalJOBS Registration 
Customers may have registered in CalJOBS prior to their initial contact 
with staff. If the registration has not been completed, they will need to 
complete the online CalJOBS Registration Form (WIOA). 

● Receipt of a SWAJCC Welcome Packet 
The Welcome Packet Documents include, at a minimum: 
1. Welcome packet cover sheet 
2.  CalJOBS Registration Form (WIOA) 
3.  Job Seeker’s Code of Conduct 
4.  WIOA Complaint-Grievance Procedures 
5. SWAJCC Authorization for Release of Confidential Information 

The SWAJCC Authorization for Release of Confidential Information form must 
be signed and dated by the customer acknowledging they have received copies 
of: Job Seeker’s Code of Conduct, WIOA Complaint/Grievance Procedures, and 
SWAJCC Authorization for Release of Confidential Information. Staff will scan 
the signed form into the CalJOBS and return the original to the customer. 

● Assignment of a SWAJCC Card 
After registration in CalJOBS a card is assigned to the customer’s account; 
theSWAJCC card facilitates the tracking of services a customer receives. 
 

A replacement card can be issued if the card becomes deactivated or lost.  

B. Basic Career services that are self-service or informational-only activities (In no specific 
order): 

● Welcome MAP (My Action Plan) – Optional 

https://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2021/02/2.-CalJOBS-Registration-Form-WIOA-1.pdf
https://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2021/02/2.-CalJOBS-Registration-Form-WIOA-1.pdf


 

44 

 

Staff should encourage the customer to use the MAP as a self-service tool to identify 
employment/work readiness goals and action steps. 

● Self-Directed Assessments-Skills Assessments 

All customers should be encouraged to complete an initial vocational 
assessment, including literacy, numeracy, and English language proficiency, 
as well as aptitudes and abilities assessments. 

Below is a list of assessments provided by the SWAJCCs: 
○ Quick Guide – A skills-based assessment that measures reading for 

information, locating information, and applied math (This 
assessment is required if accessing Individualized career or Training 
services; not required if the customer possesses a post-secondary 
degree) 

○ CalJOBS Career Assessments (Interest, Skills, and/or Values) 
○ O*Net On-line/My Next Move 
○ Other partner and/or online assessments 

 
● Background Wizard-Skills Identification 

Staff should encourage all customers to complete the Background Wizard. 
The Background Wizard allows the customer to identify skills and abilities 
they possess and auto-populates a portion of the CalJOBS online resume. 
Completion of the Background Wizard will also assist staff with targeted 
employer recruitment. The Background Wizard includes the Online 
Application which can be used by employers searching for potential job 
candidates. If critical information is incomplete or missing in the 
Background Wizard, important employment opportunities may be missed.  

● Resume Development and Updating 

Staff should encourage all customers to complete the online CalJOBS 
resume(s). The CalJOBS resume assists employers with finding appropriate 
candidates. Other resume computer applications, such as WinWay, are 
available. 

● Job Search 

The SWAJCC resource rooms are equipped with computers, internet access, 
job search tools and phones. The customer can use the resource room to 
search for online job vacancies, to apply for open job positions, to create 
resumes, to communicate with potential employers, and to connect to 
community resources. 



 

45 

 

●  Informational Sessions 

Information-only services provide information that does not require an 
assessment of the individual’s skills, education or career objective by 
staff.Staff should encourage all customers to attend information-only 
sessions such as, orientation, interview, resume, labor market Information, 
assessment tools,employer overviews, and navigating CalJOBS. 

●  Labor Market Information 

Information on how to assist the customer in targeting and identifying jobs 
with their current skills and/or required skills and education that are in 
demand in the local area. 

  



 

46 

 

Exhibit 9: Individualized Career services: WIOA Title I Program Enrollment 
required  

  

II. Individual and Staff Assisted Career Services 

If Customers need assistance beyond self-directed and information only services to 
help them gain employment at any point along their career pathway, the following 
services can be provided: 
● Comprehensive/Specialized Assessments and Testing 
● Career Counseling 
● Individual Counseling 
● Individual Employment Plan 
● Financial Literacy 
● Short-term Pre-vocational Services 
● English as Second Language (ESL) Assistance 
● Referral to Targeted Partner Services/Community Resources 
● GED Preparation Assistance 
● Entrepreneurial Guidance 
● Small Business Assistance 
● Workshops 
● Interview Preparation and Mock Interviews 
● Resume Development 
● Soft Skills Counseling and/or Workshops 
● Peer Group Workshops 
● Supportive Services 
● Ticket to Work- Ticket to Work Enrollment and Orientation Process (WDD16-4) 
 

A. Individualized Career and Training Services 

Customers who demonstrate a need for services leading to employment beyond Basic 
Career services may be enrolled in Individualized Career and/or Training services. 
● To determine suitability for enrollment, the following indicators can help identify the 

customer’s 
● commitment to the enrollment plan: 
● Customer is unemployed or underemployed 
● Customer has consistently attended self-service activities 
● Customer has expressed the need for career guidance 
● Customer has expressed the need for additional assistance for employment preparation 
● Customer has inquired about skill development/training needed to obtain employment  

B.  Preparation for Enrollment 

http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2012/07/Ticket-To-Work-Enrollment-and-Orientation-Process-WDD16-4.pdf
http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2012/07/Ticket-To-Work-Enrollment-and-Orientation-Process-WDD16-4.pdf


 

47 

 

1. Customer Status Review in CalJOBS 

Before moving forward with a new enrollment, staff must review the customer’s record 
in CalJOBS (which could include past and current enrollments, case notes and activities). 
If a customer has received prior services, every effort should be made to contact prior 
staff, including other Local Workforce Development Area (LWDA) staff before initiating 
any individualized services. 

2. Eligibility 

The coach must verify and record eligibility for the categories below: 
● Right-to-work documents (See Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification) 
●  Age/birthdate 
● Selective service registration (if applicable) 
● If applicable, Dislocated Worker verification (Dislocated Worker Worksheet) All 

documents must be scanned into CalJOBS.  

For additional information see the Eligibility or Demographic Data 
Collection and Criteria (I.S. 22-09).  

3. Priority of Service  

Veterans and eligible spouses continue to receive priority of service among all 
eligible individuals; however, they must meet the WIOA adult program 
eligibility criteria and meet the criteria under WIOA Section 134(c)(3)(E). 

As required under WIOA Section 134(c)(3)(E), with respect to Individualized Career 
and Training Services,priority of service must be given to recipients of public 
assistance, other low-income 
individuals, individuals who are basic skills deficient and other individuals in 
accordance with the Priority of Service Policy. Priority of service status is 
established at the time of eligibility determination and does not change during 
the period of enrollment. Priority does not apply to the dislocated worker 
population, with the exception of Veterans. Veterans and eligible spouses 
continue to receive priority of service among all eligible individuals; however, 
they must meet the WIOA Adult program eligibility criteria.  

4. Self Sufficiency Calculator 

An individual who meets the eligibility requirements specified above may 
participate in the WIOA Adult program. The Sacramento Works Board has 
approved the use of the Self-Sufficiency Calculator to determine priority of 
service, and the need for WIOA-funded training and supportive services, but it 
is no longer a condition of eligibility. In addition, income is an important 



 

48 

 

factor in determining suitability for services, and staff must refer students to 
the website below before enrolling adult customers.:  

https://insightcced.org/tools-metrics/self-sufficiency-standard-tool-for-
california/  

  
C. Point of WIOA Title I Enrollment  

CalJOBS Registration Addendum Form (WIOA)  
The Addendum must be completed, signed and dated upon enrollment.  

Staff signature will verify review of the Addendum for completeness and accuracy. 
Staff will scan all pages of the Addendum into the customer’s Documents folder in 
CalJOBS.  

One-on-One Comprehensive Assessment and Basic Skills Assessment 

Customers needing staff assisted services must complete, at a minimum, a one-on-one 
comprehensive assessment and a basic skills assessment. 

One-on-One Comprehensive Assessment (required beyond basic services) 

The coach will conduct a one-on-one comprehensive assessment to review the 
customer’s strengths and barriers to employment. This will assist in developing an 
Individual Employment Plan (IEP) that includes short-term and long-term goals 
with an emphasis on developing a career pathway. Career pathways are small 
groups of occupations within a career cluster and coordination of education, 
training and/or other services that help individuals advance within an industry or 
occupation. Occupations within a pathway share common skills, knowledge, and 
interests that can lead to occupational advancements within the career cluster. 
The coach should also connect customers to WIOA Partner and/or Community 
Resources not provided by the SWAJCC. 

Basic Skills Assessment–(required for enrollment) 

The basic skills assessment should measure key skills, such as basic reading and 
math skills. Though it is encouraged that the Quick Guide be used to measure key 
workforce skills, such as, reading for information, locating information, and applied 
math, other recognized assessments can be used. A Basic Skills Assessment is not 
required if customers possess a post-secondary degree.  

Development of the Individual Employment Plan (IEP) (required for enrollment)  



 

49 

 

The information obtained from the comprehensive assessments will assist the 
coach in the development and implementation of the Individual Employment Plan 
for a customer entering into Individualized Career and/or Training Services.  

The IEP typically includes the following: 

● Identification of personal or pre-employment strengths and assets 

● Identification of barriers to employment, which need to be addressed prior to 
the start of skill development or job search.  

● Background Wizard/Skills Review- Before services begin, the customer will 
start the Background Wizard in CalJOBS. The Coach will verify the Background 
Wizard is up-to-date and complete within a month of the customer’s 
enrollment date.  

● For the approval of Training assistance, coaches must verify the Background 
Wizard is complete and up-to-date.  

Customers enrolled into Work Preparedness programs (e.g. ABE/GED, 
ESL/VESL, and/or Job Readiness) will complete the Background Wizard during 
or after completion of the training program and are not required to complete 
the Background Wizard at time of enrollment. A case note should be included 
that justifies why the Background Wizard was not completed at time of 
enrollment. 

  

● Determine the objectives and supporting goals with the associated timeframes 
in meeting each goal successfully. 

● Determine partner resources and coordination of those resources to help meet the 
customer’s planned goals. 

● Determine customer suitability for individualized career services; may include 
training (job readiness training, vocational, career pathways training, and/or 
OJT) and/or supportive services.  

D. Case Review Team 

The Case Review Team (CRT) approval process must be used prior to the 
expenditure of any funds. The CRT- Scholarship-Tuition Approval Form will be 
completed and signed to reflect: approval or denial, or Not at this Time for 
training. Additionally, the CRT-Supportive Services and Incentives Request and 
Approval Form will be completed and signed to reflect the need for Supportive 
Services according to the customer’s planned activities. 

http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2016/09/Individual-Employment-Plan-IEP.docx
http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2016/09/Individual-Employment-Plan-IEP.docx
http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2016/09/CRT-Scholarship-Tuition-Approval-Form.doc
http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2016/09/CRT-Support-Services-and-Incentives-Request-and-Approval-Form.doc
http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2016/09/CRT-Support-Services-and-Incentives-Request-and-Approval-Form.doc
http://www.seta.net/app/uploads/2016/09/CRT-Support-Services-and-Incentives-Request-and-Approval-Form.doc


 

50 

 

The CRT may consist of a supervisor(s), partner(s), coordinator(s), coach(s), and 
if necessary, the customer needing services. At a minimum, the CRT should 
consist of a supervisor and a coach. CRTs may also be used for enrollment 
and/or exit at the supervisor’s discretion 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

51 

 

Overview Of The Region’s Manufacturing Sector 

Exhibit 10: North Advanced Manufacturing 

 



 

52 

 

 



 

53 

 

 



 

54 

 

 



 

55 

 

 



 

56 

 

 



 

57 

 

 



 

58 

 

 



 

59 

 

 

 

 

 



 

60 

 

Illustrative Exhibits 

Exhibit 11: Certifications and Certificates Issued by CAJ Programs 

Certified Manufacturing Associate Certificate (CMfgA) issued by SME 

 

Forklift Operator Certification Card Issued by CAJ Certified Trainer 

 



 

61 

 

Forklift Operator Certification Certificate Issued by CAJ Certified Trainer 

 

 

SME ToolingU Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Completion Certificate 

 



 

62 

 

10-Hr. Cal/OSHA General Industry Safety and Health Card Issued by UCSD OTI 

 

 
  



 

63 

 

CAJ Manufacturing Training Program Descriptions 

Exhibit 12: Manufacturing Technician Program Description: 

TOTAL HOURS: 900  

This Program prepares the student with the principles and technical skills for manufacturing 
products. The core competencies related to industrial processes covered in this Program are 
rooted in California/Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA), Society of 
Manufacturing Engineers (SME), National Institute of Metalworking Standards (NIMS), and 
American Welding Society (AWS) standards. The training contains fundamental knowledge of 
manufacturing processes, including troubleshooting manufacturing problems through hands-
on experiential learning. After completing the training, students will have the knowledge and 
technical competency for entry-level employment in the manufacturing industry, trade 
apprenticeships, and industry-standard certifications. The students who complete the Program 
will have the foundational skills to prepare them for entry-level manufacturing technician roles 
in welding, assembly, machining, quality, and material handling. 

 

 

 

 



 

64 

 

Exhibit 13: Manufacturing Technician Program Structure: 

 

 

  



 

65 

 

Exhibit 14: Forklift Operator Course Description: 

TOTAL HOURS: 7.5  

The Forklift Operator class, a component of the Manufacturing Technician Program, 
consists of 3 hours of classroom instruction and 4.5 hours of practical exercises on both electric 
and internal combustion engine forklifts. This training satisfies the state and federal 
requirements to operate forklifts and is valid for three years. Participants that successfully pass 
the written exam and obstacle course exercises will receive a training certificate and wallet card 
to operate Class I, IV & V sit-down style counterbalance industrial lift trucks and Class III walk 
behind powered pallet jacks. Participants must wear closed-toed shoes that cover the entire 
foot with a slip-resistant sole. It is recommended to dress in clothing appropriate for climbing 
on equipment and changing seasonal weather for the outdoor practical exercises. 

Exhibit 15: Material Handling and Logistics Course Description: 

TOTAL HOURS: 40 

The Material Handling and Logistics class is a component of the Manufacturing Technician 
Program. This Program prepares the student with the principles and technical skills to work in 
material handling and logistics in a manufacturing operation. The training contains fundamental 
knowledge of material handling and logistics principles, including an overview of manufacturing 
operations flow and essential functions of inventory systems, such as receiving, Work In 
Progress (WIP), finished goods, and shipping transactions. Material handling activities included 
forklift, packaging, physical inventory, lifting, and tool room management through hands-on 
learning in the manufacturing training lab. This Program's core competencies are based on 
industry practices, California/Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA), and 
Society of Manufacturing Engineers (SME) standards. The students who complete the Program 
will have the foundational skills to prepare them for an entry-level role in material handling. 
Current operator training certification for Class I & IV forklifts is required for this class. 

Exhibit 16: Introduction to Manufacturing Course Description: 

TOTAL HOURS: 80  

The Introduction to Manufacturing class is a component of the Manufacturing Technician 
Program and a prerequisite for three program pathways: Welder, Machinist, and Manufacturing 
Engineering Technician. The course consists of 80 hours of classroom and practical exercises 
touching on various manufacturing topics, including safety, blueprint reading, tool identification, 
and an overview manufacturing process. The training covers fundamental knowledge and skills 
through classroom lectures and hands-on activities in the manufacturing lab. Successful 
students earn industry-recognized training certificates through California/Occupational Safety 
and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA) and the Society of Manufacturing Engineers (SME). The 
students who complete the Program will gain foundational skills to prepare them for entry-level 
roles in manufacturing companies in welding, assembly, machining, quality, and material 
handling. 



 

66 

 

Exhibit 17: Electro-Mechanical Assembly Course Description: 

TOTAL HOURS: 40  

The Electro-Mechanical Assembly class is a component of the Manufacturing Technician 
Program. The training contains fundamental knowledge of assembly processes, including 
identifying and applying essential hand tools techniques, safe operation presses, engraving 
machines, and in-process and final inspection techniques. Identification and application of 
mechanical assembly hardware such as threaded and non-threaded fasteners and mechanical 
components will be covered in the class. Students will perform pressing interference fit 
hardware and learn the basics of lubricants, adhesives, sealants, and thread locking 
compounds. Students will also learn the safe operation of soldering and heat shrinking and 
crimping equipment. In the lab, students build wiring harnesses and test the continuity of 
constructed projects by interpreting engineering drawings and specifications. After completing 
the training, students will have the knowledge and technical competency for entry-level 
employment in the manufacturing industry, trade apprenticeships, and industry-standard 
certifications through further study. The students who complete the Program will have the 
foundational skills to prepare them for entry-level assembly technician roles. The Introduction 
to Manufacturing or Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship is prerequisites classes for this course. 

Exhibit 18: Welding Fabrication I Course Description: 

TOTAL HOURS: 90  

The Welding Fabrication I class is a component of the Manufacturing Technician Program and 
a specialty track unit for two program pathways: Welder and Manufacturing Engineering 
Technician. This Program prepares students with the principles and technical skills to 
manufacture welded components. The core competencies related to industrial processes 
covered in this class are rooted in American Welding Society (AWS) standards. The training 
contains fundamental knowledge of welding processes, including identifying and applying 
essential hand tools and deburring techniques, welding processes, welding safety procedures, 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), set-up and layout, and fixture techniques. The course 
covers the safe operation of oxy/fuel torches, arc welding, and plasma cutting by constructing 
projects from engineering drawings in the manufacturing lab. Students will also learn the safe 
operation of essential weld preparation tools such as handheld grinders and abrasive saws. 
After completing the training, students will have the knowledge and technical competency for 
entry-level employment in the manufacturing industry, trade apprenticeships, and industry-
standard certifications through further study. The students who complete the Program will have 
the foundational skills to prepare them for entry-level manufacturing technician roles in welding. 
The Introduction to Manufacturing or Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship is prerequisite classes 
for this course. 



 

67 

 

CAJ Refund Policy 

Exhibit 19: CAJ Refund Policy 

 
 



 

68 

 

CAJ Student Enrollment 

Exhibit 20: Program Student Enrollment Voucher 

 
  



 

69 

 

Program Business Enrollment 

Exhibit 21: CAJ Employer Verification Form 

 
  



 

70 

 

7. Budget And Fees  
The total proposed budget for the Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove residents is 
$304,262. A summary of the budget can be found in Table 6, Aggregate Proposed Program 
Fees.   Table 7 provides a detailed breakdown of the Proposed Training Scholarship and 
Placement Bonuses to be paid to program graduates 90 days after the students have been 
placed with an employer and successfully passed their probation period.Table 8 is the 
proposed Schedule of Expense Payments for the services provided to the City of Elk Grove 
City for this proposal. Refund policy for students also may be found as Exhibit 19 in the 
Supportive Information/References section. 

The budget for training and scholarships assumes up to 50 students enroll in forklift training, 
20 enroll in each of the modular component courses, and 10 students enroll in the 
manufacturing technician training program. The budget does propose adding two part-time staff 
to serve as a forklift instructor and welding instructor. This enables the CAJ lead instructor, 
Todd Frazee, to focus on teaching more of the modular classes and the initial cohorts of the 
manufacturing technician program. CAJ and SVMA propose that there be some flexibility in the 
budget for training and scholarships, depending on students’ interests.   

SVMA will be responsible for administering the placement bonuses and transportation 
stipends. 

SCUSD's Indirect Costs of $10,346 cover SCUSD overhead costs for the operation and 
maintenance of facilities. This is a standard fee associated with any contract for the use of 
school district facilities.  

  



 

71 

 

 

Table 6 -Aggregate Proposed Program Fees 

Description Qty. Price Each Total 

Training Scholarships  
  
Cost for student by Program for scholarship:  
  
Forklift = 50 @ $165/each student  
  
Introduction to Manufacturing; Material Handling  
and Logistics; Electro-Mechanical Assembly = 

20  
@$600 each  
   
Welding Fabrication I = 10 @$1,360/each  
  
Manufacturing Technician = 10 @ $6,760/each  

*  *  $101,450
.00  

Placement Bonuses  

Cost for students by Program for Placement 
Bonus:  

  
Forklift = 50 @ $200/each student  
  
Introduction to Manufacturing; Material Handling 

and Logistics; Electro-Mechanical Assembly = 20  
@ $300/each  
   
Welding Fabrication I = 10 @$450/each  
  
Manufacturing Technician = 10 @$1,500/each  

*  *  $35,500.
00  

Welding Instructor  945 
Hrs.  

$44.42/hr.  $41,976.
90  

Forklift Instructor (and/or supplemental hours for 
CAJ Instructor to offer additional forklift classes)  

450 
Hrs.  

$44.42/hr.  $19,989.
00  

 
Table 6 -Aggregate Proposed Program Fees (Cont.)  

 Marketing  

  

Flat 
Fee  

  

$25,000.00  

  

$25,000.
00  



 

72 

 

SVMA   

● Executive Director  
● Admin Support to the Executive Director 
● Accounting Support to manage bonuses & 

subcontracts  
● Transportation Stipends**  

o 9-month passes = 10 @ $900/ea.  
o 1-month passes = 30 @ $100/ea.  

   
Subtotal  

  
600 

Hours   
1000 

Hours   
60 

Hours  
  
  

            
$45.00/hr.  
$25.00/hr.  

 $100.00/hr.  

  
$27,000.

00  
 

$25,000.00  
 $ 

6,000.00  
  
 
 
  

$12,000.
00  

  
$70,000.00  

Sub Total  $293,915
.90  

SCUSD Indirect Costs   3.52%  $10,345.
84  

Total Project Fee  $304,261
.74  

*See Table 7 for a proposed breakdown of student fees.  

**  Transportation stipend estimated by the cost of Adult Monthly Rapid Transit Passes @$100/month. If 
preferred, gas cards will be issued in the equivalent amount per student per program.  

 

  



 

73 

 

Table 7 -Proposed Training Scholarship and Placement Bonuses 
 

Description Up To Qty. Price Each Total 

Manufacturing Technician- Scholarship  10 $6,760.00  $67,600.
00  

Manufacturing Technician - Placement Bonus  10 $1,500.00  $15,000.
00  

Transportation Stipend: Based on $100/month @ 9 
months - Elk Grove Bus Pass (Gas card provided, if 
preferred) = $900 / each student  

10 $900.00  $9000.00  

Manufacturing Technician: Combined costs per 
student:  $ 9150.00  

      

 

Welding Fabrication I - Scholarship  10  $1360.00  $13,600.
00  

Welding Fabrication I – Placement Bonus  10  $450.00  $4,500.0
0  

Transportation Stipend: Based on $100/month @ 1 
month - Elk Grove Bus Pass (Gas card provided, if 
preferred) = $100 / each student  

10  $100.00  $1,000.0
0  

Welding Fabrication I: Combined costs per student:  
$1910.00   

      

 

Component Course – Scholarship per course  
Introduction to Manufacturing; Material 
Handling and Logistics; or Electro-
Mechanical Assembly  

20  $600.00  $12,000.
00  

Component Course – Placement Bonus  20  $300.00  $6,000.0
0  

Transportation Stipend: Based on $100/months = 
$100 @ 1 month - Elk Grove Bus Pass (Gas card 
provided, if preferred) = $100 / each student  

20  $100.00  $2,000.0
0  

Component Courses: Introduction to  
Manufacturing; Material Handling and Logistics; or  
Electro-Mechanical Assembly   
  
Combined costs per student:  $1,000.00  

      



74 

Table 8 -Schedule of Expense Payments ‐ Elk Grove City Grant 
Monthly Payments for Student Enrollment ‐ Amounts will vary based on the Full Cost of Enrollment 

SVMA Dir $27,000.00 
SVMA Accountant $6,000.00 
CAJ Personnel $61,965.90 

$94,965.90 

SVMA Admin Support $25,000.00 

Marketing $25,000.00 

$50,000.00 

Transportation $12,000.00 

Placement Bonus $35,500.00 

$47,500.00 
Indirect ‐ Final month billing $10,345.84 

Quarter 1 $15,827.65  1/6 CAJ/SVMA Personnel (Except Admin.) 

$12,500.00 Marketing ‐ first half 
$12,500.00 1/2 of Full Amount SVMA Admin Personnel 
$11,875.00 1/4 Transportation and Placement Bonuses 

1st Payment (March 2023) $52,702.65 

Quarter 2 $15,827.65 1/6 CAJ/SVMA Personnel (Except Admin) 

$11,875.00 1/4 Transportation and Placement Bonuses 
2nd Payment (June 2023) $27,702.65 

Quarter 3 $15,827.65 1/6 CAJ/SVMA Personnel (Except Admin) 

$11,875.00 1/4 Transportation and Placement Bonuses 
$12,500.00 1/2 of Full Amount of SVMA Admin 
$12,500.00 Marketing ‐ second half 

3rd Payment (September 2023) $52,702.65 

Quarter 4 $15,827.65 1/6 CAJ/SVMA Personnel (Except Admin) 

$11,875.00 Last Transportation and Placement Bonuses 
payment 

4th Payment (November 2023) $27,702.65 

Quarter 5 ‐ 5th Payment $15,827.65 1/6 CAJ/SVMA Personnel (Except Admin) 

Quarter 6 Final Payment $15,827.65 1/6 CAJ/SVMA Personnel (Except Admin) 
indirect Will vary based on Final Enrollment 



 

75 

 

 

8. Secretary of State  
Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center acknowledges and understands that as a 
Service Provider, we must be registered and in good standing with the California Secretary of 
State within 14 days following notification of the City’s intent to award a contract. We further 
acknowledge and understand that failure to timely register with the Secretary of State may 
result in the City awarding the contract to another Service Provider. 

 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

14 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Schedule of Performance 

 

Service Provider shall deliver services to the City as outlined in the Scope of Work. City anticipates the 

assignment will require approximately twenty-four (24) months to complete following issuance of a 

Notice to Proceed. 

 

Task 1: Program design and development – estimated completion to occur approximately 1 month after 

Notice to Proceed. 

 

Task 2: Program marketing to residents and businesses – ongoing and estimated completion to occur 

approximately 18 months after Notice to Proceed. 

 

Task 3: Intake and enrollment of students – ongoing and estimated completion to occur approximately 

18 months after Notice to Proceed. 

 

Task 4: Enrollment of businesses wishing to accept Program graduates – ongoing and estimated 

completion to occur approximately 18 months after Notice to Proceed.  

 

Task 5: Course instruction – ongoing and estimated completion to occur approximately 18 months after 

Notice to Proceed. 

 

Task 6: Post-graduate, tracking, and payment of employment bonuses – ongoing and estimated 

completion to occur approximately 24 months after Notice to Proceed.  

 

Task 7:  Reporting to City – on going and estimated completion to occur approximately 24 months after 

Notice to Proceed. 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

15 

EXHIBIT C 

Compensation and Method of Payment 

City will pay Provider according to the below schedule: 

 

Services Fees: 

City will pay provider a total fee not-to-exceed $304,261.74. This fee includes all expenses associated 

with designing and implementing the Program including all Service Provider overhead, profit, and 

administrative costs, labor, student tuition and supplies, and job placement bonuses. 

Manner of Payment: 

Service Provider will issue a combination of monthly and quarterly invoices to the City. 

 

Monthly invoices will vary and be based on the number of enrolled students in the Program for a total 

amount not to exceed $101,450. Invoices shall be accompanied by a detailed report of enrollment. 
Training Courses Max Quantity Price Each Max Amount 

Forklift Certification 50 $165 $8,250 

Intro to Manufacturing; Material 

Handling and Logistics; Electro-

Mechanical Assembly 

20 $600 $12,000 

Welding Fabrication I 10 $1,360 $13,600 

Manufacturing Technician – 

Welder Track 

10 $6,760 $67,600 

Total 120  $101,450 

 

Quarterly invoices will be based on fixed amounts as determined in the schedule below for a total not-

to-exceed amount of $202,811.74. Invoices shall be accompanied by a detailed report of Program 

activities completed to date. 
Quarter Amount Associated Costs 

1 (March 2023) $52,702.65 Program design, implementation, and administration costs 

2 (June 2023) $27,702.65 Program design, implementation, and administration costs 

3 (September 2023) $52,702.65 Program design, implementation, and administration costs 

4 (January 2024)  $27,702.65 Program design, implementation, and administration costs  

5 (April 2024) $15,827.65 Program design, implementation, and administration costs 

6 (August 2024) $26,173.49 Program design, implementation, and administration costs 

Total $202,811.74  

 

The total of all invoices will not exceed the maximum amount of $304,261.74. The City will pay 

invoices within 30 days of receipt provided all work is completed to the City’s satisfaction. 

 

Under no circumstances shall the aggregate amount paid under this Contract exceed the amount 

specified in Section 4A above and if the Contract is approved by the City Manager, all compensation 

paid to Service Provider each year shall meet the cost limitation set forth in City of Elk Grove Municipal 

Code Chapter 3.42. 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

16 

EXHIBIT D 

Insurance Requirements 

 

Prior to commencement of any work under this Contract, Service Provider shall provide to the City 

proof of, and maintain in full force and effect at all times during the term of the Contract, at its sole cost 

and expense, policies of insurance as set forth herein. Service Provider shall comply with all reporting 

and other provisions of the policies of insurance as set forth herein including, but not limited to, timely 

reporting of claims and suits, and fulfillment of self-insured retentions. 

 

1. General Liability: 

a. Comprehensive general liability insurance including, but not limited to, protection for 

claims of bodily injury and property damage liability. 

b. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General 

Liability coverage form CG 0001 (occurrence). 

c. Claims-made coverage is not acceptable. 

d. The limits of liability shall not be less than: 

Each occurrence:   One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 

Personal & Advertising Injury: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 

Aggregate:    One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 

e. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its officials, 

employees, agents, and authorized volunteers for losses arising from work performed by 

the Service Provider. 

 

2. Worker's Compensation 

a. Worker's Compensation Insurance, with coverage as required by the State of California 

(unless the Service Provider is a qualified self-insurer with the State of California), and 

Employers Liability coverage.  The Service Provider shall execute a certificate in 

compliance with Labor Code Section 1861, on the form provided in Exhibit E. 

b. Employer’s Liability Coverage shall not be less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). 

c. If an injury occurs to any employee of the Service Provider for which the employee or the 

employee’s dependents, in the event of the employee’s death, may be entitled to 

compensation from the City under the provisions of the Acts, for which compensation is 

claimed from the City, there will be retained out of the sums due the Service Provider 

under this Contract, an amount sufficient to cover such compensation as fixed by the 

Acts, until such compensation is paid or it is determined that no compensation is due.  If 

the City is required to pay such compensation, the amount so paid will be deducted and 

retained from such sums due, or to become due to the Service Provider.   



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17 

d. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its officials, 

employees, agents, and authorized volunteers for losses arising from work performed by 

the Service Provider. 

 

3. Errors and Omissions; Malpractice; Professional Liability.  Errors and omissions, malpractice, or 

professional liability insurance with coverage of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 

per occurrence or per claim.  Both occurrence or claims-made policies are acceptable. Upon 

termination of this Contract, the same insurance requirements in Section 3 of this Exhibit will 

apply for a one (1) year period following such termination. A “tail” policy may be purchased as 

an alternative to satisfy this requirement. 

 

4. Other Insurance Provisions: The general liability coverage shall contain the following provisions 

and endorsements: 

a. The City, its officials, employees, agents and authorized volunteers shall be covered and 

specifically named as additional insured as respects liability arising out of activities 

performed by or on behalf of the Service Provider, products and completed operations of 

the Service Provider, premises owned, occupied, or used by the Service Provider, or 

automobiles leased, hired, or borrowed by the Service Provider on a separate 

endorsement acceptable to the City. 

b. The policy shall contain no special limitations on the scope of coverage afforded to the 

City, its officials, employees, agents, or authorized volunteers. 

c. Provision or endorsement stating that for any claims related to this contract, the Service 

Provider’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its 

officials, employees, agents, and authorized volunteers to the extent the City is an 

additional insured.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officials, 

employees, agents, or authorized volunteers shall be in excess of the Service Provider’s 

insurance and shall not contribute with it, to the payment or satisfaction of any defense 

expenses, loss or judgment. 

 

5. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less 

than A:VII. 

 

6. Any deductibles, aggregate limits, pending claims or lawsuits that may diminish the aggregate 

limits, or self-insured retention(s), must be declared to, and approved by, the City. 

 

7. The Service Provider shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and original 

endorsements or insurance binders, signed by a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage 

on its behalf, evidencing the coverage required by this Contract.  At the written request of the 

City, Service Provider agrees to furnish a duplicate original or certified copy of each required 

policy including the declaration pages, conditions, provisions, endorsements, and exclusions.  



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

18 

 

8. The City, due to unforeseen risk or exhaustion, failure, or dilution of Service Provider’s 

insurance coverage, at its discretion, may increase the amounts and types of insurance coverage 

required hereunder at any time during the term of the contract by giving 30 days written notice. 

 

9. The Service Provider shall serve the City notice, in writing by certified mail, within 2 days of 

any notices received from any insurance carriers providing insurance coverage under this 

Agreement that concern the suspension, voidance, cancellation, termination, reduction in 

coverage or limits, non-renewal, or material changes of coverage proposed or otherwise. 

 

10. If the Service Provider fails to procure or maintain insurance as required by this section, and any 

Supplementary Conditions, or fails to furnish the City with proof of such insurance, the City, at 

its discretion, may procure any or all such insurance. Premiums for such insurance procured by 

the City shall be deducted and retained from any sums due the Service Provider under the 

contract. 

 

11. Failure of the City to obtain such insurance shall in no way relieve the Service Provider from any 

of its responsibilities under the contract. 

 

12. The making of progress payments to the Service Provider shall not be construed as relieving the 

Service Provider or its Sub-Consultants or agents of responsibility for loss or direct physical loss, 

damage, or destruction occurring prior to final acceptance by the City. 

 

13. The failure of the City to enforce in a timely manner any of the provisions of this section shall 

not act as a waiver to enforcement of any of these provisions at any time during the term of the 

contract. 

 

14. The requirement as to types, limits, and the City’s approval of insurance coverage to be 

maintained by Service Provider are not intended to, and shall not in any manner, limit or qualify 

the liabilities and obligations assumed by Service Provider under the Contract.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Elk Grove  

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Re: Workforce Development – Manufacturing Program 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

19 

EXHIBIT E 

 

Certificate of Compliance With Labor Code § 3700, Release and Indemnification 

The undersigned, on behalf of and as the duly certified representative of Service Provider, certifies as 

follows: 

1. Service Provider is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 

every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-

insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and Service Provider has complied or 

will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this 

contract.  (Cal. Labor Code §§1860, 1861.) 

2. Should Service Provider fail to secure Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the State 

of California, Service Provider shall release, hold harmless, defend and indemnify City of Elk 

Grove from and against any damage, liability, claim, cause of action and any other loss, 

including without limitation, court costs, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs resulting from any 

failure to take and/or maintain Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by law. The 

provisions of this Exhibit shall survive termination, suspension and/or completion of this 

Contract.  It is further understood and agreed that this release and assumption of risk is to be 

binding on Service Provider’s successors, heirs and assigns. 

 

SERVICE PROVIDER 

 

By: _______________________________ 

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

Name: ____________________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT FOR  
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Independent Contractor Services ("Amendment") is entered into 
between the Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and Kami Kalay ("Kalay") (collectively the 
"Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Independent Contractor Services originally entered to on June 
10, 2022. 

 
1. Extension of Term of the Agreement: This Amendment shall extend the current Kalay staffing 

on the Project from June 10, 2022 to June 30, 2023; 
 

2. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Kalay for the current staffing on 
the Project until June 30, 2023, and will pay for the increased services from and after January 19, 2023, on a 
not to exceed basis up to a maximum of $270,000.00, as reflected below, unless this Amendment is further 
extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Per attached agreement dated June 10, 2022, from Kami Kalay requesting additional services; 

District accepts additional services 
 

Per attached agreement dated June 10, 2022, from Kami Kalay requesting additional services to 
provide additional financial consulting.  Financial consulting related to COVID relief funds, setting up 
budgets, reconciling budget items and financial reporting during fiscal year 2022-2023.  No other changes to 
contract or assigned projects and assigned services provided; District accepts increase in service request 
and corresponding change order in contract amount. 

 
Description of funding changes to contract: 

 
Original contract amount. ..................................................................................................$98,000.00 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order .......................................................................$98,000.00 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................. ... $180,000.00 

 
NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$278,000.00 

 
 
 
  

 
BUSINESS SERVICES 

 

Rose F Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

Robert Aldama, Interim Purchasing Manager 
 



 

 
 
 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Independent Contractor Services shall remain in full force and 

effect and are hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the 
Agreement for Independent Contractor Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Independent Contractor Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of 
the Effective Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: January 19, 2023 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 Kami Kalay 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Rose Ramos 
CBO 

 Kami Kalay 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT FOR  
SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Special Education Services ("Amendment") is entered into between 
the Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and Care Inc. ("Care") (collectively the "Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Special Education Services originally entered to on 
September 20, 2022. 

 
1. Approval of this Amendment: This Amendment shall be subject to the approval of the 

District's Board of Education ("Board"). Upon approval by the Board, the effective date of this 
Amendment shall be February 16, 2023; 

 
2. Extension of Term of the Agreement: This Amendment shall extend the current Care staffing on 

the Project from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023; 
 

3. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Care for the current staffing on 
the Project until June 30, 2023, and will pay for the increased services from and after February 16, 2023, on a 
not to exceed basis up to a maximum of $305,000.00, as reflected below, unless this Amendment is further 
extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Per attached agreement dated January 26, 2023, from Care requesting additional services; District 

accepts additional services 
 

Per attached agreement dated January 26, 2022, from Care requesting additional services to 
provide special education and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the 
authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 1858 
(Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004).  No other changes to contract or assigned projects and assigned services 
provided; District accepts increase in service request and corresponding change order in contract amount. 

 
Description of funding changes to contract: 

 
Original contract amount. ..................................................................................................$90,000.00 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order .......................................................................$90,000.00 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................. ... $215,000.00 

 
NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$305,000.00 

 
 
 
  

 
BUSINESS SERVICES 

 

Rose F Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

Robert Aldama, Interim Purchasing Manager 
 



 

 
 
 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Special Education Services shall remain in full force and effect 

and are hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the 
Agreement for Special Education Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Special Education Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the 
Effective Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: February 16, 2023 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 Care, Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Rose Ramos 
CBO 

  

 
 
 
 
 



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 1 - 

 
 

MASTER CONTRACT 

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES 

2022-2023 

  

 
AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1. MASTER CONTRACT  

  

 This Master Contract (or “Contract”) is entered into on July 1, 2022, between Sacramento City Unified 

School District, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA") and Comprehensive Autism 

Related Education (CARE) Inc. (nonpublic, nonsectarian school [NPS] or nonpublic, nonsectarian agency 

[NPA]), hereinafter referred to as "NPS/A" or “CONTRACTOR,” for the purpose of providing special 

education and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the authorization of 

California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of 

Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes 

of 2004). Sacramento City Unified School District is the only LEA in Sacramento City Unified School 

District SELPA (hereinafter referred to as "SELPA"). It is understood that this Contract does not commit 

LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any LEA student, or CONTRACTOR 

to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative 

approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.  
 

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement 

(hereinafter referred to as “ISA”), and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment form. CONTRACTOR shall 

work with LEA to complete and return these forms to LEA prior to initiating any services for any student, 

unless otherwise agreed by LEA and CONTRACTOR. These forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR’s 

obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the LEA student’s Individualized Education Program 

(hereinafter referred to as “IEP”). LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student 

served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any 

electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing. 
 

  Unless placement and/or services is ordered pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter 

referred to as “OAH”) order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and Parent, or authorized by LEA 

for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the 

costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is 

convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement and/or NPS/A services is appropriate, and the IEP 

is signed by the Parent.  
 

2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES 

 

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as 

“CDE”) as a NPS/A. All NPS/A placements and services shall be provided consistent with the area of 

certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 2 - 

section 56366 et seq and within the professional scope of practice of each provider’s license, certification 

and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR’s NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification 

issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the 

date this Contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Contract shall be null and void if such certification 

or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Contract. 

Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the 

Contract. 

 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 

operates a program outside of the State of California shall be certified and all staff persons providing services 

to pupils shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related 

services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. § 1400 et seq.).  

 

  If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI”), CONTRACTOR 

shall be licensed by the State of California, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract 

with the State of California to license, to provide nonmedical care room and board to children, including, but 

not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements 

relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child 

so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of the State of California, CONTRACTOR 

must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state 

where the LCI is located.  

 

With respect to CONTRACTOR’s certification, failure to notify LEA and CDE in writing of any changes in: 

(1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major 

modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the 

suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Contract by the LEA. 

Any suspension or revocation of CONTRACTOR's CDE certification shall also be good cause for the 

immediate suspension or termination of this Contract by LEA, at LEA’s discretion.  
 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS 
 

During the term of this Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable 

federal, State of California, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. 

CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA and SELPA policies, regulations, and procedures 

(collectively referred to as "LEA Procedures") unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts 

and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure 

to comply with LEA Procedures and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Contract 

for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out 

of CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with applicable LEA Procedures (e.g., those policies relating to; the 

provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, 

student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive 

behavior interventions).   

   

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to CDE any violations of the 

provisions of this Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE NPA/S 

certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a). 
 

4.  TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT 
 

The term of this Contract shall be from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023, unless otherwise stated. (California 

Code of Regulations, tit. 5, § 3062(a).) Neither CONTRACTOR nor LEA is required to renew this Contract 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 3 - 

in subsequent contract years. The parties acknowledge that any subsequent Contract is to be re-negotiated 

prior to June 30, 2023. In the event the contract negotiations are not agreed to by June 30th, the most recently 

executed Contract will remain in effect for 90 days. (California Code of Regulations, tit. 5, § 3062(d).) No 

Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of 

a Contract to CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of LEA. 

 

The provisions of this Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent 

contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR’s ownership or authorized representative shall be 

provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized 

representative.   

 

5.   INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR 

TERMINATION 
 

This Contract incorporates LEA Procedures herein by this reference. Each ISA is also incorporated herein 

by this reference. This Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or 

agreement. This Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, LEA may modify LEA Procedures from time to time without the consent of 

CONTRACTOR 

 

CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Contract or a 

renewal. 

 

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance 

documentation, and CDE certification. LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the 

application packet is not completed and returned to LEA, no Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does 

not return the Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days 

of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Contract is received 

by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Contract’s effective date. If CONTRACTOR 

fails to execute the new Contract within such ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as 

the new Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California 

Education Code §56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR 

shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Contract between 

CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized LEA students at the 

discretion of LEA. 

 

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“ISA”) 

  

 This Contract shall include an ISA developed for each LEA student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide 

special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for LEA students enrolled with the 

approval of LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366(a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than 

one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Contract in effect. In the event that this Contract expires 

or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most 

recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing 

authorized students.  

 

Any and all changes to a student’s educational placement/program/services provided under this Contract 

and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student’s IEP or by written agreement 

between the Parent and LEA. At any time during the term of this Contract, a Parent, CONTRACTOR, or 

LEA may request a review of a student’s IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.  

 

 Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP 

unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code §56366(a)(5) and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 4 - 

California Code of Regulations, tit. 5, § 3062(e).) In the event CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific 

service at any time during the term of the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing within five (5) 

business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent 

compensatory service hours awarded to an LEA student as a result of lack of provision of services while the 

student was served by CONTRACTOR. 

 

If a Parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, 

CONTRACTOR shall abide by the “stay-put” requirement of the State of California and federal law unless 

the Parent and LEA voluntarily agree otherwise, or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting ("IAES") is 

deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Title 20 of the United States Codes Sections 

1415(k)(1)(G), 1415(k)(2), and 1415(k)(3)(B)(ii)(II). CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements 

concerning changes in placement.  

 

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Contract 

may be appealed to the Sacramento County Superintendent of Schools or the California State Superintendent 

of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c)(2). 

 

7. DEFINITIONS  

 

 The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract: 

 

a. The term “CONTRACTOR” means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency ("NPS/A") certified by 

the California Department of Education ("CDE"), and its officers, agents and employees.  

 

b. The term “authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible 

for NPS/A. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of 

which LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with LEA. LEA 

maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract. 

 

c. The term “credential” means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special 

education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the California State 

Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, 

which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are 

required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g). 

 

d. The term “qualified” means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to 

that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated 

instruction and services and has met federal and State of California certification, licensing, 

registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which the person is 

providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of 

the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 

5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and California Education Code 

section 56366.1(n)(1), and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and 

State of California law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business 

and Professions Code. 

 

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate 

needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree 

at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by State laws or regulations. 

(California Code of Regulations, tit. 5, § 3001(r).) 

  

e.  The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the 

California Department of Consumer Affairs or other State of California licensing office authorized 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 5 - 

to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services 

or refer to themselves using a specified professional title. This includes, but is not limited to, mental 

health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an 

appropriate State of California licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate 

professional organization at the national or State of California level which has standards established 

for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 

of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(l). 

 

f. “Parent” means: 

i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal 

authority to make educational decisions for the child,  

ii. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parents to make educational 

decisions on the child’s behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance 

with Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 300.30(b)(1) or (b)(2),  

iii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child’s parent or authorized to make educational 

decisions for the child,  

iv. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, 

stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally 

responsible for the child’s welfare,  

v. a surrogate parent. 

 

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or a NPS/A under 

contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services 

for a child. (California Education Code §56028.) 

 

g. The term “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

 

h. The phrase “billable day” means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those 

in comparable LEA programs. 

 

i. The phrase “billable day of attendance” means a school day as defined in California Education Code 

Section 46307, in which an LEA student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or 

exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA. 

 

j. It is understood that the term “Master Contract” also means “Contract” and is referred to as such in 

this document. 

 

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 
 

8. NOTICES 
  

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and 

shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.   

 

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of 

this Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on the signature page of this 

Contract. 

 

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS  

 

 All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by State and federal laws and regulations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years 

after the termination of this Contract. For purposes of this Contract, “records” shall include, but not be limited 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 6 - 

to pupil records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored 

information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; 

registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; chart notes, Medi-Cal logs, daily service 

logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; 

daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional 

assistants, behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports (BER); incident reports; 

notification of injuries; absence verification records (Parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related 

documents) if CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if 

positive attendance is required; transcripts; grade and progress reports; behavioral data; IEP/IFSPs; 

assessment reports; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff 

qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training 

and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other 

related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker’s 

compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications; business licenses held; by-laws; lists of current 

board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; all budgetary information, including operating budgets; 

statements of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers 

and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/State payroll quarterly 

reports (Form 941/DE3DP); and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall maintain LEA student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and 

prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of 

CONTRACTOR’s employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an 

access log for each LEA student’s record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or 

receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education 

Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, date/time of access for each 

individual requesting or receiving information from the student’s record, and a description of the record(s) 

provided. Such log needs to record access to the LEA student’s records by: (a) the LEA student’s Parent; (b) 

an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the LEA student’s Parent; or (c) employees of 

LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from 

the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to 

LEA student records. For purposes of this Section, “employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR” do not include 

subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant the following access to student records, (a) the LEA student's 

Parent; (b) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or 

receiving information from the record, and comply with Parent requests for copies of LEA student records, 

as required by State of California and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of 

NPS/A closure, to forward all LEA student records held by CONTRACTOR within ten (10) business days 

to LEA. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request 

within five (5) business days. 

 

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

 

 If any provision of this Contract is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder 

of that provision and of the entire Contract shall be severable and remain in effect. 

 

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 

 

 This Contract binds CONTRACTOR’s successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of any 

change of ownership or corporate control within ten (10) business days of such change.  
 

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW 

  

 The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the 

County where LEA is located. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 7 - 

 

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES 

 

This Contract may be modified or amended by LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines 

issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR thirty (30) 

days’ notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines 

and a copy of the statute, guideline, or regulation upon which the modifications or changes are based. 

 

14. TERMINATION  

 

 This Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to non-maintenance 

of current NPS/A certification, failure of either LEA or CONTRACTOR to maintain the standards required 

under the Contract and/or ISA, or other material breach of this Contract by CONTRACTOR or LEA. For 

purposes of NPS placement, the cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period 

of the Contract unless the Parent agrees to the transfer of the LEA student to the public school program at an 

IEP team meeting. To terminate the Contract or ISA, either party shall give no less than twenty (20) days 

prior written notice to the other party. (California Education Code §56366(a)(4).) If this Contract is 

terminated with twenty (20) days' notice, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents 

CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Contract on the date of termination. 

 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Contract or ISA may be terminated immediately, without twenty (20) 

days prior notice and at LEA’s discretion, if LEA determines that there are significant health or safety 

concerns or there has been a suspension or revocation of CONTRACTOR’s NPS/A certification. If this 

Contract is terminated immediately, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents 

CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Contract within five (5) business days of termination.  

 Notwithstanding the foregoing regarding termination of an ISA, CONTRACTOR is bound by the "stay put" 

provisions described in Section 6 of this Contract.  

 

15. INSURANCE  

 

CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR's sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during 

the term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer 

with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, 

costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment 

of any of its obligations under this Contract or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof: 

 

 PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, 

with limits as follows:  

             

$2,000,000 per occurrence 

$   500,000 fire damage 

$       5,000 medical expenses 

$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury 

$4,000,000 general aggregate 

$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate 
 

CONTRACTOR's general liability policy shall be primary and shall not seek contribution from 

LEA's coverage, and be endorsed using Insurance Services Office form CG 20 10 or CG 20 26 

(or equivalent) to provide that LEA and its officers, officials, employees, and agents shall be 

additional insureds under such policies. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 8 - 

 

B. Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

limit of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per accident.  

 

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required. If CONTRACTOR uses a 

vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students’ homes or other 

locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of 

California auto insurance requirements. 

 

C. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in accordance with provisions 

of California Labor Code sections 3200 et seq., adequate to protect CONTRACTOR from claims 

that may arise from its operations pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

and Safety Act and in accordance with applicable State and federal laws. 

 

Part A – Statutory Limits 

Part B – $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000 Employers Liability 

 

D. Sexual Abuse and Molestation Insurance 

 

CONTRACTOR shall provide Sexual Abuse and Molestation coverage in the minimum amount 

of three million dollars ($3,000,000) per occurrence if cumulative enrollment of LEA students 

is five (5) or fewer during the 2022-23 school year, or five million dollars ($5,000,000) per 

occurrence if cumulative enrollment exceeds five (5) students. 

 

E. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) Insurance 

 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain professional liability insurance that insures against professional 

errors and omissions that may be made in performing the Services to be rendered in connection 

with this Contract, in the minimum amount of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per claim and in 

the aggregate. Any policy inception date, continuity date, or retroactive date must be before the 

effective date of this Contract, and CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain continuous coverage 

through a period no less than three years after completion of the services required by this 

Contract. 

 

F. For all Insurance Coverage in Part I: 

 

1) Each insurance policy required by the Contract shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall 

not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior 

written notice has been given to LEA, except that ten (10) days' prior written notice shall 

apply in the event of cancellation for nonpayment of premium. 

 

2) All self-insured retentions over $100,000 must be declared and approved by LEA. 

 

3) Evidence of Insurance – Prior to commencement of serving LEA students pursuant to this 

Contract, CONTRACTOR shall furnish LEA with certificates, additional insured 

endorsements, and waivers of subrogation evidencing compliance with the insurance 

requirements above. CONTRACTOR must agree to provide complete, certified copies of all 

required insurance policies if requested by LEA. 

 

4) Acceptability of Insurers – Insurance shall be placed with insurers admitted in the State of 

California and with an AM Best rating of A-, VII, or higher. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 9 - 

G. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency 

submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on 

the certificate. 

 

 PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH 

A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY (“RTC”) 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a residential treatment center ("NPS/RTC"), the 

following insurance policies are required: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits 

of at least:  

 

$3,000,000 per Occurrence 

$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.  

 

The policy shall be endorsed to name LEA and LEA's Board of Education as named additional 

insureds and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by LEA which may be 

applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and NPS/RTC’s insurance primary 

despite any conflicting provisions in the NPS/RTC’s policy. Coverage shall be maintained with 

no Self-Insured Retention above $100,000 without the prior written approval of LEA. 

 

B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 

Code adequate to protect the NPS/RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant 

to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of 

$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.  

C. Commercial Auto Liability Coverage with limits of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per 

Occurrence if the NPS/RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the NPS/RTC provides 

student bus services, the required coverage limit is $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per 

Occurrence. 

D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the NPS/RTC to cover all employees 

who process or otherwise have responsibility for NPS/RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other 

assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be $250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured 

retention. 

E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice Coverage with minimum limits of 

$3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.  

F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the 

Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum 

limits of $5,000,000 per occurrence.  

 

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section 

is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations. 

 

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS  

 

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, 

administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors (“LEA Indemnities”) harmless 

against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 10 - 

out of this Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was 

proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, 

without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it 

(excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon 

tender of a claim or lawsuit to CONTRACTOR. LEA shall have the right in its sole discretion to select 

counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance 

carrier. 

  

 To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, 

administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors (“CONTRACTOR Indemnities”) harmless 

against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising 

out of this Contract or its performance thereof, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was 

proximately caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its 

agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding 

CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities). 

 LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-

insurance covers LEA employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its 

self-insurance covers the LEA’s indemnification obligations under this Contract. 

  

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  

  

 Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent 

relationship between LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this 

Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any 

commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any 

association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer 

and employee between the Parties or any affiliates of the Parties, or between LEA and any individual assigned 

by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for LEA.  

 

 If LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principle, employer or co-employer of 

CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless LEA from and against any and all 

claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, 

penalties and interest charges incurred by LEA as a result of that determination.  

  

18. SUBCONTRACTING  

 

CONTRACTOR shall not enter into any subcontracting relationship without first obtaining final written 

approval of LEA. Should CONTRACTOR wish to subcontract for special education and/or related services 

pursuant to this Contract, it must provide written notification to LEA before any subcontracting arrangement 

is made. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA 

may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written 

notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR’s original notice and 

CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s). 

 

Should LEA approve in concept of CONTRACTOR subcontracting for services, CONTRACTOR shall 

submit the proposed subcontract to LEA for approval. CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions 

of this Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR is 

developing subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not 

limited to, transportation) for any LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure 

and maintain indemnification and insurance requirements which comply with the provisions of Sections 15 

and 16 of this Contract during the term of each subcontract. If a proposed subcontract is approved by LEA, 

each subcontractor shall furnish LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage 

required by Section 15 of this Contract. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 11 - 

to bind coverage on its behalf. Unless otherwise agreed to by LEA, the endorsements are to be on forms provided 

by LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by LEA before the subcontractor’s work commences. 

The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA 

Board of Education as additional insureds. 

 

As an alternative to LEA's forms, a subcontractor’s insurer may provide, with prior LEA approval, complete, 

certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this 

Contract. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the NPS/A submitting 

the certificate, designation of NPS or NPA, and the location of the NPS/A submitting the certificate. In 

addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 (Clearance Requirements) 

and Section 46 (Staff Qualifications) of this Contract. No subcontract shall be considered final without LEA 

approval. 

 

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board 

of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors 

(or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest 

pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 including, but not 

limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at 

IEP team meetings acting as a student’s advocate. Pursuant to California Education Code section 56042, an 

attorney or advocate for a Parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at 

CONTRACTOR’s facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or 

will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest. 

 

LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for an LEA student when 

a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) 

or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the LEA student without prior written authorization by LEA. This 

section shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared 

(i.e., before or after the LEA student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s NPS/A) or whether an assessment of 

the LEA student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the LEA 

student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an 

Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as “IEE”) and its recommendations, LEA may 

not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the 

LEA student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, LEA may not fund services through the evaluator 

whose IEE LEA agrees to fund.  When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if 

CONTRACTOR agrees, CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read 

and understands California Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special 

education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an 

individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred sixty-five (365) days prior to 

executing this Contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated 

instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to 

ten months of the school year by LEA. 

 

  CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private 

pay or tuition free “scholarship” basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request Parent(s) to pursue 

funding for the admitted school year from LEA through due process proceedings. Such action shall constitute 

good cause for termination of this Contract. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 12 - 

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION  

 

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis 

of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, 

marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, 

physical or mental disability, genetic information, medical condition, military or veteran status, or any other 

classification protected by federal or State law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or 

association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. (Gov. Code 

§ 12940 et seq.) 

 

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM  
 

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE) 

 

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan 

(hereinafter referred to as “ITP”) of each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall 

provide special education and/or related services (including transition services) to each LEA student within 

the NPS/A consistent with the student’s IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, 

CONTRACTOR shall not accept an LEA student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services 

outlined in the student’s IEP. If an LEA student's services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services 

Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, if provision of services cease.  

  

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the 

provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities, as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and 

ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related 

services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or 

interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of an LEA student’s enrollment under the terms of this 

Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities 

when specified in an LEA student’s IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the LEA and shall 

be returned to the LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student 

is no longer enrolled in the NPS. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA 

students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.  

 

CONTRACTOR may charge an LEA student’s Parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the 

student to receive a FAPE after: (a) written notification to the LEA student’s Parent(s) of the cost and 

voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by LEA of the written notification and a 

written acknowledgment signed by the LEA student’s Parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the 

services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning Parent 

acknowledgment of financial responsibility. Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student 

to receive a FAPE shall not interfere with the LEA student’s receipt of special education and/or related 

services as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and Parent agree 

otherwise in writing. 

 

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION 

 

All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification 

and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 et seq.  

  

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR’s general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize 

evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA’s standards regarding the particular course of study and 

curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive 

technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE’s standards regarding the particular course of 

study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA. LEA students 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 13 - 

shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards (“CCSS”) 

for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide 

standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by LEA; 

(b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; 

(d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to State and federal 

law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and 

career and college counseling. When appropriate, CONTRACTOR shall utilize the designated curriculum 

guidelines for students with moderate to severe disabilities who participate in the State’s alternative 

assessment. These students shall have access to the core content, activities, and instructional materials 

delineated within these curriculum guidelines. CONTRACTOR’S general program of instruction shall be 

described in writing and a copy provided to LEA prior to the effective date of this Contract. 

 

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades 9 through 12 inclusive, LEA shall provide to 

CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by CONTRACTOR leading toward 

graduation or completion of LEA’s diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school 

diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of LEA’s graduation requirements. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR’s general program of 

instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE 

guidelines and certifications, and shall be provided as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. 

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the 

effective date of this Contract. School-based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR 

to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for 

services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a Licensed Children’s Institution (LCI), all services not 

provided in the school setting require the presence of a Parentor adult caregiver during the delivery of 

services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the Parent to authorize 

emergency services as requested. LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified 

residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Contract. CONTRACTOR 

shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no Parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present.  

 

CONTRACTORs providing Behavior Intervention Services shall develop a written plan that specifies the 

nature of their NPA service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in 

writing to the LEA. CONTRACTORs providing Behavior Intervention Services must have a trained 

behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff who is qualified and responsible for the design, planning, and 

implementation of behavioral interventions as the law requires. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 5, § 3051.23; Ed. Code 

§ 56366.10(e).) It is understood that Behavior Intervention Services are limited per CDE Certification and 

do not constitute an instructional program. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for 

transportation services for students unless LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing. 

 

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES  

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by 

CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided 

to LEA students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student’s ISA 

developed in accordance with the student’s IEP. 

 

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student’s IEP and 

ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and passing time shall be at the 

same level that California Education Code prescribes for LEA. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 14 - 

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual 

instructional minutes provided to LEA students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise 

specified in the student’s IEP. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school 

day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the LEA student’s ISA developed in accordance with 

the student’s IEP. 

 

24. CLASS SIZE  

 

 When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one 

teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior 

written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 

1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide 

services to students with disabilities. 

 

 In the event a NPS CONTRACTOR is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct 

instruction to LEA students, and the vacancy has a direct impact on the CDE Certification of that school, 

CONTRACTOR shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing 

certificated staff. CONTRACTOR and LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where 

class size may be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement 

shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a NPA CONTRACTOR. 

 

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the 

ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child 

ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq. 

 

25. CALENDARS  

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS: 

 

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 

180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by LEA’s 

extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted 

and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by LEA) for each LEA student. 

CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days 

without the prior written approval of LEA. Nothing in this Contract shall be interpreted to require LEA to 

accept any requests for calendar changes. In the event LEA adjusts the number of school days for its regular 

school year and/or extended school year, the approved number of days shall become the total billable days 

for CONTRACTOR. In such a case, an amended calendar shall be provided by CONTRACTOR for LEA 

approval. 

 

Unless otherwise specified by the LEA student's IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A 

student shall only be eligible for extended school year services as determined by the student's IEP team and 

the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) 

instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the student's IEP team convened by the LEA. Any days 

of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to by LEA and 

CONTRACTOR, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year. 

 

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school 

year and received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for 

payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other 

times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 15 - 

NPS service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial 

responsibility of CONTRACTOR. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. As of the execution of this Contract, those 

holidays are: Labor Day, Veteran’s Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, Martin Luther 

King Jr. Day, Lincoln's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, and Independence Day. With the 

prior written approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in 

observance of any of the holidays observed by LEA. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA: 

 

CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of 

services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in LEA-developed/approved 

calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as 

specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student’s ISA, 

CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student’s 

school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for 

services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and 

LEA agree otherwise in writing before delivery of any NPA services. Student must have actually been in 

attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible 

for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other 

times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any 

NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any services provided without this written agreement shall be at 

the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. In the event of school closures due to emergency, 

payment will follow the procedures in accordance with Section 62 of this Contract.  

 

26. DATA REPORTING  

 

  CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to LEA all data related to LEA student information and billing 

information. CONTRACTOR shall provide data related to all sections of this Contract, including student 

discipline as noted below, when requested by LEA and in the format required by LEA. It is understood that 

CONTRACTOR shall utilize LEA-approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, service tracking 

documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by LEA. Additional progress 

reporting may be required by the LEA. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user 

training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access so that this information may be compiled. 

 

  Using forms developed by the CDE or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, 

CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory 

offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or 

expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Codes sections 48900 and 48915. 

CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion 

even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code sections 48900 and 48915. (Ed. Code § 49006.) 

   

  LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not 

limited to, invoicing (see Exhibit D), attendance reports (see Exhibit E) and progress reports. LEA may 

approve use of CONTRACTOR-provided forms at its discretion. 

 

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT  

 

  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA Procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment 

(“LRE”) options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to 

the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 16 - 

  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings 

regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration 

of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary 

to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings. 

 

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, 

CONTRACTOR shall assist LEA in implementing the IEP team’s recommended activities to support the 

transition.  

 

28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING  

 

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer 

all statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 

(“CAASPP”), Desired Results Developmental Profile (“DRDP”), California Alternative Assessment 

(“CAA”), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, 

the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPAC”), and Alternative English Language 

Proficiency Assessments for California ("Alternative ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the LEA student, and 

mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA, State of California, and federal guidelines.  

 

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code 

section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the 

LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. 

LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR’S qualified staff.  CONTRACTOR shall 

attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA. 

 

29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS 

 

CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA-mandated meetings when legal mandates and/or LEA Procedures are 

reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based 

instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment 

responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, standardized testing, and IEPs. LEA 

shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings.  

 

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code sections 49005, et seq., 56521.1, 

and 56521.2 regarding positive behavior interventions and supports. Failure to do so shall constitute sufficient 

good cause for termination of this Contract. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that CONTRACTOR utilizes a 

multi-tier system of support (“MTSS”) to address student needs. CONTRACTOR shall also ensure that all 

staff are trained on the use of positive behavior interventions and supports consistent with this Contract.  

 

 LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive 

timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the State and 

federal law and implementing regulations. If the IEP team determines that a student’s behavior impedes his 

or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral 

interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 

1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This 

could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”), the IEP team may conclude it 

is sufficient to address the student’s behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and 

behavioral interventions to support those goals. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 

regarding emergency interventions and Behavioral Emergency Reports ("BERs"). CONTRACTOR shall 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 17 - 

affirmatively inform each of its employees about the policy, provide each employee a copy thereof, and 

provide training to all employees regarding the policy. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff 

members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based practices and 

interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR’s pupil population. Training 

shall include certification by an approved LEA crisis intervention program. The training shall be provided 

within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the 

schoolday, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the schoolday. 

(Ed. Code 56366.10(f).) CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance with California 

Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain accurate written records documenting all 

training completed by all of CONTRACTOR's employees. Evidence of all trainings shall be submitted to 

LEA at least annually at the beginning of the school year, and within five (5) business days of completion of 

training or any new hire or upon LEA request. 

 

Pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a 

substitute for a BIP and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency 

interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present 

danger of serious physical harm to the LEA student or others and that cannot be immediately prevented by a 

response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a 

situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site 

administrator or a law enforcement agency. Consistent with Section 44 of this Contract, LEA may observe 

and/or audit CONTRACTOR’s implementation of BIPs, staff use of behavior interventions, including 

emergency interventions, at any time, and without prior notice.  

 

To prevent emergency interventions from being used in lieu of planned, systemic behavioral interventions, 

the use of emergency interventions, CONTRACTOR shall immediately complete a BER when an emergency 

intervention is used on an LEA student. The use of Personal Safety Techniques (which may or may not have 

been used) does not determine whether a BER is required. Each BER completed by CONTRACTOR shall 

be maintained in the file of the LEA student and submitted to LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for 

administrative action. Each BER shall include all of the following: (1) the name and age of the LEA student; 

(2) the setting and location of the incident; (3) the name of the staff or other persons involved; (4) a description 

of the incident and the emergency intervention used, and whether the LEA student is currently engaged in 

any systematic behavioral intervention plan; and (5) details of any injuries sustained by an LEA student or 

others, including staff, as a result of the incident.  

 

If an emergency intervention is used, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, the student's Parent, and residential 

care provider, if appropriate, within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. In addition, and consistent with 

the requirements of California Education Code section 56521.1(g), if a BER is written regarding an LEA 

student who does not have a BIP, the designated responsible LEA administrator shall, within two days, 

coordinate with CONTRACTOR to schedule an IEP team meeting to review the BER, to determine the 

necessity for a functional behavioral assessment ("FBA"), and to determine the necessity for an interim plan. 

If assessment is not proposed and/or if the IEP team determines that an interim plan is determined not to be 

necessary, the IEP team shall document the reasons for not conducting a FBA, not developing an interim 

plan, or both. If a BER is written regarding an LEA student who has a BIP, the behavior emergency involves 

a previously unseen serious behavior problem, or where a previously designed behavior intervention is 

ineffective, the designated responsible LEA administrator shall, within two days, coordinate with 

CONTRACTOR to schedule an IEP team meeting to review and determine if the incident constitutes a need 

to modify the student's BIP.  

    

  Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay 

for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: 

(1) any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-

shock; (2) an intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, 

or substances in proximity to the face of the individual; (3) an intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 18 - 

water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities; (4) an intervention that is designed 

to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that 

can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma; (5) restrictive interventions that employ a device, 

material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as 

prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as 

a limited emergency intervention; (6) locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted 

by state law to use a locked room; (7) An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual; 

or (8) an intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses.  

 

  In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child’s learning or that of others, the IEP team shall 

consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that 

behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and 

associated federal regulations. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA via telephone of any severe 

or increasingly frequent behavior problem, any emergency intervention in response to a previously unseen 

serious behavior problem, or where a previously designed behavior intervention is ineffective, that may 

require an IEP team meeting.  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall review and revise all restraint practices when they have an adverse effect on a student 

and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or 

multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student’s Parent when any type of 

physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or 

mechanical restraint or seclusions of a LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting 

and notification requirements listed above. LEA may require a review of CONTRACTOR's restraint practices 

at any time, including but not limited to, in response to an emergency intervention report via telephone, in 

response to observations or audit by LEA staff, in response to a Parent’s concern, or in response to BERs 

forwarded to LEA for administrative action. 

 

BEHAVIOR INTERVENTION REPORTING: Twice annually, CONTRACTOR shall certify to LEA that 

(a) CONTRACTOR has reviewed the BERs for each LEA student in conjunction with that student’s IEP and 

BIP; (b) Staff are trained to implement each LEA student’s BIP, including approved or prohibited restraint 

techniques for each student; (c) emergency interventions have only been used to control unpredictable, 

spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to LEA students or others 

and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a 

technique used to contain the behavior; and (d) BERs have been properly completed and timely forwarded 

to LEA as required by this Contract. 

 

Failure to comply with any of the requirements of Section 30: Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports 

shall constitute sufficient good cause for immediate termination of this Contract. 

 

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with 

State of California and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of 

Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed 

by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes 

all statutory offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include 

incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a 

violation of Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915. (Ed. Code § 49006.) 

 

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a LEA student from the student's current educational placement for 

disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately (within 24 hours) submit a written discipline report 

to LEA. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student’s name, grade, race, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 19 -

ethnicity, and gender; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by 

CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the LEA student’s behavior plan, 

if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in 

a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day after the decision is made 

to suspend the student for more than ten (10) school days or recommend expulsion of the student. LEA shall 

notify and invite CONTRACTOR representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation 

determination will be made.  

32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each 

LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements 

of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the LEA student continue to be best met at 

the NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student’s IEP are necessary, including whether the LEA student may 

be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366(a)(2)(B)(i) and (ii) and 

California Education Code section 56345(b)(4).)  

If an LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for 

any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided 

to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as 

the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the 

transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each LEA 

student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of the student's IEP team. Except 

as otherwise provided in the Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings 

regarding LEA students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this 

Contract, the Parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of the LEA student’s IEP, subject to all 

procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, 

CONTRACTOR, LEA, and Parent in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings 

at a time and place that is mutually convenient to CONTRACTOR, LEA, and Parent. CONTRACTOR shall 

provide to LEA, at no cost and prior to an annual or triennial IEP team meeting, documentation regarding the 

student's progress on goals and any and all assessments and written assessment reports (including testing 

protocols) created by CONTRACTOR and any of its agents or subcontractors, upon request and/or pursuant 

to LEA Procedures. 

It is understood that CONTRACTOR shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP 

planning and progress reporting at LEA’s discretion. LEA may provide training for any CONTRACTOR to 

ensure access to the approved system. CONTRACTOR shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the 

approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a LEA student dis-

enrolls from the NPS/A, the CONTRACTOR shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student. 

Changes in any LEA student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting 

provided under this Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student’s IEP. In the event 

that CONTRACTOR believes a LEA student requires a change of placement, CONTRACTOR may request 

a review of the student’s IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student’s placement. A 

LEA student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless Parent agrees 

otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH 

consistent with Section 1415(k)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code.  

33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as the 

child’s Parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under the Individuals 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 20 - 

with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 U.S.C. sections 1414-1482 and 34 C.F.R. sections 300.1-

300.756. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). 

LEA shall annually notify CONTRACTOR who LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster 

children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by LEA any time after the completion of the 

student's second year of high school, CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards 

graduation based on the diploma requirements of LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant 

to Section 51225.1. 

 

34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS  

 
CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations 

and hearings, as requested by LEA. Participation includes CONTRACTOR’s staff being made available for 

witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall 

also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with 

the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other State and/or federal governmental body or 

agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives 

to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all 

documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR’s program and/or the implementation of a 

particular student’s IEP/ISA. 

 

35.  COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  

 
  CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to Parent complaints. 

These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing Parents of LEA students with appropriate 

information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to 

Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to 

Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960(a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California 

Education Code section 231.5; (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of 

Federal Regulations sections 106.8 and 106.9; (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health 

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), 45 C.F.R. § 164.520; and (6) Notification and 

Complaint Procedures for Disability Access, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq. CONTRACTOR shall 

include verification of these procedures to LEA. CONTRACTOR shall immediately (within 24 hours) notify 

LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students and provide LEA with all documentation 

related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, including any and all reports generated as a 

result of an investigation. 

 
36. LEA STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS  

 
 Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide to Parents, with a concurrent copy sent to LEA, at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. 

At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy 

of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at CONTRACTOR’s place of business. 

 

 CONTRACTOR shall also provide LEA representatives access to supporting documentation used to 

determine progress on any goal or objective, transition plans, and behavior intervention plans, including but 

not limited to log sheets, chart notes, observation notes, data sheets, pre-/post-tests, rubrics and other similar 

data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans 

or behavior intervention plans. LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of 

service. CONTRACTOR shall maintain such information for at least five (5) years and shall provide this data 

supporting progress to LEA within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as 

needed by the LEA. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE

http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/364373/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/364373/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/191419/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/191419/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/191725/6


S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 21 - 

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the LEA student at least ten (10) days prior 

to the student’s IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the LEA student’s present levels of 

performance at the IEP team meeting as required by State and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to 

LEA Procedures, and/or LEA practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, 

documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team at least five (5) business days prior 

to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation, such as test protocols and 

data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.  

 

CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, 

progress reporting, and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an 

assessment plan shall be provided by LEA unless LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR 

perform such assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved 

separately by LEA at LEA’s sole discretion. 

 

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to LEA students as specified in the ISA. For 

NPA services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 

3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation 

of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for 

each professional’s license, certification, or credential. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall not charge a LEA student’s Parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, 

report cards, and/or any evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, 

and/or attendance at any meetings. It is understood that all billable hours are limited to those specified on the 

ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such 

data are part of the student's record and shall be made available to LEA upon written request. 

 

37. TRANSCRIPTS  

 

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or 

upon LEA student transfer, for LEA students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit 

such transcripts on LEA-approved forms to the LEA student’s school of residence for evaluation of progress 

toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit 

to LEA, the names of LEA students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted 

as specified by LEA. All transcripts shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR and furnished to LEA upon 

request, consistent with the parameters of Sections 9 and 26 of this Contract. 

 

38.  LEA STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE  

 

  Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify Parents in writing of their obligation to notify 

CONTRACTOR of an LEA student’s change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon 

request by LEA, documentation of such notice to Parents. Within five (5) school days from the date 

CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a LEA student’s change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA 

in writing of the LEA student’s change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures.  

 

 If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of an LEA student’s change of 

residence and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this section, LEA shall not be 

responsible for the costs of services delivered following the LEA student’s change of residence.  

 

39.  WITHDRAWAL OF LEA STUDENT FROM NPS/A  

 

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report to LEA via telephone (within 24 hours) and in writing to LEA 

within five (5) business days when a LEA student is withdrawn from school and/or services without prior 

notice. This includes but is not limited to a LEA student’s change of residence to a residence outside of LEA 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 22 - 

boundaries, and LEA student’s discharge against professional advice from a NPS and/or residential treatment 

center ("RTC"). CONTRACTOR shall assist LEA to verify potential dropouts three (3) times per year. 

 

40. PARENT ACCESS  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to LEA students and all facilities including, but 

not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA 

students. 

 

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a Parent’s reasonable 

request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require 

that Parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from CONTRACTOR and LEA at least 

thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all Parent travel and accommodations and for 

providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related 

expenses shall be made directly through LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.  

 

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing immediately (within 24 hours) of all problems and/or concerns 

reported to parents, both verbal and written. 

 

41. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION (“LCI”) CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL 

TREATMENT CENTER (“RTC”) CONTRACTORS  

 

  If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational 

placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code sections 48853, 56155 et seq., 56366(a)(2)(C), 

56366.9, Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 

2003), AB 1261 (2005), AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 

(2013), AB 379 Chapter 772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and as set forth in the LEA Procedures. 

An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential 

facility. 

 

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code 

section 56000 et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement 

Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., Title 5, 

section 3001 et seq., regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential care for students to 

receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student’s IEPs. CONTRACTOR shall meet all monitoring 

requirements as noted in Section 43 below. 
 

  If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special 

education. For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education 

eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student’s 

IEP at the time of enrollment. CONTRACTOR shall also provide LEA with a copy of the student's current 

IEP. 

 

  Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed 

agreement between LEA and Parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement 

until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened by LEA for the student, the IEP team determines 

that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student’s Parent or another adult with 

educational decision-making rights. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 23 - 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 

operates a program outside of California shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, 

special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to students under the 

federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. § 1400 et seq.).  

 

42. STATE MEAL MANDATE  

 

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under 

California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550. 

 

43. MONITORING  

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit during 

each school year to the NPS at which LEA has a student attending and with which it maintains a master 

contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to the student 

through the ISA between LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the student is making toward the goals set 

forth in the student's IEP, a review of progress the student is making toward the goals set forth in the student's 

BIP, if applicable, an observation of the pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. LEA (or 

SELPA) shall report the findings resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of 

Education within 60 calendar days of the onsite visit.  

 

LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a student if LEA does not have 

any students enrolled at the NPS at the time of placement. (Ed. Code § 56366.1.) 

 

 CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring of 

each LEA student’s instructional program. LEA shall have access to observe each LEA student at work, 

observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each LEA student’s records and 

progress held by CONTRACTOR. LEA's access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making 

site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR and 

LEA shall be invited to participate in the review of each LEA student’s progress. 

 

 If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether 

CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 

1501.1(b). LEA may also conduct its own onsite review of a NPS using LEA’s Quality On-Site NPS Review 

Rubric.  

 

 The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (“Superintendent”) shall monitor CONTRACTOR’S 

facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching 

staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the 

standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall 

complete a self-review in year one; (2) Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) 

Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as 

aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code 

section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant 

State and federal regulations, and Contract compliance. If requested by LEA, CONTRACTOR shall complete 

and submit a Nonpublic School/Agency Self-Review Assessment to LEA and CDE. CONTRACTOR shall 

conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings. 

 

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. 

The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; 

curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 24 - 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable 

portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code 

Section 33126. 

 

PERSONNEL 
 

44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS  

 

If CONTRACTOR is a NPA: 

 

When CONTRACTOR is an NPA, all employees, volunteers, and subcontractors of CONTRACTOR who 

will interact with LEA pupils outside the immediate supervision and control of the student's Parent or an 

LEA employee shall obtain clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to 

as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI"). 

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information and 

notwithstanding the express provisions of California Education Code sections 44237, 45125.1, and 56366.1, 

CONTRACTOR shall require all employees, volunteers, and subcontractors to submit fingerprints through 

LEA's Live Scan system, regardless of whether CONTRACTOR requires its employees and volunteers to 

submit fingerprints for background checks in accordance with its own procedures. In addition, 

CONTRACTOR shall require all employees, volunteers, and subcontractors who will interact with LEA 

students outside the immediate supervision and control of the student's Parent or an LEA employee to enroll 

in LEA's subsequent arrest notification service as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2. 

 

No employees, volunteers, or subcontractors of CONTRACTOR who have been convicted of a violent or 

serious felony, as those terms are defined in California Education Code Section 44237 subdivision (h) shall 

interact with LEA students outside the immediate supervision and control of the student's Parent or an LEA 

employee, unless despite the employee's, volunteer's, or subcontractor's conviction of a violent or serious 

felony, they have met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 

44237 subdivisions (i) or (j). CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and 

volunteers shall not interact with LEA students unless and until CDOJ and DBI clearances are ascertained 

through LEA's Live Scan system.  

 

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS or RTC: 

 

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS or RTC, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California 

Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining 

clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance 

from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR’s employees 

and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. In addition, if 

CONTRACTOR is located outside of California, then the CONTRACTOR shall also obtain clearance from 

its state's department of justice. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR’s employees and 

volunteers shall not come in contact with LEA students until CDOJ, it's state's DOJ, and FBI clearance are 

ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, 

unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or 

subcontractors who may come into contact with LEA students have been convicted of a violent or serious 

felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the 

employee’s conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for 

employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237(i) or (j). CONTRACTOR shall certify to 

LEA that CONTRACTOR'S employees, volunteers, and subcontractors have successful background checks 

and CONTRACTOR enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all employees, volunteers, and 

subcontractors who may come into contact with LEA students.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 25 - 

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, 

CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to LEA evidence of a successful criminal background 

check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, 

operator, employee, volunteer, and subcontractor of the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR is required to 

retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state 

agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California 

Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.  

 

 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  

 

  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by 

CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, 

certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in 

the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 

34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of 

Regulations sections 3001(r), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within 

the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, 

and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher’s 

scope of practice.  

 
  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services 

to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to 

the CDE. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 5, § 3064(a).) 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional 

leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The administrator of the 

NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An administrative credential granted by 

an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of experience with pupils with disabilities. 

(B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school counseling or psychology. (C) A license as 

a clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated 

by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master’s degree issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in 

education, special education, psychology, counseling, behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, 

or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special education instruction and at least two years of 

experience teaching in special education before becoming an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and 

family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist 

issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the 

Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California Education Code §56366.1(a)(5)) 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and 

teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 

45340 et seq. and 45350 et seq. Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional 

aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by 

CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a 

high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) 

completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate’s 

(or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or 

local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; 

or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and 

mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing 

the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.  

 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 

operates a program outside of this State and serving a LEA student shall be certified or licensed by that state 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 26 - 

where it is located to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals 

with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. § 1400 et seq.).  

 

46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS  

 

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, 

permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services 

by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office 

of the Sacramento County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements 

of Section 44 Clearance Requirements and provide LEA with verified dates of Tuberculosis Test clearance 

for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with 

any LEA student. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other 

documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. 

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur 

which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR 

shall notify LEA within thirty (30) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, 

revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise 

nullified during the effective period of this Contract. LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services 

provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, 

rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this 

Contract.  

 

CONTRACTOR'S failure to notify LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result 

in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or and shall be good cause for termination 

of this Contract by LEA. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall identify to LEA any employee (or CONTRACTOR, if CONTRACTOR is an 

individual) expected to perform services under this Agreement who is then-receiving California State 

Teachers' Retirement System (“CalSTRS”) benefits, and who may perform creditable service for the LEA as 

defined in Education Code 22119.5. Identification to LEA shall include the individual’s full legal name and 

STRS and social security identification numbers. Before any services by the individual are provided, the 

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a signed written confirmation from the individual that he/she is aware 

of the separation-from-service requirement and earnings limitations imposed by Education Code sections 

22714, 24114, 24116, 24214, 24214.5, and 24215. CONTRACTOR shall thereafter provide on a monthly 

basis to the employee and LEA the actual amounts paid to the individual for services rendered under this 

Contract, with LEA responsible for reporting the individual’s earnings to CalSTRS as required by law or 

regulation, including but not limited to Education Code section 22461.  

 

47. STAFF ABSENCE  

     

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS and a LEA student's classroom teacher is absent, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in accordance with 

California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute 

coverage. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA shall 

not be responsible for any payment for instruction and/or services when an appropriately credentialed 

substitute teacher is not provided.  

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is 

absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined 

by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 27 - 

providers. It is understood that the parent of a LEA student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute 

for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or 

CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified 

service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been 

provided. CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or “carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, 

unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative. 

 

48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR 

SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME 

 

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to the 

customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the 

scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well 

as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to 

the CONTRACTOR.  

 

For services provided on a public school campus, CONTRACTOR shall comply with California Penal Code 

section 627.1 et seq., as well as all other LEA Procedures and school campus-specific policies and procedures 

regarding visitors to/on school campuses. Such LEA Procedures shall be made available to the 

CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the LEA public school credentialed classroom teacher is 

responsible for the instructional program, and all NPA service providers shall work collaboratively with the 

classroom teacher, who shall remain in charge of the instructional program. Failure to comply with this and 

all LEA requirements in this regard shall be sufficient cause for LEA to terminate this Contract. 

 

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student’s school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that 

at least one Parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in 

an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the Parent 

shall be provided to LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed 

authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated 

with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to Parents, 

in either verbal or written form, shall also be immediately (within 24 hours) reported to the LEA. 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES 
 

49. HEALTH AND SAFETY  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, State, and local, and laws, regulations, ordinances, 

policies, and procedures, and LEA Procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq., 

49406, and Health and Safety Code section 121545(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR’s 

employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each 

individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such 

compliance before an individual comes in contact with a LEA student. 

 

 CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 Code of Federal 

Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030 et seq. and Cal/OSHA’s Bloodborne Pathogens Standards, Title 8 of 

the California Code of Regulations section 5193, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. 

CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to 

post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code. 

 

See also the Health and Safety Addendum to Master Contract 2022-23 in Exhibit C.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 28 - 

50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS  

 

  CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply 

with all applicable federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: 

disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning 

permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills 

as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. During the duration of this Contract, if 

CONTRACTOR is subject to fines, penalties and findings of non-compliance, CONTRACTOR shall assume 

any and all responsibilities for payment of such financial obligations. CONTRACTOR shall also be 

responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR’s facilities as required 

complying with applicable federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the 

LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension 

or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Contract by LEA. 

 

  In signing this Contract, CONTRACTOR certifies that its facilities either comply with federal and State of 

California and local laws regarding disability access, or possesses and has available upon demand, a self-

evaluation and/or transition plan in accordance with said laws. 

 

51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  

 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when 

CONTRACTOR serves a LEA student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter 

medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the 

administration of such medication after the student’s parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written 

statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which 

such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student’s parent(s) granting 

CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician’s statement. 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such 

written log shall specify the student’s name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each 

administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR’s employee who administered the medication. 

CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for ensuring appropriate staff training in the administration of 

such medication consistent with physician’s written orders. Any change in medication type, administration 

method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.  

 

52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING  

 

 CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to LEA. 

CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to and as specified in 

LEA Procedures.  

 

53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING  

 

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are 

familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and 

procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. In 

addition, CONTRACTOR is to read and become familiar with the LEA’s Mandated Child Abuse and Neglect 

Reporting Policies (BP 5141.4 and AR 5141.4.). To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., 

reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional 

ethical mandates. A written statement from CONTRACTOR acknowledging the legal requirements of such 

reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA before execution 

of this Contract and upon subsequent request from LEA.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 29 - 

In the event there is a suspicion of abuse conducted by anyone (students, staff, contractor or others) on or off 

campus, CONTRACTOR is to file the appropriate report to the Sacramento County Sheriff. CONTRACTOR 

is also to confidentially notify LEA's Legal Compliance Department (“Legal Compliance”) of the report. 

CONTRACTOR is to cooperate with any investigation conducted by LEA in connection with such report. 

 

54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

 

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity Harassment Policy that clearly describes the kinds 

of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR’s policy, as well 

as federal and State law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, 

and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further 

agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and 

related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.  

 

55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN  

 

  CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all of its staff members, including volunteers, independent contractors 

and subcontractors, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as 

specified in California Education Code section 49370 et seq. A written statement acknowledging the legal 

requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly 

submitted to the LEA by CONTRACTOR before execution of this Contract and in response to subsequent 

requests by LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by LEA. 

 

FINANCIAL 
 

56.  ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND 

BILLING PROCEDURES  

 

  CONTRACTOR shall assure that the NPS/A has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate 

education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP 

and ISA for each and every student. 

 

  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA Procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance 

reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by LEA 

Procedures, as well as provide all such records requested by LEA concerning the same. CONTRACTOR 

shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the LEA student’s IEP 

and ISA which are provided on billable days of attendance. All payments to CONTRACTOR by LEA shall 

be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract and in compliance with LEA 

Procedures, and governed by all applicable federal and State of California laws.  

 

  If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the NPS's enrollment procedures include 

verification of required immunizations (including but not limited to the adolescent pertussis booster 

vaccination (Tdap) for all students entering the seventh grade). 

 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and 

services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance 

forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional 

assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual 

service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or 

audit by LEA during the effective period of this Contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. 

CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being 

billed for payment. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 30 - 

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month 

when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly 

submitted electronically and in addition, on the LEA form provided in Exhibit D, with signatures in the 

manner prescribed by LEA. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: type of 

service provided; month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved 

calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the 

service and the individual's licensing and credentials; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service, 

subtotal for each type of service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of 

NPS/A administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE 

certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of 

any made-up sessions consistent with this Contract; verification that progress reports have been provided 

consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name of each LEA 

student for whom the service was provided. In the event services were not provided, each invoice shall 

include the rationale for why the services were not provided.  

 

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this Contract. At the discretion of LEA, an electronic invoice 

may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to CONTRACTOR at 

no additional charge for such training. 

 

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in 

which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of 

billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days 

of LEA’s receipt of properly submitted invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education 

Code Section 56366.5. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than 

thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing 

invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received 

by LEA. 

 

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend 

beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Contract fiscal 

year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by 

LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information 

from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) 

months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of LEA, then no 

limit is set provided that LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 

12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee. 

 

57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT  

  

 LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole 

or in part, under the terms of this Contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other 

than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive 

services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its 

program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an 

invoice, as required by EC 56366.5(a); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by 

personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received 

prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more LEA students enrolled 

in CONTRACTOR’s educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student’s change of 

residence to another district or confirms the change of residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA 

within five (5) days of such confirmation; (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any 

other agency or funding source for a service provided to a LEA student; or (i) CONTRACTOR fails to 

provide the required liability/insurance documentation as outlined in Section 15 of this Contract. It is 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 31 - 

understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following 

the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.  

 

 Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a 

Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular 

ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by LEA until completion of a review or 

audit, if deemed necessary by LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The 

final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to CONTRACTOR determined to have been 

paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that 

remain uncorrected. 

 

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding 

paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of 

overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided 

by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately 

credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the 

applicable LEA student for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is 

cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the 

service provided to the LEA student.  
 

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) 

business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding 

payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA’s withholding payment and the amount to be 

withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all 

necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA’s withholding 

payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies or submit to LEA written 

documentation demonstrating that the basis or bases cited by LEA for withholding payment is unfounded. 

Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR’s written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR’s 

time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied. 

 

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should 

not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment 

should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR’s notice within thirty (30) business days by 

indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment 

should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the 

withholding of payment continues after the LEA’s response to CONTRACTOR’s notice, CONTRACTOR 

may invoke the following escalation policy.  

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the LEA’s Authorized Representative 

of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing 

within fifteen (15) business days.  

After sixty (60) business days: Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Contract 

may be appealed to the Sacramento County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public 

Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c)(2). 
 

58.  PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES  
 

  CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with 

the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR 

shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or 

any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to 

LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall provide prior written notice of the rights and protections required by 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 32 - 

Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations section 300.154(d) whenever it seeks to use the LEA students’ 

public benefits to pay for special education and related services. Such notice shall be provided before seeking 

payment from Medi-Cal for the first time and annually. 
 

59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES  
  

 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL (NPS) STAFF ABSENCE 
 

 Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an 

appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in accordance with California 

Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage 

pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all 

instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is 

provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher. 

 

 Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in 

Section 7 of this Contract and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a 

qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of 

“make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which 

the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in a LEA student’s IEP. 
 

 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL (NPS) STUDENT ABSENCE 
 

 If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a LEA student’s unexcused 

absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence.  
 

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education 

Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student’s 

attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. Per Diem 

rates for LEA students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata 

basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be 

responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student’s attendance does not qualify for 

Average Daily Attendance (“ADA”) reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-

up services. 
 

NONPUBLIC AGENCY (NPA) STAFF ABSENCE 
 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this Contract and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless 

LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service providers. LEA shall not pay for 

services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing 

the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the 

date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or “carry over” 

make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR 

and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be 

included. 
 

NONPUBLIC AGENCY (NPA) STUDENT ABSENCE  
 

If CONTRACTOR is a NPA, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a LEA student no later than the fifth (5th) 

consecutive service day of the student’s absence. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services 

when a student is absent.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 33 - 

60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY 

 

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency in accordance 

with Education Code sections 41422 and 46392: 

 

a. If CONTRACTOR remains open, if allowed, during an emergency for the reasons set forth in Education 

Code section 41422 and serves LEA students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR 

shall receive payment, regardless of whether LEA is open or closed.  

 

a. If CONTRACTOR is closed during an emergency for the reasons set forth in Education Code section 

41422, if LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall not 

receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to CONTRACTOR's NPS closure. If LEA 

is unable to obtain an alternative placement for the LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment 

consistent with the signed ISA, as though the student were continuing in regular attendance, until an 

alternative placement can be found, so long as CONTRACTOR complies with Section 60(d), below. 

 

b. If both LEA and CONTRACTOR are closed during an emergency for the reasons set forth in Education 

Code section 41422, on days LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the 

LEA student's ISA, until an alternative placement for the LEA student can be found so long as 

CONTRACTOR complies with Section 60(d), below. If LEA is able to obtain an alternative placement 

for the LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance 

due to CONTRACTOR'S NPS closure.  

 

c. CONTRACTOR shall, in the case of school closures during an emergency for the reasons set forth in 

Education Code section 41422, implement the LEA student's IEP in accordance with Education Code 

56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions and continue implementing ISAs for enrolled students . 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure its students have reliable internet accessibility as well as the physical 

technology (i.e. Chromebooks, i-Pad, hot-spots etc.) as required to access and participate. . 

d. In the event of CONTRACTOR'S closure during an emergency, LEA reserves the right to withhold 

payment to CONTRACTOR for instruction and services not rendered pursuant to an LEA student’s ISA, 

consistent with Section 59.  

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of any lost instructional 

minutes for any LEA student. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need 

for make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as 

appropriate. 

 

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT  
 

 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, 

records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to 

have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Contract. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to those documents 

identified in Section 9 of this Contract. CONTRACTOR shall also make available to LEA all budgetary 

information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract 

period being audited.  

 

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR (to be specified 

by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. CONTRACTOR shall provide all records to LEA within 

five (5) working days of a written request. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for 

such examination or audit. LEA’s rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR’s 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 34 - 

offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR’s employees. If any document or evidence is stored in 

an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to LEA, unless LEA agrees to the use of the electronic 

format. Such access shall also include unannounced inspections by LEA.  
 

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements 

of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.  
 

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm 

determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing or failure 

to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Contract, LEA shall provide to 

CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases 

for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay 

to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole 

or in part, any of its obligations under this Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, 

a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such 

payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA’s written notice demanding payment. 

  

62. RATE SCHEDULE 
 

 The attached Rate Schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of LEA students that may be enrolled and 

maximum dollar amount of the Contract. It may also limit the maximum number of LEA students that can 

be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for LEA students whose IEPs authorize less than a full 

instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate 

shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education 

Code Section 46200-46208. 

 

 Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified 

personnel as per State and federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services 

during the term of this Contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS associated with a RTC (“NPS/RTC”), Educationally Related Mental Health 

Services (“ERMHS”) are provided in an integrated, intensive, educationally related therapeutic residential 

setting which includes social emotional/behavior support through individual counseling, group counseling, 

family consultation and support, as appropriate. It is a collaborative model which includes educational 

professionals and related service providers, where all supports and services are integrated in the NPS/RTC 

program. Costs for ERMHS are all inclusive and combined with the daily rate as ERMHS+RB (“ERMHS + 

Room and Board”). ERMHS plus Room and Board payments are based on positive attendance (payable for 

up to a maximum of 365 days) only, with up to a maximum of 10 days payment per LEA student, per contract 

year, when a bed is unoccupied, for home visits of a therapeutic nature. Any NPS or RTC requesting a change 

in rate for any services provided during a subsequent contract year must make a request in writing to the 

Sacramento County SELPA Directors, with a copy sent to LEA Director or designee, by January 15th of each 

calendar year. Increases will only be considered for approval for entities that have received a positive review 

on the LEA's Quality On-Site NPS Review Rubric. 

 

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

 
By signing this Contract, CONTRACTOR certifies that: 

 
(a) CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are not presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by 
any federal agency, and 

 
(b) CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers have not, within a three-

year period preceding this Contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 35 - 

for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a federal, any state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of federal or 
any state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, 
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or 
receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly 
charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses. 

 
The Parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. 
This Contract is effective on the    1st  day of July, 2022 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2023, unless 
sooner terminated as provided herein. 

 

CONTRACTOR 

Comprehensive Autism Related Education (CARE) 

Inc.  

LEA 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

 

 

By: 

  

By: 

 

 Yue Li, MS, BCBA 

President & CEO  

Date   Rose Ramos         Date 

Chief Business Officer 

 

 

    

 
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: 

 

Yue Li, MS, BCBA, President & CEO 

Comprehensive Autism Related Education (CARE) 

Inc. 

15315 Magnolia Boulevard, Ste 306 

Sherman Oaks, CA 91403 

 

P: 818-960-3937 F: 877-805-3084 

Email:  yli@carebehaviorservices.com  

Notices to LEA shall be addressed to: 

 

Geovanni Linares, Director III, Special Education 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

 

P: 916-643-9163 F: 916-643-9466 

Email:  Geovanni-linares@scusd.edu 

 

9/20/22

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE

10/11/2022



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 

- 36 -

EXHIBIT A:  2022-2023 RATES 

4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR 

The CONTRACTOR: Comprehensive Autism Related Education (CARE) Inc. CDS NUMBER:  

Maximum Contract Amount: See Purchase Order   PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO: 

Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charges for such service(s) during the term of this 

contract shall be as follows: 

1) Daily Basic Education Rate:

2) Inclusive Education Program (Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech

& Language services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student’s

IEP.) DAILY RATE:

3) Related Services

SERVICE RATE PERIOD 

Intensive Individual Services (340)

Language and Speech (415)

Adapted Physical Education (425)

Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)

Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)

Assistive Technology Services (445)

Occupational Therapy (450)

Physical Therapy (460)

Individual Counseling (510)

Counseling and Guidance (515)

Parent Counseling (520)

Social Work Services (525)

Psychological Services (530)

Behavior Intervention Services (535)

 Behavior Therapist - Behavior Intervention $80.85 Per Hour 

 Master Level Supervisor (Supervision, Consultation,

Parent Education, School Personnel Education, IEP

Meeting Attendance)

$126.00 Per Hour 

 BCBA (Supervision, Consultation, Parent Education,

School Personnel Education, IEP Meeting Attendance)

$184.80 Per Hour 

Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610) 

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710) 

Interpreter Services (715) 

Audiological Services (720) 

Specialized Vision Services (725) 

Orientation and Mobility (730) 

Specialized Orthopedic Services (740) 

Reader Services (745) 

Transcription Services (755) 

Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760) 

College Awareness (820) 

Work Experience Education (850) 

Other (900)  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 37 - 

EXHIBIT B:  2022-2023 ISA 
 

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES 

(Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.) 

 

This agreement is effective on July 1, 2022 or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a 

nonpublic agency, if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2023, unless sooner terminated as provided 

in the Master Contract and by applicable law. 

 

LEA: Sacramento City Unified School District  Nonpublic School/Agency      

LEA Case Manager: Name    Phone Number    

Pupil Name         Sex:  M  F   Grade:    

                    (Last)                                  (First)                   (M.I.) 

Address    City     State/Zip    

DOB     Residential Setting:  Home  Foster   LCI #      OTHER    

Parent/Guardian    Phone (        )                         (        )       

             (Residence)                 (Business) 

Address    City     State/Zip    

               (If different from student) 

 

AGREEMENT TERMS: 

 

1. Nonpublic School: The average number of minutes in the 

instructional day will be: 

   

during the regular school year 

    
during the extended school year 

2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the 

calendar of the school year are: 

   

during the regular school year 

    
during the extended school year 

3. Educational services as specified in the IEP shall be provided by the CONTRACTOR and paid at the rates specified 

below. 

 A. INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC EDUCATION PROGRAM RATE: (Applies 

to nonpublic schools only): Daily Rate:  

Estimated # of Days  x Daily Rate  = Projected Basic Education Costs  

 B. RELATED SERVICES 

 

 Provider     

SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER 

Specify 

# of Times per 

wk/mo/yr., 

Duration;  

or per IEP;  

or as needed 

Cost per 

session 

Maximum 

Number of 

Sessions 

Estimated 

Maximum Total 

Cost for 

Contracted 

Period 

Intensive Individual Services (340) 
       

Language/Speech Therapy (415) 

a. Individual 

b. Group 

       

Adapted Physical Ed. (425)        

Health and Nursing: Specialized 

Physical Health Care (435) 
       

Health and Nursing Services: Other 

(436)        

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 38 - 

 Provider     

SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER 

Specify 

# of Times per 

wk/mo/yr., 

Duration;  

or per IEP;  

or as needed 

Cost per 

session 

Maximum 

Number of 

Sessions 

Estimated 

Maximum Total 

Cost for 

Contracted 

Period 

Assistive Technology Services (445)        

Occupational Therapy (450)        

Physical Therapy (460)        

Individual Counseling (510)        

Counseling and guidance (515).          

Parent Counseling (520)        

Social Work Services (525)        

Psychological Services (530)        

Behavior Intervention Services (535)        

Specialized Services for Low 

Incidence Disabilities (610) 
       

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing 

Services (710) 
       

Interpreter Services (715)        

Audiological Services (720)        

Specialized Vision Services (725)        

Orientation and Mobility (730)        

Braille Transcription (735)        

Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)        

Reader Services (745)        

Note Taking Services (750)        

Transcription Services (755)        

Recreation Services (760)        

College Awareness Preparation (820)        

Vocational Assessment, Counseling, 

Guidance and Career Assessment 

(830) 

       

Career Awareness (840)        

Work Experience Education (850)        

Mentoring (860)        

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 39 - 

 Provider     

SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER 

Specify 

# of Times per 

wk/mo/yr., 

Duration;  

or per IEP;  

or as needed 

Cost per 

session 

Maximum 

Number of 

Sessions 

Estimated 

Maximum Total 

Cost for 

Contracted 

Period 

Agency Linkages (865)        

Travel Training (870)        

Other Transition Services (890)        

Other (900)        

Other (900)        

Transportation-Emergency 

b. Transportation-Parent 
       

Bus Passes        

Other        

 

 ESTIMATED MAXIMUM RELATED SERVICES COST$      

 

TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BASIC EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES COSTS $     

 

4.  Other Provisions/Attachments: 

    

  

 

5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD ON    ______  

 

6. Progress Reporting Requirements:  Quarterly  Monthly  Other (Specify) __________________________________ 

 

The parties hereto have executed this Individual Services Agreement by and through their duly authorized agents or 

representatives as set forth below. 
 
CONTRACTOR 

Comprehensive Autism Related Education (CARE) Inc. 
 

LEA 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

 

 

By: 

  

By: 

 

 Yue Li, MS, BCBA 

President & CEO  

Date   Rose Ramos       Date 

Chief Business Officer 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 40 - 

EXHIBIT C:  HEALTH AND SAFETY ADDENDUM 

 

1. Contractor shall comply with any and all local, federal, and/or state guidelines and/or regulations 

regarding workplace health and safety, including but not limited to any guidelines or regulations 

regarding the COVID-19 pandemic, and Contractor shall be solely responsible for implementing any 

and all requirements imposed by such local, federal, and/or state guidelines and/or regulations.  

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that LEA, at its sole discretion, may impose additional 

requirements on all Contractors and their employees and/or subcontractors while they are present on 

LEA sites and/or property or during any interactions with LEA staff and students to comply with 

applicable regulations related workplace health and safety and/or to further LEA's efforts to provide a 

safe environment on its property.  Contractor shall comply with any such additional LEA 

requirements.  Contractor will, at its own cost and expense, review, follow, implement, and monitor 

safety and health measures as part of LEA's health and safety plans, policies and procedures and/or 

local, federal and/or state guidelines and regulations, including but not limited to vaccinations, testing, 

social distancing, face coverings, and sanitation. 

 

2. Contractor’s responsibility for the Clearance Requirements identified in Section 44 of the Master 

Contract extends to all of its employees, subcontractors, volunteers, employees of subcontractors, and 

anyone acting on behalf of Contractor who comes into contact with LEA students and/or staff 

regardless of whether they are designated as employees or as acting as independent contractors of the 

Contractor.  

 

3. Contractor recognizes that there is presently an element of risk of COVID-19 transmission inherent in 

visiting public spaces, such as LEA’s facilities and grounds, and/or engaging in activities, gatherings, 

or events with or within proximity of others, including, without limitation, accident, personal or 

bodily injury, illness, viral or bacterial exposure or infection, and/or death, and that engaging in such 

activities may be dangerous.  Contractor agrees that LEA cannot ensure the safety of Contractor or 

any of its employees, subcontractors, volunteers, employees of subcontractors, or anyone acting on 

behalf of Contractor from the risks of COVID-19 or other related or similar pandemics.  Contractor 

has reviewed and understands the risks reflected in the local, state, and federal alerts, guidelines, and 

regulations.  Contractor assumes all risks, known and unknown to it, its employees, subcontractors, 

volunteers, employees of subcontractors, or anyone acting on behalf of Contractor arising from 

Contractor’s provision of services pursuant to this Agreement, including risks related to COVID-19.  

Contractor assumes full responsibility for any sickness, hospitalization, bodily injury, death, loss of 

personal property, quarantines, and all related costs and expenses incurred by Contractor, Contractor’s 

employees, subcontractors, volunteers, employees of subcontractors, or anyone acting on behalf of 

Contractor arising from Contractor’s provision of services pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

4. Pursuant to the indemnification requirements in this Agreement, Contractor shall indemnify, hold 

harmless, and defend LEA from any damage, harm, or claim arising from Contractor’s compliance or 

lack of compliance, with the requirements set forth in this Addendum.  Additionally, if Contractor 

does not comply with any requirement set forth in this Addendum, then LEA may terminate this 

Agreement immediately, and Contractor shall be solely responsible for any and all associated costs, 

harm, or damage, incurred by LEA related to this breach. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 41 - 

5. In the event any provision or part of this Addendum is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the 

validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected or impaired in 

anyway and shall continue on with full force and effect. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE



S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 42 - 

EXHIBIT D:  INVOICE (NPA) 

 

 

 Invoice #: 

 Invoice Date: 

 PO #:  

 Month of Service: 

BILL TO: Sacramento City Unified School District     

 5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

    

SEND INVOICE TO: SPED-Invoices@scusd.edu      

        

REMIT TO        

NPA:     Contact Name:   

Address:     Email:    

City/ST/Zip:     Phone/Fax:   

        
SERVICE TYPE:  (ex. Speech) 

SERVICE 
DATE 

DURATION STUDENT NAME CLINICIAN CLINICIAN TYPE RATE  COST  

     SLP   

     SLPA   

        

        

      SUBTOTAL  $                    -    

SERVICE TYPE:  (ex. Occupational Therapy) 

SERVICE 
DATE 

DURATION STUDENT NAME CLINICIAN CLINICIAN TYPE RATE  COST  

     OTR   

     COTA   

        

        

      SUBTOTAL  $                    -    

SERVICE TYPE:  (ex. Physical Therapy) 

SERVICE 
DATE 

DURATION STUDENT NAME CLINICIAN CLINICIAN TYPE RATE  COST  

     PT   

     PTA   

        

        

      SUBTOTAL  $                    -    

      TOTAL  $             -    

NPA Administrator's Signature: 
__________________________________ DATE: _________________ 

        
*Authorized NPA Signature- The signature of a nonpublic agency official certifies under penalty of perjury that the above and attached information is 
true and correct.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE

mailto:SPED-Invoices@scusd.edu


S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 43 - 

EXHIBIT D:  INVOICE (NPS) 

 

 Invoice # 

 Invoice Date 

 PO #  

 Month of Service 

BILL TO: Sacramento City Unified School District     

 5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

    

SEND INVOICE TO: SPED-Invoices@scusd.edu      

        

REMIT TO        

NPs:     Contact Name:  

Address:     Email:    

City/ST/Zip:    Phone/Fax:   

        
ATTENDANCE: 

STUDENT NAME NPS SITE CASE MANAGER # DAYS COST 

    

    

    

    

    

    

  SUBTOTAL  $                    -    

RELATED SERVICE TYPE:  (ex. Speech) 

SERVICE 
DATE 

DURATION STUDENT NAME CLINICIAN CLINICIAN TYPE RATE  COST  

     SLP   

     SLPA   

        

      SUBTOTAL  $                    -    

RELATED SERVICE TYPE:  (ex. Occupational Therapy) 

SERVICE 
DATE 

DURATION STUDENT NAME CLINICIAN CLINICIAN TYPE RATE  COST  

     OTR   

     COTA   

        

      SUBTOTAL  $                    -    

      TOTAL  $             -    

NPS Administrator's Signature: __________________________________ DATE: _________________ 
        

*Authorized NPS Signature- The signature of a nonpublic school official certifies under penalty of perjury that the above and attached information is true 
and correct.  Attachments include: Daily Attendance Records, Related Service Records, and Absence Notes. 

        

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE

mailto:SPED-Invoices@scusd.edu


S23-00014 

CARE Inc. 

SCUSD 22-23 (NPS/A) 
- 44 - 

EXHIBIT E:  ATTENDANCE REGISTER (NPS ONLY) 
 
 

  
          

Sacramento City Unified School 
District       

           5735 47th Ave Sacramento, CA 95824 
     

 

           (916) 643-9174       
                  

     
        

 
Non-Public 
Location: 

   SCUSD P.O. Number     

                                

Attendance 
Month: 

  to     Total Number of Enrolled Students     

                             

Attendance 
Key:  

P- Present B- 
Behavior Related 
Absence 

    Please Submit To   

A- Absent H- Holiday/ No School      SPED-Invoices@scusd.edu 

  

* Please only use values listed above when reporting attendance *        

                               

Date:                                                    
Total 

Student 
Attendance 

Days 

List Students 
Alphabetically M T W TH F M T W TH F M T W TH F M T W TH F M T W TH F 

Last Name, First Name 

1                                                       

2                                                       

3                                                       

                               

NPS Administrator's Certification: 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, this State School register page has been kept as required by law and in accordance with the instruction of the Superintendent of Public Instruction.  

Administrator 
Name ______________________________  

Administrator 
Signature __________________________________  Date:   ______________________ 

 
Please submit your attendance reports no later than the 7th day of the following month. For example, July attendance reports should be submitted by August 7th or the last business day prior. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0ED92102-6D94-4C71-88D9-92BCF62491CE

mailto:SPED-Invoices@scusd.edu






 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT FOR  
CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Consultant Services ("Amendment") is entered into between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and Margarita Maldonado (“Maldonado”) (collectively the 
"Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Consultant Services originally entered to on January 31, 2022  

 
1. Extension of Term of the Agreement: This Amendment shall extend the current Maldonado 

staffing on the Project from November 1, 2022 to November 23, 2023; 
 

2. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Maldonado for the current 
staffing on the Project until November 23, 2023, and will pay for the increased services from and after 
November 1, 2022, on a not to exceed basis up to a maximum of $170,000.00, as reflected below, unless this 
Amendment is further extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Per PRC approval on January 9, 2023, from Margarita Maldonado requesting additional labor 

relations matter services; District accepts additional services 
 

Per PRC approval on January 9, 2023, from Margarita Maldonado requesting additional services to 
provide SCUSD labor relations matters to November 23, 2023. No other changes to contract or assigned 
projects and assigned services provided; District accepts increase in service request and corresponding 
change order in contract amount. 

 
Description of funding changes to contract: 

 
Original contract amount. ..................................................................................................$82,500.00 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order .......................................................................$82,500.00 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................... ... $87,500.00 

 
NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$170,000.00 

 
 
 
  

 
BUSINESS SERVICES 

 

Rose F Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

Robert Aldama, Interim Purchasing Manager 
 



 

 
 
 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Consultant Services shall remain in full force and effect and 

are hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the Agreement 
for Consultant Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Consultant Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective 
Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: January 19, 2023 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 Margarita Maldonado 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Rose Ramos 
CBO 

 Margarita Maldonado 

 
 
 
 
 













EXHIBIT B























/

DGS Links

DGS Home
DSA Home
DSA News

Tracker Links

Plan Review Fee Calculator
Home

Access
Compliance

Fire & Life
Safety

Structural
Safety

Total Due

Filing Fee $6,850.00 $6,200.00 $16,290.00 $29,340.00
Additional
Fee

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Further
Fee

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plan/Field Review Fee Calculator
Project submitted to DSA

on or after 5/1/2021

between 3/1/2019 and 4/30/2021

between 10/1/2017 and 2/28/2019

between 2/1/2016 and 9/30/2017

between 12/1/2014 and 1/31/2016

between 6/1/2013 and 11/30/2014

between 2/16/2010 and 5/31/2013

before 2/1/2010

Project Type: Select project type
School(K-12)

Estimated
Amt:

2600000

Contracted
Amt:

0

Construction
Change
Document
Amt:

0

Check review(s) for project

Access Compliance 

Fire & Life Safety 

Structural Safety

Calculate

Fees may be mailed or hand delivered. DSA also accepts payments by credit card or electronic
check online through a third-party software run by Fiserv at DSA Filing, Invoice & Re-Exam
Fees (www3.thepayplace.com/ca/dgsdsa/firfees). Proof of online payment must be submitted
as directed in procedure PR 20-02: Online Payments for Plan Review Filing Fees, Plan/Field
Review Fee Invoices & Project Certification Re-Examination Fees.

 Home Project
Status

eTracker

Inspectors Accepted
Labs

PlanPlanPlan
Review FeeReview FeeReview Fee
CalculatorCalculatorCalculator

Project
Status Pre-

Tracker

Help

Bret Harte Playground project
67439-430

Studio W Architects
SA23-00258

http://gov.ca.gov/
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/News
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/FeeCalculator.aspx
https://www3.thepayplace.com/ca/dgsdsa/firfees
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/
http://www.ca.gov/
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/Default.aspx
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/Default.aspx
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/ProjectStatus.aspx
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/Inspectors.aspx
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/ApprovedLabs.aspx
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/FeeCalculator.aspx
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/PreTrackerAppSearch.aspx
https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Tracker/Help.aspx


Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _11.1b ___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers Issued for the period of January 1-31, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of warrants and checks. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The detailed list of warrants, checks and electronic transfers issued 
for the period of January 1-31, 2023 are available for the Board members upon request. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Normal business items that reflect payments from district funds. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached: 
• Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers – January 1-31, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business & Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



.lkl

Page 1 : 1 Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers January 2023

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

97411170 - 97412011 842 items 26,631,709.76$         

General (01) 16,473,820.01$         

Charter (09) 196,682.45$              

Adult Education (11) 607,576.28$              

Child Development (12) 53,670.42$                

Cafeteria (13) 1,604,511.72$           

Building (21) 6,180,900.45$           

Developer Fees (25) 49,945.76$                

Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 267.78$                     

Self Insurance (67) 3,054.53$                  

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 1,455,411.92$           

Payroll Revolving (76) 5,868.44$                  

00002164 - 00002166 3 items 11,028.61$                

General (01) 9,249.00$                  

Payroll Revolving (76) 1,779.61$                  

97886039 - 97887155 1117 items 5,235,610.30$           

General (01) 1,605,856.70$           

Charter (09) 49,977.65$                

Adult Education (11) 12,736.24$                

Child Development (12) 47,281.69$                

Cafeteria (13) 128,193.47$              

Payroll Revolving (76) 3,391,564.55$           

ACH 01492174 - 01497954 5782 items 18,602,352.39$         

EFT 00000117 - 00000118 General (01) 16,835,211.78$         

Charter (09) 511,627.62$              

Adult Education (11) 191,883.88$              

Child Development (12) 372,114.97$              

Cafeteria (13) 560,791.23$              

Building (21) 39,091.07$                

Self Insurance (67) 16,208.87$                

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 13,950.80$                

Payroll Revolving (76) 61,472.17$                

9700349845 - 9700349854 10 items 13,990,557.60$         

General (01) 4,963.79$                  

Payroll Revolving (76) 13,985,593.81$         

Total 7754 items 64,471,258.66$         

County Accounts 

Payable Warrants

Alternate Cash 

Revolving Checks

Payroll and Payroll 

Vendor Warrants

Payroll ACHs and  

Payroll Vendor EFTs

County Wire Transfers 

for Benefit, Debt & Tax



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _11.1c___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:   February 16, 2023 
 
Subject:   Donations to the District for the Period of January 1-31, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the donations to the District for the period of January 1-31, 2023. 
   
Background/Rationale:  Per Board Policy 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests, the Board of 
Education accepts donations on behalf of the schools and the District. After Board approval, 
the Board Office will send a letter of recognition to the donors.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
• Donations Report for the period of January 1-31, 2023  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



Receipt DetailAR06a

B OF A   - BANK OF AMERICA

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/31/23 Winter Assembly, The Key Project, Ck1124BA23-0001653 BA0000336The Key Project - A Realty Company Inc Check 11247654Posted 715.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0130- 715.00 

01/30/23 Donations, Sutter Middle 1-30BA23-0001680 (0490) SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL Check 1554, 1055527649Posted 1,066.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0490- 100.00 7th Grade Field Trip, Tara Thronson, Ck1554

01- 0812- 0- 8699-   -     -     -    - 0490- 966.00 Library Donation, K12 Book Source, Ck105552

1,781.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 815.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

01-8699 966.00 All Other Local Revenue

1,781.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Fiscal Year 2023      

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  1,781.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  8 2023  

4:08PM

Page 1 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/25/23 Stipend, WestEd, Ck000536003BW23-0000651 BOTW012523(000366) West Ed Check 0005360037658Posted 500.00 

09- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0505- 500.00 

01/25/23 Ca Music Dept, Fidelity Charitable, Ck13002300BW23-0000654 BOTW012523(000665) FIDELITY CHARITABLE Check 130023007658Posted 200.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0490- 200.00 

2,481.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 200.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

200.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

09-8690 500.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

500.00 Fund 09 - Charter School   

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  2,481.00 

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District

1,781.00 C - Check

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  8 2023  

4:08PM

Page 2 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District (continued)

700.00 C - Check

Report Total 2,481.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  8 2023  

4:08PM

Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1d 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Update of Board Policy Titles and Numbers 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Legal Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Move to adopt the recommended CSBA titles for the polices listed 
in the attachment to this item. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:   
Our district subscribes to the GAMUT Policy Plus – a service provided by CSBA to help 
us update and maintain current school board policies. The program gives us access to 
700 sample policies, regulations, bylaws and exhibits that are updated by CSBA on a 
regular quarterly basis. We also receive ongoing consulting services and a customized 
district website to host and manage our own district polices. CSBA has updated the 
program with a new technology platform that has a built in translation feature. The 
translation feature uses a uniform codification system (e.g., policy numbering system) 
that allows us to search across CSBA’s sample policies and adopted polices of more 
than 600 other districts in California, and enables CSBA to push updates direct to our 
site as drafts whenever updates are released. There are no additional costs for the new 
program and features. 
 
As part of the transition to the new platform CSBA has identified policies that are 
already adopted, but have names that do not match the system codes. At present, the 
policies that have titles that do not match the system are not displayed publically in the 
GAMUT system despite being adopted district policies. CSBA is recommending that we 
rename the policies to match the CSBA title in the codification system so that they can 
be hosted promptly. There are no substantive change to the policy. We did a similar 
update change to the numbers that were not aligned with GAMUT back in June of 2023.  
The only change will be to the title of the policy. 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Policies updated title/number 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Type POLICY NUMBER DISTRICT TITLE IN OLD GAMUT NEW TITLE

BP 0 Concepts And Roles Vision
BP 200 Goals For The District Goals For The School District
BP 250 Asset Development Policy ^Policy Statement On Growth
AR 420.4 Charter Schools Charter School Authorization
BP 420.4 Charter Schools Charter School Authorization
AR 1240 Volunteers Volunteer Assistance
BP 1240 Volunteers Volunteer Assistance
BP 1325 Advertising, Promotion, And Sponsorship Advertising And Promotion
BP 2210 Administrative Leeway In Absence Of Governing Board Policy Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy
AR 3280 Sale, Lease, Rental Of District-Owned Real Property Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property
BP 3280 Sale, Lease, Rental Of District-Owned Real Property Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property
AR 3300 Expenditures/Expending Authority Expenditures And Purchases
BP 3300 Expenditures/Expending Authority Expenditures And Purchases
AR 3310 Purchasing Procedures ^Purchasing
BP 3310 Purchasing Procedures ^Purchasing
BP 3470 Debt Issuance And Management Policy Debt Issuance And Management
AR 3511 Energy And Water Conservation Energy And Water Management
BP 3511 Grimes/Kennedy Green And Grid Neutral Model Schools Policy Initiative Energy And Water Management
AR 3515.5 Sex Offender Information Sex Offender Notification
BP 3515.5 Sex Offender Information Sex Offender Notification
AR 4032 Reasonable Accommodation Of Disabled Employees Reasonable Accommodation
BP 4111 Recruitment And Selection For Principal And Assistant Principal Recruitment And Selection
AR 4112.21 District Interns Interns
BP 4112.21 District Interns Interns
AR 4112.22 Staff Teaching Students Of Limited English Proficiency Staff Teaching English Learners
AR 4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For Employees In Safety Sensitive Positions Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
BP 4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For Employees In Safety Sensitive Positions Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
AR 4112.8 Employment Of Relatives And Persons Involved In Consensual Relationships Employment Of Relatives
BP 4112.8 Employment Of Relatives And Persons Involved In Consensual Relationships Employment Of Relatives
AR 4117.14 Retired Teachers/Class Size Reduction Program Postretirement Employment
AR 4118 Suspension/Disciplinary Action Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
BP 4118 Suspension/Disciplinary Action Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
BP 4122 Student Teachers/University Interns ^Student Teachers
AR 4161.4 Visiting Educator Leave ^Vacation
AR 4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For Employees In Safety Sensitive Positions Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
BP 4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For Employees In Safety Sensitive Positions Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
AR 4212.8 Employment Of Relatives And Persons Involved In Consensual Relationships Employment Of Relatives
BP 4212.8 Employment Of Relatives And Persons Involved In Consensual Relationships Employment Of Relatives
BP 4315.1 Staff Evaluating Teachers ^Administrative Competence in Evaluation
AR 4317.14 Retired Teachers/Class Size Reduction Program Postretirement Employment
BP 5112.5 Closed Campus Open/Closed Campus
BP 5113.1 Truancy Chronic Absence And Truancy
AR 5118 Transfers ^Open Enrollment Act Transfers
BP 5121 Evaluation Of Student Achievement Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement
BP 5124 Communicating With Parents/Guardians ^Communication With Parents/Guardians
AR 5131.4 Campus Disturbances Student Disturbances
BP 5131.4 Campus Disturbances Student Disturbances
BP 5131.5 Vandalism, Theft And Graffiti Vandalism And Graffiti
AR 5131.63 Anabolic Steroids Steroids
BP 5131.63 Anabolic Steroids Steroids
AR 5141.32 Child Health And Disability Prevention Program Health Screening For School Entry
AR 5141.4 Child Abuse Reporting Procedures Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
BP 5141.4 Child Abuse Reporting Procedures Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
AR 5141.6 School-Based Health And Social Services School Health Services
BP 5141.6 School-Based Health And Social Services School Health Services
AR 5142.2 Crossing Guards Safe Routes To School Program
AR 5145.11 Questioning And Apprehension Questioning And Apprehension By Law Enforcement
BP 5145.11 Questioning And Apprehension Questioning And Apprehension By Law Enforcement
BP 5145.13 Immigration Enforcement Activities Response To Immigration Enforcement
AR 5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression: Publications Code Freedom Of Speech/Expression
BP 5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression: Publications Code Freedom Of Speech/Expression
BP 6010 Goals And Objectives ^Instructional Goals and Objectives
BP 6020 Parent Engagement Parent Involvement
AR 6142.1 Family Life/Sex Education Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction
BP 6142.1 Family Life/Sex Education Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction
AR 6142.4 Service Learning Project Senior Project Service Learning/Community Service Classes
BP 6142.4 Service Learning Project Senior Project Service Learning/Community Service Classes
AR 6142.7 Physical Education Physical Education And Activity
BP 6142.7 Physical Education Physical Education And Activity
AR 6162.51 Standardized Testing And Reporting Program State Academic Achievement Tests
AR 6164.4 Identification Of Individuals For Special Education Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education
BP 6164.4 Identification Of Individuals For Special Education Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education
AR 6164.5 Student Study Teams Student Success Teams
BP 6164.5 Student Study Teams Student Success Teams
AR 6170.1 Early Kinder/Transitional Kindergarten Transitional Kindergarten
BP 6170.1 Early Kinder/Transitional Kindergarten Transitional Kindergarten
BP 6174 Education For English Language Learners Education For English Learners
BP 6176 Extended Day/Weekend/Saturday Classes Weekend/Saturday Classes
AR 6177 Summer School And Extended Learning Summer Learning Programs
BP 6177 Summer School And Extended Learning Summer Learning Programs
AR 6178 Vocational Education Career Technical Education
BP 6178 Vocational Education Career Technical Education
BP 6178.1 Work Experience Education Work-Based Learning
AR 6181 Alternative Schools Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
BP 6181 Alternative Schools Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
B 9000 Role Of The Board (Powers And Responsibilities) Role Of The Board
B 9240 Board Development Board Training
B 9321 Closed Session Purposes And Agendas Closed Session



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Agenda Item# _11.1e_ 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Board Policy 6142.6- Visual and Performing Arts Education 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Curriculum and Instruction (Visual and Performing Arts) 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Board Policy 6142.6- Visual and Performing Arts 
Education 
 
Background/Rationale:  As the District and Community Arts Teams move closer to 
recommending a strategic plan to the SCUSD governing board, it is recommended that 
the Board update the policy regarding the Visual and Performing Arts to reflect both 
more current information about how the Visual and Performing Arts benefits students 
academically, social emotionally, and how the arts can lead to viable and sustainable 
careers in the California Creative Economy. This new board policy shall create a 
mandate for SCUSD to create a comprehensive strategic arts plan that will guide the 
district in creating a sequential arts curriculum that is consistent with California’s new 
Visual and Performing Arts Framework that was introduced in 2019. This new policy will 
also help to inform how the district will evaluate its visual and performing arts program in 
the future.  
 
Financial Considerations:  While there are no direct financial considerations for this 
change in policy, this new board policy will better inform the SCUSD Strategic Arts Plan, 
which, when completed, will recommend how incoming grant and ongoing funding for 
the arts is allocated and how the district can increase spending in the arts to meet the 
state requirement of arts classes for all students in K-12.  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Readiness, Foundational Educational Experience 
with Equitable Opportunities for ALL Students, Integrated Supports, Culture and Climate 
– Dismantling Systems, Engagement and Empowerment  
 
Documents Attached:   

1. Executive Summary  
2. Policy 6142.6: Visual and Performing Arts Education (Clean) 
3. Policy 6142.6: Visual and Performing Arts Education (Redlines) 



 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  (Yvonne Wright Chief Academic Officer and Charles 

Deangelus VAPA Coordinator) 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Visual and Performing Arts  
Approve Board Policy 6142.6 
February 16, 2023  
  
 

 
Visual and Performing Arts 1 

 
I.   OVERVIEW / HISTORY  
The District and Community Arts Teams are proposing a new Board Policy (BP)6142.6 for Visual 
and Performing Arts Education to help increase the equitability of arts education in the district 
and drive the creation of a 5-year district Strategic Arts Plan that will increase arts education in 
our elementary schools and create a budget to take advantage of new one-time state funding 
(Arts Block Grant) and potential new ongoing funding (Prop 28).  
 
II.   DRIVING GOVERNANCE 
California Ed. Code compliance., Prop 28 and Arts and Music Instructional Materials Grant 
funding mandates. 
 
III.   BUDGET  
There are no immediate or mandated budget implications in this item. A visual and performing 
arts (VAPA) budget is currently being developed to reflect an anticipated increase in funding 
from Prop 28 and the Arts and Music Instructional Materials Grant (AMIM).  The proposed 
VAPA budget will be developed as part of the Strategic Arts Plan and informed by the priorities 
designated in this new Board Policy. 
 
IV.   GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND MEASURES  
To update SCUSD’s Board Policy to reflect compliance with CA Education Code and the core 
values of the district and community. This policy update will help direct the strategic arts plan 
to equitably increase arts instruction throughout the district with the goals of improving 
students’ academic outcomes, social emotional mental health, and to better prepare all 
students for possible careers in the arts.  
 
V.   MAJOR INITIATIVES  
This new board policy will mandate and facilitate the creation of a Strategic District Arts plan to 
be implemented over the next 5 years with the goal of providing elementary arts education to 
all SCUSD students.  
 
VI.   RESULTS  
Approval of this item will update the existing board policy for (BP)6142.6 which will then be 
included in the District’s Strategic District Arts Plan 
 
VII.   LESSONS LEARNED / NEXT STEPS  
After approval of (BP)6142.6, the VAPA department will complete and submit the arts plan for 
board approval for implementation in the 2023-24 school year. The board will be updated on 
the progress of the plan yearly.  

 



Board Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 6142.6: Visual And Performing Arts Education Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2007 | Last Revised Date: 05/01/2019 | Last Reviewed Date: 
12/01/2013 

 

 
The Governing Board of the Sacramento City Unified School District believes that visual and performing 
arts are essential to a well-rounded educational program and should be an integral part of the course of 
study offered to students at all grade levels during the school day. The District's arts education program 
should be designed to foster students' artistic competencies, cultivate students' appreciation and 
understanding of the arts in ways that are enjoyable, fulfilling, and transferable to students' personal, 
social emotional, academic, and professional endeavors, and support students to fully engage in lifelong 
arts learning. 

California Education Code 51210 states that “the adopted course of study for grades 1 to 6, inclusive, 
shall include instruction, beginning in grade 1 and continuing through grade 6, in the following areas of 
study: visual and performing arts, including instruction in the subjects of dance, music, theatre, and visual 
arts, aimed at the development of aesthetic appreciation and the skills of creative expression” 
 

In order to ensure compliance with the CA Educational Code, the Superintendent or designee shall 
develop a detailed and budgeted visual and performing arts implementation plan, which will include 
strategic goals, strategies, and procedures to implement Board policy.  

As part of this plan the District shall: 

• Adopt rigorous TK-12 academic standards for dance, media arts, music, theatre, and visual arts 
that lead to artistic literacy, promote access and equity in the arts, and create supportive 
environments and structures for all students to learn. District standards shall describe the skills, 
knowledge, and abilities that students are expected to possess at each grade level and shall meet 
or exceed state standards. These academic standards should be in alignment with the SCUSD core 
value and create an academic framework that supports arts educators in creating content that is 
culturally responsive, supports students’ social emotional needs, and is inclusive of the culture or 
cultures of the students that are being taught. 

• Develop a TK-12 sequential, standards-based curriculum for dance, media arts, music, theatre, 
and visual arts which is consistent with the state curriculum standards and includes the following 
artistic processes:  

1.  Creating:  Conceiving and developing new artistic ideas and work. 
  

2.  Performing/producing/presenting:  Realizing artistic ideas and work through interpretation and 
presentation. 
  

3.  Responding:  Understanding and evaluating how the arts convey meaning. 
  

4.  Connecting:  Relating artistic ideas and work with personal meaning and external content. 



• Adopt or create standards-based instructional materials and resources, which may include, but are 
not limited to, equipment, facilities, textbooks, media, and technology that supports student 
learning in the arts. 

• Support the position(s) of a qualified arts administrator and/or administration team to provide 
leadership, vision, planning, and resources for the District to successfully implement a Strategic 
Arts Plan 

• Hire qualified and credentialed visual and performing arts teachers at all grade levels 
• Provide ongoing, relevant professional development for both classroom teachers and arts teachers 

designed to increase teachers’ knowledge of, and ability to teach, the arts as stand-alone subjects 
and to integrate the arts into every classroom. 

• Provide opportunities for arts teachers to collaborate at the site level and across the district with 
teachers in the same arts discipline.  

• Encourage, but not rely on, the integration of community arts resources into the educational 
program. Such resources may include opportunities for students to attend performances, observe 
the works of accomplished artists, and work directly with trained artists-in-residence and 
volunteers. In addition, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with community 
organizations to share resources and seek grant opportunities. 

• Develop a set of metrics to measure and evaluate the success of the implementation of the 
Strategic Arts Plan. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate the implementation of the District’s arts plan and 
the arts education program at each grade level, and report to the Board regarding its success in reaching 
its implementation goals. After the first five years of the initial arts plan, the Superintendent or designee 
shall evaluate the effectiveness of the plan and provide recommendations for updating the plan every 5-10 
years to ensure that the District’s Strategic Arts Plan remains in compliance with District and community 
values.   
 
The Board of Education supports the need to provide adequate funding for TK-12 Arts education and in 
times of budget cutbacks, reductions should be distributed equitably across subject areas, rather than 
eliminating arts programs.  

 
 
 

 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the 
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter 
of the policy.  

State Description 
Ed. Code 32060-32066 Toxic art supplies 

Ed. Code 35330-35332 Field trips 

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6 

Ed. Code 51220 Course of study for grades 7-12 



Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation 

Ed. Code 58800-58805 Specialized secondary programs 

Ed. Code 60200-60213 Instructional materials, elementary schools 

Ed. Code 60400-60411 Instructional materials, high schools 

Ed. Code 8950-8957 California summer school for the arts 

Ed. Code 99200-99204 Subject matter projects 

Management Resources Description 
California Alliance For Arts Education 
Publication 

Parents' Guide to the Visual and Performing Arts in California 
Public Schools 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Arts Framework for Public Schools, Kindergarten 
through Grade Twelve 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Arts Standards for Public Schools, Prekindergarten 
through Grade Twelve, January 2019 

Website The California Arts Project 

Website Arts Education Partnership 

Website California Alliance for Arts Education 

Website California Art Education Association 

Website California Arts Council 

Website California Association for Music Education 

Website California Dance Education Association 

Website California Department of Education, Visual and Performing Arts 

Website California Educational Theatre Association 

Website California Music Educators Association 

Website CSBA 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0415 Equity 

0440 District Technology Plan 

0440 District Technology Plan 

0500 Accountability 

1230 School-Connected Organizations 

http://csmp.ucop.edu/tcap#
http://aep-arts.org/#
http://www.artsed411.org/#
http://www.caea-arteducation.org/#
http://www.cac.ca.gov/#
http://www.actaonline.org/content/california-association-music-education#
http://www.cdeadance.org/#
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/vp#
http://www.cetoweb.org/#
http://www.calmusiced.com/#
http://www.csba.org/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=9fOxm6YSOsjBQ7YLPgBzQA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=TGB3d9RZOEFIslshac4O9Iibw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=D3mslshhxiWA66PiLzVQnYPbg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qpfQp8zplusslsh7eEb4UDplushvRjQ==#


1230 School-Connected Organizations 

1240 Volunteer Assistance 

1240 Volunteer Assistance 

1260 Educational Foundation 

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials 

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials 

1312.2-E PDF(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials 

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools 

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests 

4131 Staff Development 

5113.11 Attendance Supervision 

5148.2 Before/After School Programs 

5148.2 Before/After School Programs 

6011 Academic Standards 

6020 Parent Involvement 

6020 Parent Involvement 

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation 

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation 

6141.4 International Baccalaureate Program 

6143 Courses Of Study 

6143 Courses Of Study 

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events 

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements 

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements 

6153 School-Sponsored Trips 

6153 School-Sponsored Trips 

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=EttRbwbZcTYLJGfyplusAplus9tQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qtmyiml4l7GvDTy6r17JMw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=zzASb7clCzcCyplus88RtsvplusQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=1L0y4DgLowGPRi7plusnDYKSg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=SL2eplusvWQV2DplusGoPOTpZ0UQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=TR1Nm1QXY5gJ16tslshXSutww==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=yN4GqgmIjkTOdblt5Luieg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=B3WuowsXMnQSx9BBzd2TJQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=5hnVAXwa15TnxkbM688oqw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=w3AXoA8vl7AC7HLfttplusmjA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=w2rrFVAmQo4vjeURorkplusDw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=83z8UTtHyheSScyqZjrFTw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=fr03uVqBa6ZXplus9v0UcHGQw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m3sWTWgcyt3qIk4BjS3SFw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=kmepecduPHoiwuwUZw4nrQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=N3h66HEkPzMkVVzPyT2qRA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=UAjeoq5slshhkplusRYWplusklzCnbw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m2kvBUpplus0slshEOgA03Fr4UBA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=3ypluskpbSi8Ye41EFDKJenZw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DKYXqVv74EMknNkW5Qzplusaw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Zd5keyTeOFsdJyvFb8I2XQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=RpR10KDUJJtO0rD6ffplusJxQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=slshAngyXJ4plusC3OBoVwF4xVqw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eXz9keNXvFiiW7bYcWKEhA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=KP8ag32GxRNNUfrneq86fQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=5cfM96ZMvsGplus4hRzTV1mHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=W8jBdPjQ6kmnMkKemM01Gg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0plusPO9doDKFJPslsh8ghxK3qjA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=h30odl1d8bJbr2XuPoysLA==#


6161.1-E PDF(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials 

6162.5 Student Assessment 

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials 

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials 

6163.1 Library Media Centers 

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program 

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program 

6179 Supplemental Instruction 

 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=TppDhp8slshC0u2VaN69pUQQA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Pt5MFgjY78pooZUqZprYplusQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=vSaIYHEI9dUdkxplustRWkjwQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=yU9oDZJ5IbFXJL8jw9T8OA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m75QzbhCbslshFleBkbslshCFslsh2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=w77soWtMslshO4ewHfkPwf92w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=auqK3bZBex4hGZO5qfuMxQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=xHRiJ97CcSVAjB1hdRdtDg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=OLHwkplusY4AHr1Y5iZP1wtslshQ==#


Board Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 6142.6: Visual And Performing Arts Education Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2007 | Last Revised Date: 05/01/2019 | Last Reviewed Date: 12/01/2013  

 

The Governing Board of the Sacramento City Unified School District recognizes that arts education, including 
subjects such as dance, drama/theatre, music and visual arts, contributes significantly to the education of all 
students. 

The Board supports a K-12 arts education curriculum that offers a fine arts opportunity as part of the regular and 
extended day for all students. 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures to implement Board Policies and provide for the 
development and ongoing review and evaluation of arts education. The Board will provide district support and seek 
other resources through partnerships with the Sacramento community at large. 

 
The Governing Board of the Sacramento City Unified School District believes that vvisual and pperforming aarts 
are essential to a well-rounded educational program and should be an integral part of the course of study offered to 
students at all grade levels during the school day. The Ddistrict's arts education program shouldall be designed to 
foster students' artistic competencies, cultivate students' appreciation and understanding of the arts in ways that are 
enjoyable, fulfilling, and transferable to students' personal, social emotional, academic, and professional endeavors, 
and support students to fully engage in lifelong arts learning. 

California Education Code 51210 states that “the adopted course of study for grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall 
include instruction, beginning in grade 1 and continuing through grade 6, in the following areas of study: visual and 
performing arts, including instruction in the subjects of dance, music, theatre, and visual arts, aimed at the 
development of aesthetic appreciation and the skills of creative expression” 
 

In order to ensure compliance with the CA Educational Code, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a 
detailed and budgeted visual and performing arts implementation plan, which will include strategic goals, 
strategies, and procedures to implement Board policy.  

As part of this plan the District shall: 

•  
 
The Board shall Aadopt rigorous TK-12 academic standards for dance, media arts, music, theatre, and 
visual arts that lead to artistic literacy, and promote access and equity in the arts, and create supportive 
environments and structures for all students to learn. District standards shall describe the skills, knowledge, 
and abilities that students are expected to possess at each grade level and shall meet or exceed state 
standards. These academic standards should be in alignment with the SCUSD core value and create an 
academic framework that supports arts educators in creating content that is culturally responsive, supports 
students’ social emotional needs, and is inclusive of the culture or cultures of the students that are being 
taught. 

•  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall Ddevelop a TK-12 sequential, standards-based curriculum for dance, 
media arts, music, theatre, and visual arts which is consistent with the state curriculum frameworkstandards 
and includes the following artistic processes:  

1.  Creating:  Cconceiving and developing new artistic ideas and work. 
  

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato



2.  Performing/producing/presenting:  Rrealizing artistic ideas and work through interpretation and 
presentation. 
  

3.  Responding:  Uunderstanding and evaluating how the arts convey meaning. 
  

4.  Connecting:  Rrelating artistic ideas and work with personal meaning and external content. 

• The Board shall Aadopt or create standards-based instructional materials and resources, for visual and 
performing arts which may include, but are not limited to, equipment, facilities, textbooks, media, and 
technology that supports student learning in the arts incorporate a variety of media and technologies. 

• Support the position(s) of a qualified arts administrator and/or administration team to provide leadership, 
vision, planning, and resources for the District to successfully implement a Strategic Arts Plan 

• Hire qualified and credentialed visual and performing arts teachers at all grade levels 
• Provide ongoing, relevant professional development for both classroom teachers and arts teachers designed 

to increase teachers’ knowledge of, and ability to teach, the arts as stand-alone subjects and to integrate the 
arts into every classroom. 

• Provide opportunities for arts teachers to collaborate at the site level and across the district with teachers in 
the same arts discipline.  

• Encourage, but not rely on, the integration of community arts resources into the educational program. Such 
resources may include opportunities for students to attend performances, observe the works of 
accomplished artists, and work directly with trained artists-in-residence and volunteers. In addition, the 
Superintendent or designee may collaborate with community organizations to share resources and seek 
grant opportunities. 

• Develop a set of metrics to measure and evaluate the success of the implementation of the Strategic Arts 
Plan. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate the implementation of the District’s arts plan and the arts 
education program at each grade level, and report to the Board regarding its success in reaching its implementation 
goals. After the first five years of the initial arts plan, the Superintendent or designee shall evaluate the 
effectiveness of the plan and provide recommendations for updating the plan every 5-10 years to ensure that the 
District’s Strategic Arts Plan remains in compliance with District and community values.   
 
The Board of Education supports the need to provide adequate funding for TK-12 Arts education and in times of 
budget cutbacks, reductions should be distributed equitably across subject areas, rather than eliminating arts 
programs.  

 
 
As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a standards-based professional development 
program designed to increase teachers' knowledge of and ability to teach the arts and to implement the district's 
arts education program. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage the integration of community arts resources into the 
educational program.  Such resources may include opportunities for students to attend musical and theatrical 
performances, observe the works of accomplished artists, and work directly with artists-in-residence and 
volunteers.  In addition, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with community organizations to share 
resources and seek grant opportunities. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate the implementation of the district's arts education 
program at each grade level and report to the Board regarding its effectiveness in enabling students to meet 
academic standards.  

 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to enact 
this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.  

State Description 
Ed. Code 32060-32066 Toxic art supplies 

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"



Ed. Code 35330-35332 Field trips 

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6 

Ed. Code 51220 Course of study for grades 7-12 

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation 

Ed. Code 58800-58805 Specialized secondary programs 

Ed. Code 60200-60213 Instructional materials, elementary schools 

Ed. Code 60400-60411 Instructional materials, high schools 

Ed. Code 8950-8957 California summer school for the arts 

Ed. Code 99200-99204 Subject matter projects 

Management Resources Description 
California Alliance For Arts Education 
Publication 

Parents' Guide to the Visual and Performing Arts in California 
Public Schools 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Arts Framework for Public Schools, Kindergarten 
through Grade Twelve 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Arts Standards for Public Schools, Prekindergarten 
through Grade Twelve, January 2019 

Website The California Arts Project 

Website Arts Education Partnership 

Website California Alliance for Arts Education 

Website California Art Education Association 

Website California Arts Council 

Website California Association for Music Education 

Website California Dance Education Association 

Website California Department of Education, Visual and Performing Arts 

Website California Educational Theatre Association 

Website California Music Educators Association 

Website CSBA 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0415 Equity 

0440 District Technology Plan 

0440 District Technology Plan 

0500 Accountability 

1230 School-Connected Organizations 

1230 School-Connected Organizations 

1240 Volunteer Assistance 

1240 Volunteer Assistance 

http://csmp.ucop.edu/tcap#
http://aep-arts.org/#
http://www.artsed411.org/#
http://www.caea-arteducation.org/#
http://www.cac.ca.gov/#
http://www.actaonline.org/content/california-association-music-education#
http://www.cdeadance.org/#
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/vp#
http://www.cetoweb.org/#
http://www.calmusiced.com/#
http://www.csba.org/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=9fOxm6YSOsjBQ7YLPgBzQA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=TGB3d9RZOEFIslshac4O9Iibw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=D3mslshhxiWA66PiLzVQnYPbg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qpfQp8zplusslsh7eEb4UDplushvRjQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=EttRbwbZcTYLJGfyplusAplus9tQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qtmyiml4l7GvDTy6r17JMw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=zzASb7clCzcCyplus88RtsvplusQ==#


1260 Educational Foundation 

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials 

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials 

1312.2-E PDF(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials 

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools 

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests 

4131 Staff Development 

5113.11 Attendance Supervision 

5148.2 Before/After School Programs 

5148.2 Before/After School Programs 

6011 Academic Standards 

6020 Parent Involvement 

6020 Parent Involvement 

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation 

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation 

6141.4 International Baccalaureate Program 

6143 Courses Of Study 

6143 Courses Of Study 

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events 

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements 

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements 

6153 School-Sponsored Trips 

6153 School-Sponsored Trips 

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

6161.1-E PDF(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials 

6162.5 Student Assessment 

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials 

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials 

6163.1 Library Media Centers 

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program 

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program 

6179 Supplemental Instruction 

 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=1L0y4DgLowGPRi7plusnDYKSg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=SL2eplusvWQV2DplusGoPOTpZ0UQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=TR1Nm1QXY5gJ16tslshXSutww==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=yN4GqgmIjkTOdblt5Luieg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=B3WuowsXMnQSx9BBzd2TJQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=5hnVAXwa15TnxkbM688oqw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=w3AXoA8vl7AC7HLfttplusmjA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=w2rrFVAmQo4vjeURorkplusDw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=83z8UTtHyheSScyqZjrFTw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=fr03uVqBa6ZXplus9v0UcHGQw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m3sWTWgcyt3qIk4BjS3SFw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=kmepecduPHoiwuwUZw4nrQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=N3h66HEkPzMkVVzPyT2qRA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=UAjeoq5slshhkplusRYWplusklzCnbw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m2kvBUpplus0slshEOgA03Fr4UBA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=3ypluskpbSi8Ye41EFDKJenZw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DKYXqVv74EMknNkW5Qzplusaw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Zd5keyTeOFsdJyvFb8I2XQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=RpR10KDUJJtO0rD6ffplusJxQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=slshAngyXJ4plusC3OBoVwF4xVqw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eXz9keNXvFiiW7bYcWKEhA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=KP8ag32GxRNNUfrneq86fQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=5cfM96ZMvsGplus4hRzTV1mHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=W8jBdPjQ6kmnMkKemM01Gg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0plusPO9doDKFJPslsh8ghxK3qjA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=h30odl1d8bJbr2XuPoysLA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=TppDhp8slshC0u2VaN69pUQQA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Pt5MFgjY78pooZUqZprYplusQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=vSaIYHEI9dUdkxplustRWkjwQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=yU9oDZJ5IbFXJL8jw9T8OA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m75QzbhCbslshFleBkbslshCFslsh2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=w77soWtMslshO4ewHfkPwf92w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=auqK3bZBex4hGZO5qfuMxQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=xHRiJ97CcSVAjB1hdRdtDg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=OLHwkplusY4AHr1Y5iZP1wtslshQ==#


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1f 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the February 2, 2023, Regular Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the February 2, 2023, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the February 2, 2023, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Agular, Superintendent 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

1 

 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, February 2, 2023 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2022/23-17 
 

       Allotted Time 
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:25 p.m. by President Rhodes. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Kayatta 
Member Rhodes 
Member Pritchett 
Member Jeane 
Member Villa 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Phillips 
Member Singh 
Member McGurk 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
No public comment 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

2 

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Cases 2022110488 and 2022120141) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment  
 

 
. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The meeting was called back to order by President Rhodes at 6:24 p.m. 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Superintendent Aguilar 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement was presented by Student Member Liam McGurk 
 
4.3       Stellar Student was introduced by Board Member Taylor Kayatta 
 

 
 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There were 2 announcements that came out of closed session: 
- The Board approved a special education settlement agreement identified as OAH 

Case number 2022110488 by a vote of 7-0 
- The Board approved a special education settlement agreement identified as OAH 

Case number 2022120141 by a vote of 7-0 
 

. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 
President Rhodes made a motion to adopt the agenda with Member Pritchett and a 
second by Member Villa. The Board voted unanimously to adopt the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                               15 minutes 
 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the District’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; 
or (3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall 
be no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please 
fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are 
received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no 
more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the  
 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

3 

Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a 
matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

  
                              Olivia Minor 
                              Shana Just 
                              Audria Johnson 
                              Deborah Wilson 
                              Tasha Dillard 
                                
 

. 8.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

  

 8.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA-David Fisher spoke about the SCUSD budget, the 
Superintendent’s evaluation, implementation issues with 
TK, community schools and the district’s refusal to meet, 
educators not being paid for work rendered, the failure to 
comply with contract regarding sunshining, the 
Superintendent’s refusal to convene the OPEB committee, 
and the unnecessary use of outside contractors. 

 SEIU- No update 
 TCS- No update 
 Teamsters- No update  
 UPE- No update 

  

 

 

          8.2 District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee- No update  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee- No update 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee- No 

update 

 Student Advisory Council- Update 

 Black/African American Advisory Board-No update 

 

     

. 8.3 Student Member Report (Liam McGurk)- a quizlet was sent out in 
November and we now have gathered all the information and we put it 
on slides, and we are excited to share the information at the next Board 
meeting 

 

 

 

     



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

4 

. 9.0    SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
 

 

              9.1  Safety Update (Raymond Lozada)  
 
              Raymond Lozada opened the presentation by going over the 

parameters of our efforts which include funding challenges, 
district needed to a plan, utilizing all resources for safety 
strategy, and strategies respective of the concerns conveyed 
throughout the re imagine school safety task force as well as 
the 21-22 school year structure. Mr. Lozada went over safety 
gaps in phase one and phase two which is safety and 
intervention response for 22-23. Mr. Lozada went over the 
overarching goals which include safety of staff and students, 
preparedness and training, prevention and intervention, and 
contributing to a positive school climate and learning 
environment. Ability and capacity has improved within the 
district. Staff will working more closely with families, 
community agencies, and other stakeholders. Approach to 
safety understanding structural racism and concepts like the 
school-to-prison pipeline, not only in theory but how daily 
practices may be punitive or restortative. The comprehensive 
school safety plan framework includes mental/behavioral 
health, physical wellness, community engagement, climate and 
culture, physical safety, and emergency management. Staff has 
been trained in threat assessment, advanced non-violent crisis 
prevention and intervention, gang prevention training, and 
school-to prison pipeline. Training was opened up to the 
community as well. Mr. Lozada shared a list of community 
based organization collaborations. 

 
               Public Comment: 
               Kenneth Duncan thanked Mr. Lozada for letting his 

organization work within the district. He touched on the 
relationships that have been built over the last 10+ years 
working with siblings and whole families. Duncan uses sports 
to do gang intervention and prevention. Duncan shared that 
his organization has been working with district youth whether 
it is for tutoring, providing guidance to prevent kids from 
joining gangs, playing sports. He stated that grades have 
improved among the students he works with. His organization 
uses incentives with the students like, bringing kids to Kings 
games. He has had student and parent engagement and wants 
the keep up the good work. 

               Jerome Anderson thanked everyone for coming out. He shared 
that he is a part of the Self Awareness Recovery (SAR). He 
shared that project safe schools has given the opportunity for 
kids the chance to change. 

               Christian Johnson shared that he is a student that participates 
in SAR and it provides youth with mentors and a safe 

                 
 
 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

5 

environment for students like him. SAR provides youth the 
opportunity to express themselves. They focus on mental health 
and allows students to make a difference. 

               UAG Representatives wants to uplift Raymond’s safety update 
and wanted to applaud Raymond for making sure the 
community was involved in the work. United and Guided works 
on the restorative work within schools and the district. They 
work closely with the hearing office on the school-to-prison 
pipeline to prevent expulsions by providing an alternative for 
individuals to resolve their conflicfs. 

              Carl Pinkston shared student concern from previous years with 
how law enforcement was working with the community. He 
expressed when he first started working with Raymond, he 
really wanted to set things up to be the example for the nation, 
and wants the district to say this is our culture, not just a 
program. Mr. Pinkston would like to see data on the youth that 
participated in all the programs, how many were referred, and 
how many reduced their interactions with police. 

 
              Board Comment: 
              Member Jeane is appreciative that the focus is on relationships 

and all the detail that has gone into this work. Member Jeane 
asked what it really looks like as far as student engagement in 
intervention and prevention. She appreciates the intense 
training that staff have received and it’s significant for the 
success for this program. 

               Member Singh shared that studies show that SROs reduce 
some forms of violence, but not all, and sometimes the cost of 
having SROs results in more suspensions, expulsions, and 
police referrals, and student arrests that fall more on our 
Black and Brown students, male students, and those with 
disabilites. Member Singh is really happy to see all the 
organizations that were in attendance for the meeting. Member 
Singh asked if there are any staff that work closely with 
students that are up for suspension or expulsion. Member 
Singh asked if the Superintendent can look into what a 
procedure would look like to have students up for suspension 
or expulsion be provided with resources that the organizations 
that Raymond’s team is working with to provide them with 
support. 

              Member Kayatta thanked Raymond Lozada and wanted to 
uplift the work that his team is doing as well as the community 
that is involved in this work. There’s still a lot of fear in our 
community and Member Kayatta is excited for phase 2 to be 
implemented. Member Kayatta is really happy with the safety 
approach and how we are perfectly balancing safety and the 
needs of our community. 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

6 

               Member Phillips asked for areas that only have one specific 
school like, American Legion. Is there any outreach with the 
elementary schools. 

              Member Pritchett asked what are we doing about keeping kids 
safe from firearms on campus and if there are protocols in 
place or de-escalation methods. Raymond shared that all 
safety officers are thoroughly trained and staff does not stop 
until a situation has been mitigated. Member Pritchett asked 
for a BC request  on bullying and how our SEL work on site is 
dealing with bullying. She asked about numbers that she can 
give students or stickers that can be posted in bathrooms for 
students who have experienced sexual assault or human 
trafficking. Lastly, she asked if Raymond and his team had a 
wishlist, what would it look it? 

                Member Villa thanked Raymond and community partners and 
                asked how the Board can support staff. 
                Member Singh asked if there were any resources for our   
                students on how to interact or communicate with police. 
  Member Phillips was impressed but the presentation and 

apologized how people can be tone deaf, and that maybe SROs 
maybe a good idea,but they haven’t been and she doesn’t see it 
being that way in the future. When we’re using alternatives 
we’re not going to be able to abolish law enforcement. We’re 
using some alternatives and they are working, and will see the 
data, but there is no one special area when it comes to our 
children, and those children need to be recognized on the dias. 
She expressed there has been significant trauma history among 
Black and Brown community in regard to law enforcement. If 
we are not paying attention to that in any kind of way, we’re 
not paying attention to what the actual problem is. 

               Member Pritchett stated that she is not promoting having 
SROs. She would like to see data on which school sites and 
how many kids are participating in the program. She would 
like the list of school sites, so she can help promote the 
programs. 

               President Rhodes stated that he was happy with the work being 
done and that we need to continue engaging in the community. 

 
 
 

            9.2  Resolution 3305: Recognition of National Black History 
                  Month, February 2023 (Dr. Tiffany Smith-Simmons and 
                  Board President Chinua Rhodes) 
   
              Member Phillips just wanted to set the tone, because there 

are a number of elephants in the room which she talks about 
often. She expressed honoring the greatness that is Black 
folks, honor the greatness that is our ancestors, we honor the 
greatness of our children, because they are not only our 
future but everyone’s future. Member Phillips addressed the 
elephants in the room which are white privilege and white 

                         
 
 

                
                
 
 
                 
                

 
 
                



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

7 

fragility, and if that makes people uncomfortable, she asked 
that people please sit with it, and if you don’t understand it, 
please Google it. She wants to not only honor the greatness 
that is Black folks, but the fact that we built this nation from 
our blood, sweat and tears from our bodies, and what we still 
carry from our backs. Our suffering continues as our nation 
is designed for some and not for all which perpetuates a 
system of racism. This is intentional and what holds us back, 
because knowledge is power and it’s our duty to break the 
chains that bind us. It is, should be, and must continue to be 
the commitment of SCUSD to share that to help our students 
grow. 

 Dr. Tiffany Smith-Simmons highlighted areas in the  
 Resolution and asked that SCUSD encourage all staff and 
members of the community to recognize and celebrate 
National Black History Month through culturally relevant 
activities and parent involvement in Black Parent Involvement 
Day. 

             Members of the Black Parallel School Board came up and  
             Carl Pinkston shared why Black Parent Involvement Day was 
             created. 
 
             Public Comment: None 
          
            Board Comment; None 
 
            President Rhodes made a motion to approve and the resolution 

passed unanimously with a vote of 7-0. 
 
            9.3  Overview of Student Achievement, Supports, and Strategic 
                   Priorities (Yvonne Wright) 

 
Yvonne Wright provided an overview of SCUSD’s data, CA 
Comprehensive Support System and SCUSD’s Assigned 
Technical Assistance which includes CA Collaborative on 
Educational Excellence (CCEE), Sacramento County Office of 
Edcuation (SCOE), and the CA Department of Education. Ms. 
Wright also provided an overview of SCUSD’s strategic 
priority areas and next steps. 
 
Public Comment:  
Terrence Gladney wanted to reference the slide on how the 
system is designed. He recommended that the Board append to, 
you can’t improve what you don’t measure. We know that 
dollars drive decisions and dynamics in the district, so I don’t 
see any monetary attachment to what we’re actually spending. 
The constant has always been the achievement gap for 
generations, but the delta and variant has been the amount of 
money that we receive. We’re getting more and more money, 

                



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

8 

and we talk about needing more dollars, but yet this is a static 
line that goes across the board. Are we really talking about 
improving things or we just looking at the same data? Dr. 
Eldridge when Board Member Murawski was here was talking 
about what the data looked like for a subset of students that 
took assessments and he said, “I don’t need to see the other 
85% if only 15% took them, because it will carry on. It’s 
consistent.” We can look at this data again and again but the 
outcomes remain the same. Let’s talk about how much we’re 
spending and where we’re spending it. 
 
On the slides about student outcomes, I think it’s page 15, we 
talk about high quality instruction which is how we teach, but 
we don’t talk about what we teach which I think is far more 
important. If I have no interest in martial arts, you can 
reincarnate Bruce Lee himself, I’m not going to be an engaged 
learner. You guys know that I graduated from Berkeley High 
School in 1996. I feel like this district celebrates mediocrity. I 
graduated not only having taken ethnic studies which we have 
celebrated over the last 5 years as being something that we’re 
uplifting, and celebrating that we achieved. I had a 
comprehensive African Americans studies across the board 
program: literature, history, Swahili, Afro-Haitian dance, so 
we touched on all the core subjects and focusing on Black 
people. In this moment of Black History Month and African 
Americans continually being even worse than English learners 
performing in these outcomes. Why do we have these schools 
focused on Waldorf instruction? We have George Washington 
Carver. We have all these school focusing on student needs, so 
they feel comfortable in this district, but the ones that 
continually underperform, or are underserved, or are 
continually ignored. They don’t have a space. I challenge you 
guys to look at how we provide African American presence and 
upliftment in all curriculums. We have right upstairs, 
curriculum review, and I reviewed it, and African Americans 
are still a footnote. Though the resolution sounds nice on 
paper, on a video, on a recording, but how are we actually 
enacting policies that back up words that we continually put 
forward. This is trash. 
 
Lastly, we talk about graduation rates and those that continue 
to be improving, at least on paper. I would like to see in the 
data that comes forward, what percentage of 4-year students 
actually attend their high schools 4 years through. I’m not 
talking about the mechanisms we have in place like, 
Accelerated Academy, and American Legion where we divert 
students as a part of their 4 years, and keep their AD at their 
own school and allow them to walk with their classmates in 
their school colors. I’m talking about, they have access to the 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

9 

entire curriculum since day one until the end of year 4. In 
Black History Month, let’s be real. Black is real, this data is 
real. Stop throwing words and acronyms around.  
 
Board Comments:  
Member Singh asked for all the requests that Terrence 
Gladney mentioned and asked if we can gather the data that 
was mentioned by Mr. Gladney. 
Member Villa mentioned that this information is not new to 
her, anyone on the Board, or the Superintendent, and it’s still 
so unsettling to her. We can’t improve anything that we can’t 
measure. All the gaps that we know of are still there, and we 
know what the problem is. Other than assessments, how do we 
get our students to where they need to be? Member Villa 
expressed that she does not want to sit on the Board for 
another two years seeing the same data, and it’s upsetting that 
we’re not serving the students that need it the most.  

            Member Jeane asked where specific data came from. Member 
Jeane also asked which staff predominately delivered the high 
quality instruction, the multi-tiered systems supports, and 
cultural response to professional learning. Member Jeane 
asked are we working collaboratively with the staff that are on 
the ground and working directly with the students, because we 
need to bridge the gap. Otherwise, we will continue to see the 
same data. 

            Member Singh thanked Ms. Wright for her presentation. 
Member Singh asked that there be more collaboration between 
teachers and labor partners, because he doesn’t want to see 
teachers leave the profession, because they don’t receive the   
support that they wanted. 

           Member Kayatta said that we’re failing these kids, and he’s 
happy that we’re focusing on going from the data, to the plan, 
to the execution. Member Kayatta would like to hear from an 
on the ground prospective like, a Principal or teacher. Member 
Kayatta thanked Ms,. Wright for her commitment in her role.             

 
            9.4  2023-24 Governor’s Budget Proposal Update  
                 (Rose Ramos) 
 

 Rose Ramos shared the Governor’s 2023-24 budget proposals 
which includes the School Services of California, Leilani 
Aguinaldo, Director of Governmental Relations, the impact 
pact on the district’s multi-year projections budget, and next 
steps. Budget concerns include revenue forecasts do not 
include the impact of COVID-19, recession, declining 
enrollment, PERS/STRS cost increases, and health and welfare 
benefit cost increases. 
 
Public Comment: None 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

10 

 
Board Comment: 
Member Kayatta acknowledge that staff’s job is to make sure 
that we’re fiscally safe and have budget support. The job of the 
Board is make sure of the success of student outcomes. 
Member Kayatta said that it doesn’t seem unreasonable, and 
not out of the realm, but wanted clarify that Governor’s budget 
may have cuts, but that education will be protected.  
Member Singh wanted more clarification on how the data is 
impacting us locally. 
Member Jeane stated that she doesn’t mind being cautious, 
that is our responsibility. These are public funds paid by tax 
dollars and they deserve to know where it’s going. 
Additionally, these funds are generated by the students in our 
classroom taday. Particularly, our UPP students who deserve 
to have these funds spent on them and the number one way we 
impact them, is by funding employees that work with them. 
Member Kayatta wanted to share that we should be good 
stewards in two ways: to make sure we don’t go broke and 
making sure there we’re spending money that the voters and 
legislature has given us to improve education in our state. 
Member Pritchett mentioned in regard to the COVID relief 
dollars that we are losing, we have hired positions that were 
mentioned in the presentation, and it was to our understanding 
that this may not continue and we would have to find ways to 
fund these very important positions. 

           Member Singh confirmed that 80% of Prop 28 funds must be   
           spent on arts/music instructors and there’s an intent to  
           supplement existing expenditures. 
   
            
            9.5  Board Policy 3100- Business and Noninstructional 
                  Operations (Reserves and Use of One-Time Funds) 
                  (Rose Ramos) 
 
 Rose Ramos shared this is an informational item, but a 

majority of the Board was not here when the policy was 
enacted. Two of the major components of this policy is reserves 
for economic uncertainty and use of one-time funds. Beginning 
with the 2022-2023 budget or after the deficit is eliminated, the 
district shall maintain a 5% reserve of the total general fund 
expenditures. The benefits for economic uncertainty is to 
protect a district from a future fiscal crisis by providing a 
buffer against future funding reductions and/or unexpected 
increased liabilities, and the district time to adjust the budget 
thoughtfully and strategically. One-time funding should be 
used for one-time expenditures and shall only be used for an 
on-going expenditure as a last resort. 

 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

11 

            Public Comment: 
            Nikki Milevsky wanted to thank Member Kayatta for bringing 

this item up at his first Board meeting. Milevsky shared that 
staff continues the district’s practice of misrepresenting 
findings to justify its questionable practices. The district has 
received 60 recommendations and not one says to raise the 
minimum fund requirements from 2% or 5%. Milevsky stated 
that the Superintendent has a history of misrepresenting the 
findings of the state auditor. The state auditor called the 
district’s response to her findings misleading and 
disingenuous. When Rose Ramos sat in bargaining, she had to 
admit that the district has not has deficits and has only 
predicted deficitis. Milevsky stated is it better to spend the 
millions of dollars in revenue providing services to our 
students or is it best to leave that money unspent on our 
students. 

       
            Board Comment: 
            Member Kayatta shared that this policy has sent a clear signal 

to staff that saving money for a rainy day is one of the Board’s 
top priorities, and staff has acted accordingly. This has 
resulted in the underinvestment in our students today. Member 
Kayatta recommended that staff will return to the next Board 
meeting with proposals to modify BP 3100 to remove the 
requirement that the state requirement be maintained, and to 
remove the restrictions on the use of one-time funds. 

           Member Jeane clarified that the direction that the Board sets, 
the staff needs to follow. Member Jeane shared that money 
needs to be spend today to support our students today, and not 
simply put in a bank account. Member Jeane said that this 
needs to be a conversation in the budget process. 

           Member Pritchett wanted to clarify how far the 5% would take 
the district, if there was no additional funding. Rose stated that 
5% is about 39 million, and as you can see it’s just about 
under one of our payrolls per month. If we moved forward with 
the recommended 2%, that would be $15.5 million and would 
cover under half of payroll for one month. Member Pritchett 
asked what other similar districts doing currently. Everytime 
President Pritchett sees negative budgets, she is reminded of 
when she first joined the Board and there were school 
closures, and it makes her wonder that if we had reserves, 
would we of had to close 7 schools. 

            Member Villa mentioned that some of this was adopted prior 
to her being on the Board, and she seen it as a parent and now 
as a Board Member. These policies are tricky and can be hard 
to follow, but she relies on staff and partners that we work with 
to provide the important information. The budget for the 
district has been extremely wild over the past couple of years, 
but thankfully, we have received so much money, especially, 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

12 

funding due to COVID. By removing funds that are in reserves, 
it is very problematic in her eyes. We are looking at a short-
term vision instead of a long-term goal. For the longeivity of 
our students and district, we need to hold on to these funds.  

           Member Singh said that as adults, he thinks the Board is 
capable of balancing a budget, and as a district, we shouldn’t 
have to be in fear of going into a deficit. There are funds that 
have not been spent that could have provided resources and 
programs that students really needed over the last 10+ years, 
but instead, we have just been saving it and not giving it to the 
students that need it. 

           Member Rhodes would like to see options around BP 3100 and 
what they would look like, so Board Members can assess and 
look at them, because we do have more funds currently, and he 
wants to make sure that we are balancing our fiduciary 
obligation as trustees of the financial solvency of the 
educational system of SCUSD. Lastly,, making sure we are 
serving the students appropriately. 

           Before moving on, President Rhodes let the Board know that 
the meeting would need to be extended, and he asked for Board 
approval which they voted unanimously to extend the meeting. 

 
 

. 

 

10.0    COMMUNICATIONS  
 

         10.1 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar) 
   
 Superintendent Aguilar wanted to reiterate some of the items that were 
mentioned during the meeting. The Superintendent wants to encourage parents to participate 
in Black Parent Involvement Day on Tuesday, February 21st at all school sites  
in collaboration with the Black Parallel School Board. Those interested should attend the  
training set to be held on February 16th. Next, three students will be recognized in March by 
the Association of California School Administrators to honor students that exceed expections. 
in January, President Rhodes and the Superintendent had the opportunity to attend the winter 
graduation for Charles A. Jones. The Superindentent wanted to recognize events happening  
throughout the district like, the Lunar New Year Parade.With the new year, we are 
excepting nominations for teacher of the year now through March 9th. The Superintendent 
shared the upcoming community fair at Hiram Johnson which will be taking place February 
18th.  

 
   

   
 

 
          10.2 President’s Report (Chinua Rhodes) 
 
   President Rhodes shared that he would forgo his report for the interest of time. 
 
 

 
 

 
                  
             

 
 
 

        
 
                 

             
 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

13 

  
11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                     

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
11.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

11.1a  Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose Ramos) 
 
11.1b  Retention of Seven (7) Firms for the Electrical/ Low Voltage Design Services 

Pool in Response to Request for Qualifications (Rose Ramos) 
 

        10.3 Information Sharing By Board Members 

Member Kayatta shared that the district has failed his son and so many other students in this 
district. The tradegy now is that so many people expect this from our district. He understands 
that the community doesn’t trust the Board to deliver on their focus providing a good 
education to our students. Member Kayatta continues to stay driven to make change that is 
needed in the district for students and their families. 

Member Jeane wanted to bring attention to community schools that have been brought up, and 
she is excited about the vision and success of community schools. Member Jeane would like to 
learn more about community schools and how we can support to grow that program. 

Member Villa shared an upcoming event at West Campus. She also shared that shade 
structures at Earl Warren and Elder Creek are almost done and the students are really excited 
about them.  

Member Singh shared that the community has yet again suffered the tradgey of a young Black 
man that was murdered by police is an extremely violent way.Black and Brown students have 
higher rates of suspensions and expulsions than their White students. Member Singh said that 
as a district we have highest number of suspension rates among Black students.The district’s 
number one priority must be dismantling the school-to-prison pipeline. Member Singh wanted 
to share that he is working with the Sacramento Public Defenders office and hosting a Know 
Your Rights Camp witth the Black Parallel School Board and NAACP Sacramento Chapter to 
ensure ideas from the community are incorporated. Member Singh invited all students and 
families to participate in the free camp.Member Singh would like to host the first camp at  
Hiram Johnson HS, and will look for the Supertintendent’s help to make sure they have access 
to the facilities, gain access to staff such as the Communications Department to promote the 
event, and the intention to have this take place at the end of February of March. Member 
Singhs hopes to start a series of workshops like this across the district, and would like to 
collaborate with other Board Members to plan events like this in their trustee areas as well. 
Member Singh would like mental health resources available to all school sites.Member Singh 
asked that the community take a look on the district website under the racial justice 
information provided. 

Inf  
  

 



Board Agenda, February 2, 2023 
 

14 

                                  11.1c  Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 

11.1d  Approve Minutes for the January 19, 2023, Board of Education Meeting  
          (Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1e  Approve Mandatory Reporting to the Sacramento County Office of Education – 

Uniform Complaints Regarding the Williams Settlement Processed for the 
Period of October 2022 through December 2022 (Cancy McArn) 

 
                                  11.1f  Approve Appointment of Board President Rhodes and Member Villa to the 
                                           California School Board Association (CSBA) Delegate Assembly  
                                           (Board President Chinua Rhodes) 
 
                            President Rhodes asked to pull the Professional Tutors Contract from agenda item 11.1a.  
                            President Rhodes made motion with a second by Member Jeane with a roll call vote of 6-0. 
                            The Board approved all other agenda items with a unanimous vote of 6-0.  
 

     12.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 February 16, 2023 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 March 2, 2023 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

    . 

 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
President Rhodes adjourned the meeting at 10:59 p.m. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu 

  
 

http://www.scusd.edu/


11.1g









11.1h 









11.1i 









Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1j 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the August 11, 2022, Regular Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the August 11, 2022, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the August 11, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Agular, Superintendent 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

1 

 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, August 11, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2022/23-1 
 

       Allotted Time 
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:53 p.m.by President Pritchett. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Villa 
Member Pritchett 
Member Garcia 
Member Woo 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Phillips 
Member Rhodes 
Member Murawski 
 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

No public comment 
 

 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 
 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

2 

 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 
a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 

Code section 54956.9 (Three Potential Cases) 
b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 

section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 
 

3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 
SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 
 

 
3.4 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 

a) Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
b) Instructional Area Superintendent 
c) Principal, Bowling Green McCoy Elementary 
d) Principal, John Sloat Elementary 
e) Principal, Leataata Floyd Elementary 
f) Principal, Nicholas Elementary 
g) Principal, Oak Ridge Elementary 
h) Principal, Pony Express Elementary 
i) Principal, Tahoe Elementary 

 
 

3.5 Education Code 35146 – The Board will hear staff recommendations on the 
following student expulsion: 
a) Expulsion #1, 2022-23 

 
3.6       Government Code 54956.8—Conference with Real Property Negotiators: 

Property:  2718 G Street, Sacramento, CA 
Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 
Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and Mogavero/Bardis Homes 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 

 
 

 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President Pritchett called the meeting back to order at 7:34 p.m.. 
 
Members Present: 
President Pritchett 
Jamee Villa 
Lavinia Grace-Phillips 
Leticia Garcia 
Student Member Liam McGurk 
 
Members Absent: 
Chinua Rhodes 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

3 

Darrel Woo 
Lisa Murawski 
 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Superintendent Aguilar. After, President   
Pritchett announced the new Student Board Member, Liam McGurk, a senior at Hiram 
Johnson High School. President Pritchett then recognized an Area 3 community member 
and educator Dr. Irene Easter, Principal of Golden Empire who passed away after her 
battle with ALS and who was an Educator for 33 years. 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement presented by Student Member Liam McGurk 
 
4.3 Recognition of McClaskey Adult Program- Dan Hickman and Shannon  
Williams contacted Dr. Susan Gilmore at the McClaskey Adult Program Center  
to donate a new trailer. President Pritchett thanked both Hickman and Williams for  
their generosity. 
 

 
 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There are 7 announcements that came out of closed session: 

-     Board approved the appointment of Mr. Jessie Castillo as Assistant Superintendent of 
                  Business Servicse by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Rhodes, Murawski, and 
                  Phillips absent 

- Board approved the appointment of Miss Africa Fullove as the Principal of John Sloat 
Elementary by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Rhodes, Murawski, and Phillips 
absent 

- Board approved the appointment of Mr. Rene Sanchez as the Principal of Nicolas 
Elementary by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Rhodes, Murawski, and Phillips 
absent 

- Board approved the appointment of Miss Tiffany Whelden as the Principal of Oak 
Ridge Elementary by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Rhodes, Murawski, and 
Phillips absent 

- Board approved the appointment of Miss Michele Rossi as the Principal of Pony 
Express Elementary by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Rhodes, Murawski, and 
Phillips absent 

- Board approved the appointment of Miss Heather Bennett as Principal of Tahoe 
Elementary by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Rhodes, Murawski, and Phillips 
absent 

- Board approved the appointment of Mr. Sam Floyd as Principal of Leataata Floyd 
Elementary by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Rhodes, Murawski, and Philllips 
absent 

 
. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

President Pritchett made a motion to adopt the agenda with the approval of Member 
Villa and seconded by President Pritchett. The Board voted unanimously to adopt the 
agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                            
 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be 
called in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are 
limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as 
possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The 
Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.  
 

            April Ybarra  
            Maria Garcia  
            Steve Bruno  
           Marpreet Choban  
           David Fisher 
           Rich Vasquez  
 

 
 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  

 
 8.1 COVID-19 Update:  Vaccination, Testing, and Face 

Masking (Victoria Flores) 
 
Victoria Flores provided a COVID update for the 2022-2023 
school year. There’s good news that the levels have updated 
today, and cases are down to 176. Starting to see hospital  
admittance case rates going down. Victoria shared updates on 
the different variants, vaccines approvals for 6 months to 5 
years with a new COVID vaccine that’s designed to deal with 
the more transmissible variants, and test to treat which provides 
great anti-viral treatments. Victoria also went over testing and 
vaccine clinics available, community level trends and face 
masking as well as face masking recommendations. 
 
Public Comment:  
Jean Stanley made comments on prior information given by 
Victoria  Flores with respect to COVID requirements and 
Vaccines and Mask requirments. 
 
Manuel Jimenez stated that he does not approve of many 
 decisions the board has made and sees many people leaving 
.  
Taylor Kayatta hopes to continue what we are doing. 
 
Victoria Flores stated that tonights recommendation is really 
 About Face Masking Guidance dut to shift in testing and  
Vaccine Mandates which are already written into the Board 
Resolutions. 
 
Board Comments: 
President Pritchett shared that we rely heavily on the science, 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

5 

           the CDC, and updates provided by Victoria Flores’ staff  who 
          give us the data that we need  
 
          Member Garcia mentioned her thanks to Victoria Flores for 
          her updates and that it is important to continue informing  
          families regarding the latest updates, so they can 
          make the decisions that need to be made.  Garcia wanted to  
          confirm that as a district, we are purchasing vaccines in order 
          to continue COVID at-home tests and that they are being sent  
          home to families. Flores stated that tests can now be ordered  
          through CDPH and CDC, and if  supply chains hold, they can  
          be ordered every month  and send at-home test kits sent 
          home with students and staff. Garcia confirmed that 
          filters were being provided in classrooms. Lastly, Garcia 
          confirmed the timeline in which families will be provided updates 
          with the start of the new academic year approaching. 
 
          President Pritchett made a motion Superindent Aguilar roll-call,  
         approved with a vote of 5-0 with Members Rhodes and Murawski  
         absent. Superintendent Aguilar made correction with apologies to 
         to approve  appointment of Mr. Sam Floyd as Principal of 
         Leataata Floyd Elementary.  
          
 

 
 
 
 

          8.2   MTSS (Multi-Tiered System of Supports) High Quality 
                  Instruction Presentaion (Various Staff Members)  
 
         Presentation by Erin Hanson, Ed Eldridge, Aprille Shafto and 
        Garrertt Kirkland.  In the spring MTSS program was brought to 
        the Board. Every student regardless of their level of need receives  
        these supports which include academic behavior and social  
        emotional instruction.  When support is not fully serving 
        students, in addition to tier one provide targeted support   
        matched to student needs in tier two, Once earned through  
        assessments and data, the Need to provide more intensive  
        individualized support so students can meet their goals, then we  
        offer those tier three supports. Students that are receiving the   
        Universal high quality supports. The students are not tiered, the 
        supports are. 
                  
         Public Comment: 
         April Ibarra mentioned that after hearing about MTSS Program,  
         why is huge amount of money being spent especially when one 
         can look at the California dashboard and get this information.  

  
Rich Vasquez commented on the MTSS program asking what the 
implementation was. 

   
Board Comments: 

 
 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

6 

President Pritchett commented that her hopes for the community is 
         to embrace this system. 

 
Member Villa commented that this system needs to be embraced 
and will be challenging but time is needed for it to work. The 
Board is trying to make things work. 
 

         Member Garcia making sure that we are checking in on the 
         interpretors and that we are supporting students in a holistic 
         way in whatever their needs are. 

 
         Member Phillips expressed concerns and support needed for 
         MTSS. 

 
         Superintendent Aguilar asked for commitment from all to show 
         updates of evidence that this work is taking place and that the 
         board was exposed to as this was looked at very quickly.  We are 
          providing opportunities for innovation.  Also, that this is not a new 
         system only that we are focusing on every single student to have  
         access to high quality instruction. 
 
         Again, Member Phillips stated that as a black woman sitting on the  
         Board, things have been implemented but have not benefited  
         certain groups. 
 
         Superintendent Aguilar stated that instructional frameworks are  
         being worked on at each of our school sites and noted to this team 
         that next year they will come with evidence that this effort is  
        penetrating into our system and that this work is going to be 
        monitored very closely.  
 
        President Pritchett stated that this was an informational item. 
  
 

       8.3 Student Use of Technology, Board Policy 6163.4 (Bob Lyons 
             and Alexa Rincon) 
 

             Mr. Bob Lyons, Chief Information Officer for SCUSD brought  
             forth three technology-related Board policy updates. First, 
             Policy 6163.4, Student use of Technology with hopes to try to  
             sync the BP 4040 and BP 6163.4 policies together. 

 
            Public Comment:None 
            Board Comments: None 

 
 
     8.4 Employee Use of Technology, Board Policy 4040 (Bob Lyons 
            and Alexa Rincon) 
 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

7 

r        Bob Lyons, Chief Information Officer, brought the second 
             technology-related Board policy updates. This is  the revision of   
             BP 4040 and its employee use of technology where there has been  
             many hardware and practice changes and updates in district 
             technology such as internet and Wi-fi which were not mentioned  
            in the 2015 Board Policy. 
 

        Public Comment: None 
        Board Comments: None 
 

 
     8.5 Release of Directory Information, Board Policy 5125.1 (Bob 
             Lyons and Alexa Rincon)  
 

            Bob Lyons states that this update has to do with the Release  
            of Directory Information which is information about students 
            and the limitation of information on what can be released such 
            as a students weight and height, this is “Directory 
            Information”. Parents and guardians have the option to limit 
            the release of information with written request. 
        

      Public Comments:None 
     Board Comments: None 

 
 
9.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

 
 

 

9.1   2022-23 45 Day Revise Budget Update (Rose Ramos) 
   

 Rose Ramos introduced the New Assistant Superintendent of  
Business Services, Mr. Steele.  Ms. Ramos went over the budget  
With Explanations on Restriction and Unrestricted Expenditures 
for 2022-2023. 

 
Public Comment: 

 
 

Taylor Kayatta commented that the board has not provided real input in where our        
values are.  The Board needs to know their obligations and know where the money is 
being used. 

       
                            Board Comments: 

                              President Pritchett stated that she is very excited to hear of the increase 
                             In enrollment and of the Budget update. 
 
                             Member Villa stated that the district is spending the money responsibly for student 
                             Services by ways of Restricted and Unrestricted funds. 
 
                             Member Garcia stated that this budget is very different but noted that our parents 
                             Need  to know where these monies are going. 
 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

8 

                             President Pritchett makes Motion to extend the meeting until 11:30pm and second, all  
                             In favor .  Superintendent Aguilar one again requested Board Member review slide 12 
                             Regarding investments that have already been committed to from last year related to 
                             Programs and services at-risk of losing funding once ESSER money runs out. 

              
 

                        

 

 
9.2   Approve the Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified  
        Educators for the 2022-2023 School Year (Dr. Tiffany 

Smith-Simmons and Sabrina Jaquez) 
 
 Sabrina Jaques, Credential Auditor an Ms. Tiffany Smith- 
 Simmons, Director of Talent Management announces the 
 Declaraton of Need for Fully Qualified Educators for 2022-2023 
 school year in which our area of need include ELA Resource 
 Specialist, Libraians and some Limited Assignment permits in 
 Special Educatuon, Single Subject and Multiple Subject  
 
 Public Comment:None 
 
 Board Comments: 
 Member Garcia has been bringing this to the Superintendent 
over the years to make sure that we have these programs in 
place. Member Garcia wanted to clarify what opportunities do 
our Principles have under this declaration. Staff shared that they 
plan to use some funding to support the Principles that need to  
clear their credentials. That program will begin in March and  
staff are working with SCOE to implement the program. 
 
President Pritchett thanked the entire HR team for all 
their hard work. 
 
Superintendent Aguilar roll call vote of 4-0, approved  with 

Members Rhodes, Murawski and Phillips absent. 
 

 

 
 

 

9.3    Approve the Submission of a Credential Waiver Application 
to the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (Dr. 
Tiffany Smith-Simmons and Sabrina Jaquez) 

  
 Sabrina Jaquez request the Approval of Submission of a 
 Credential Waiver Application to the California Commission on  
 Teacher Credentialing in order to allow them to complee their  
 Program,  
 

            Public Comment:None 
Board Comments: None 
 
President Pritchett request motion to approve, second by Student  

 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

9 

Member McGurk 
 
Superintendent Aguilar- roll call vote of 4-0, approved with 
Members Phillips, Rhodes and Murawski absent. 

 
 10.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 10.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA-No update 
 SEIU-No update 
 TCS-No update 
 Teamsters-No update 
 UPE-No update 

 

 

 10.2 District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee-No update  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee-No update 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee- 

No update 

 Student Advisory Council-No Update 

 African American Advisory Board-No update 

 

 

 10.3 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar) 

Superintendent Aguilar wanted to honor Dr. Easter and mentioned that he 
had made a commitment to return more regularly for visits, but learned of 
her passing and wanted to share that her legacy will continue within 
SCUSD. 

 10.4 President’s Report (Christina Pritchett)-No update 

 10.5 Student Member Report (Liam McGurk)-No update 

 10.6 Information Sharing By Board Members 

Member Garcia took time to welcome Student Member Liam McGurk  

who will be representing Hiram Johnson High School. 

 
 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA  

                                                                                                               
 
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 
 

 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

10 

11.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
  

11.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 
 

                                             Public Comment: 
           Taylor Kayatta wanted to bring attention to agreement 11.1a regarding 
           Lozano Smith for legal services where there is a need sometimes to  
           contract out  for legal services in regards to unique circumstances. However, 
           legal services which should be done in-house. 
 

President Pritchett made motion, second by Student Member McGurk. 
Superintendent Aguilar roll-call and approve by vote of 4-0 with members 
Rhodes, Murawski and Phillips absent. 

 
11.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 

 
 

11.1c Approve Minutes of the June 9, 2022, Board of Education Meeting  
(Jorge A. Aguilar)  
 

11.1d Approve Minutes of the June 23, 2022, Board of Education Meeting  
(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

11.1e Approve Minutes of the June 23, 2022, Special Board of Education Meeting  
(Jorge A. Aguilar) 

 
11.1f Approve Mandatory Reporting to the Sacramento County Office of Education – 

Uniform Complaints Regarding the Williams Settlement Processed for the Period 
of April 2022 through June 2022 (Cancy McArn) 

 
11.1g Approve Resolution No. 3280:  Temporary Interfund Transfers of Special or 

Restricted Fund Moneys (Rose Ramos) 
 
11.1h Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion #1, 2022-23 (Lisa Allen and 

Stephan Brown) 
 
11.1i Approve Resolution No. 3281:  Approving the Sacramento City Unified School 

District Community Facilities No. 2 Tax Report for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and 
Levying and Apportioning the Special Tax as Provided Therein (Rose Ramos and 
Nathaniel Browning) 

 
11.1j Approve Request to Add/Amend New Council on Occupational Education 

Programs to Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center Manufacturing 
Training Center:  Introduction to Manufacturing; Electro-Mechanical Assembly; 
Material Handling and Logistics; Welding Fabrication I; (Amend) 
Manufacturing Technician (Angela Hatter) 

 



Board Agenda, August 11, 2022 
 

11 

 
There was a roll call vote of 4-0 with Members Phillips, Rhodes, 

 Murawski absent. 
 

 12.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 September 1, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 September 15, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 
 

 13.0 ADJOURNMENT  
  
President Pritchett made a motion to adjorn, seconded by Student Member McGurk.   
 Motions passed unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:05 p.m. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu 

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1k 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the September 8, 2022 Regular Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the September 8, 2022, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the September 8, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Agular, Superintendent 



Board Agenda, September 8, 2022 1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, September 8, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2022/23-2 
 

       Allotted Time 
. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:37 p.m.by President Pritchett. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Garcia 
Member Woo 
Member Rhodes 
Member Murawski 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Phillips 
Member Villa 
Member Murawski 
Member Pritchett 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
No public comment 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  



Board Agenda, September 8, 2022 2 

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Two potential case(s)) 

b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 
section 54956.9 (One potential case) 

c) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2022040572; and Sacramento County Superior Court 
Case Nos. 34-2022-00320856 and 34-2022-003-21773) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 
 
3.4 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 

a) Principal, Bowling Green McCoy   
b) Principal, Caroline Wenzel 
c) Principal, Theodore Judah 

 
.   

 
 4.0        ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There were 4 announcements that came out of closed session: 

• The Board approved two settlement agreements related to special education 
services by a vote of 4-0 with Members Pritchett, Villa, and Phillips absent 

• The Board approved a special education settlement agreement as OAH case 
2022040572 by a vote of 4-0 with Members Pritchett, Villa, and Phillips absent 

• The Board approved the appointment of Miss Kelly Ryan as Principal for Caroline 
Wenzel Elementary School with a vote of 4-0 with Members Pritchett, Phillips, and 
Villa absent. 

• The Board approved the appointment of Ms. Monica Koehler as Principal of 
Theodore Judah Elementary with a vote of 4-0 with Members Pritchett, Phillips, 
and Villa absent. 

 
 
 

 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 

Member Garcia made a motion to adjorn the meeting due to the lack of quarum, and directed 
the Superintendent to add all the agenda items into the September 15th Board meeting agenda. 
Member Garcia made a motion with a second from Member Murawski, and all Board members 
voted in favor. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:46 p.m. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 



Board Agenda, September 8, 2022 3 

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1l 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the September 15, 2022, Regular Board of 

Education Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the September 15, 2022, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the September 15, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Agular, Superintendent 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2022/23-4 
 

        
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:36 p.m.by Vice President Rhodes. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Woo 
Member Phillips 
Member Rhodes 
Member Villa 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Garcia 
Member Pritchett 
Member Murawski 
Member McGurk 
 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

No public comment 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  2 

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Two potential case(s)) 

b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 
section 54956.9 (One potential case) 

c) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2022070410) 
 

3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 
SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 
 
 
3.4 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 

a) Instructional Assistant Superintendent (2 positions) 
b) Principal, Bowling Green McCoy   
c) Principal, Rosa Parks K-8 

 
3.5 Government Code 54956.8—Conference with Real Property Negotiators: 
 Property:  2718 G Street, Sacramento, CA 
 Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or Designee 
 Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and Mogavero/Bardis Homes 

 Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 
 

 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Member Rhodes called the meeting back to order at 6:31pm. 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance led by Superintendent Aguilar 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement by Student Liam McGurk 
 
4.3 Stellar Students Tierney Harris, a Senior from Rosemont High School and Maura 
  Perez Lima, a Senior from Kit Carson International Academy to be  
  introduced by Member Rhodes  

 
 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There are 4 announcements that came out of closed session: 
- The Board approved Special Education OAH Case No. 202207410 by vote of 5-0 with 
Members Pritchett and Garcia absent 
- By vote of 5-0 with members Pritchett and Garcia absent, the Board approved 
appointment of Dr. Carla Galbraith, Principal at Bowling Green McCoy Elementary 
School  
-By a vote of 5-0 with Members Pritchett and Garcia absent, the Board approved the 
appointment of  Ms. Vanessa Buitrago, Instructional Assistant for Superintendent, for 
Secondary. 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  3 

-By a vote of 5-0 with Board Members Pritchett and Garcia absent, the Board approved 
the appointment of Mr. Enrique Flores as Instructional Assistant Superintendent 
Elementary. 

 
 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION  
 
By way of Board Member Rhodes, there was a slight agenda amendment. Member Rhodes 
asked to move items 9.7, 9.8 and 9.9 directly after 9.2 if the Board so approves, 
adjustments will be made. A motion was made to adopt agenda, and Board Member Villa 
made the motion, with a second by Member Phillips, and all in favor. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                             
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be 
called in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are 
limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as 
possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The 
Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion. 
 
Terrence Gladney  
Jean Shandley  
Harpreet Choban 
Hasan McWhorter 
 

 
 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  

 
 8.1  Opening of Schools Update (Various Departments) 

 
     Cancy McArn updated the Board on the opening of schools along with the the following departments,  
     Safe Schools, Academic Office and MTSS Program. Cancy McArn announced Safe Schools  
     and Health Services focusing on COVID-19 testing for everyone and COVID mitigation and  
     looking at school required vaccinations and Covid recovery student support services staffing  
     are met especially at High School level where needs are higher. Academic Office and achievement  
     data are focusing on interm assessment participation. MTSS theory of action and  
     developing and implementing a District wide three year professional learning plan. Facilities and  
     Operations are currently working on ventilation, air filtrations, and HVAC systems The poratble  
     HEPA filtration system is ready. Continuing the disinfection of frequently touched surfaces  
     in the schools. Nutrition Services shared information on free meals in California  
     K-12 public schools and the no cost breakfast and lunch which applies to all SCUSD schools  
     and associated charter schools. Office of Safe Schools wished to thank Human Resources  
      for all their help and modifications to CSSP as recommended by ed code. Trainngs were held  
     over the summer which included threat assessment training with staff. Human Resources Services  
     wished to share exciting news including HR staff filling 279 certificated vacancies, 274 classified  
     vacancies, 57 administrative vacancies. Enrollment Center has online registration and at school  
     sites. Students can be enrolled until September 16, 2022. Chief Communications Officer, Brian Heap,  
     reiterated that there were approximately 18 new principals and provided information on the  
     Principals School Site Toolkit. 

     
        Public Comment: 

Taylor Kayatta commented on fees that are being charged to parents.  Parents should not be asked to 
pay for academic things.  

 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  4 

Terrence Gladney emphasized where do black and brown students fall in regards to MTSS as it seems 
all other subjects are being emphasized. 

 
         
       Board Comment: 

Board Member Villa reiterated all the positive things with vacancies and communications, and 
appreciates all the work that has been put forth for every department, and impressed overall with the 
presentation that was given. Member Villa said that although there is still work to be done, this is a 
great start. 

       Board Member McGurk also stated her concerns regarding mental health crisis prevention and 
       bullinging which she notices at school.  
       Member Rhodes emphasized our assets while still working on our deficits. 
       Member Phillips has concerns on getting data regarding black and brown students and the 
       importance that is needed. 
       Member Woo reiterated the number of enrolled students not including charter school students was 
       fantastic. 

 
 

        8.2 Approve Resolution No. 3282: Recognition of National Attendance Awareness Month, 
             September 2022 (Jennifer Kretschman)  

 
        Jennifer Kretschman informed the Board that post-pandemic attendance is at an all time high.   
        Jennifer and her staff have been working on the CARE program and chronic absences. 

      
        Public Comment: 
        Terrence Gladney 
 
        Board Comment:None 
 
        Member Rhodes made a motion, second by Member Villa with a vote of 5-0 with Members Pritchett 
        and Garcia absent 
    

 

          8.3 Approve Resolution No. 3286: Recognition of National Hispanic Heritage Month  
 (Cancy McArn and Olga Simms) 
     

         Cancy McArn and Olga Simms asked the Board recognized National Hispanic Heritage Month  
         and noticing 41 percent of students in SCUSD are Hispanic and of that 198 received the Biliteral  
         Literacy Award 

      
         Public Comment:None 
        Board Comment: Member Rhodes wanted to recognize this resolution. Rhodes made a 
        Motion with a  second by Member Villa. Superintendent Aguilar roll-call, Villa Muawski, Rhodes, 
        Phillips and Woo voted unanimously. Motion passed. 

 
 

 

          8.4 Approve Resolution No. 3283 National Suicide Prevention and Recovery Month  
 (Victoria Flores and Lisa Murawski) 
      

         Victoria Flores from Student Support Services recognized that September is National  
         Suicide Prevention Month and asked to raise awareness and requested that the Board to approve and  



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  5 

         Resolution No. 3283. 
 

         Public Comment:None 
         
         Board Comment:Member Murawski stated there have been many great strides in expanding our  
         mental health and such a critical issue for all of our students 

    
         Member Rhodes makes a motion passed with vote of 5-0 with members Pritchett and Garcia 
          absent. 

  
           8.5  Early Literacy Support Block Grant (ELSB) Updates: Building Toward High Quality Tier One 

       Instruction (Shannon Pella)  
            
           Shannon Pella shared that Section 113 of the Education Omnibus Trailer Bill (Senate Bill 98) for 
           2020-21 California State Budget appropriates $50 million to establish the Early Literacy Support 
           Block (ELSB) Grant Program. CDE examined results for 2018-2019 ELA Summative Assessment and 
           identified 75 schools with highest percentage students in grae 3 scoring at a level 1. The goal of 
           ELSB is to develop and implement literacy instruction and support programs, particularly focused on 
           literacy in early grades (TK/K-3), ultimately resulting in improved student outcomes. High quality tier 
           1 instruction in an MTSS framework includes a structured literacy approach based on the science of  
           reading in the early grades. 
     
          Public comment:None 
                
          Board Comment:Member Murawski made a comment that numbers are hard to move. The Principal 
          From Ethel I. Bakers noted that statistics show in LPAC.    
 

           8.6  Sacramento City Unified Leadership Program (SCULP) (Cancy McArn)  
 

           Ms. Tiffany Smith Simmons introduced a new program called,” Sacramento City Unified Leadership 
           Program”, SCULP” is a partnership between SCUSD, SCOE, and National University. Participants 
           will clear their administrative credentials through this process. Recent data shows an alarming rate  
           of Principals that plan to leave their profession within the next 3 years.. This program will improve 
           student achievement, impact teacher satisfaction, retention, and overall school culture. 

  
           Public Comment:None 

      
           Board Comment:Member Woo asked if there is any commitment on the part of the 

     applicants? Ms. Tiffany Smith Simmons stated that it is a three year commitment. 
     Superintendent Aguilar reiterated his knowledge and commitment for the SCULP program. 
     Member Phillips stated she was happy to hear that the district is moving forward in growing our  
     own qualified administrators. Member Rhodes agreed with the statement. 

 
  

 9.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

       9.1  Approve 2021-22 Year End Financial Unaudited Actuals  
 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
 Rose Ramos presented on the year end report for the 2021-22 year which means  



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  6 

 this data contains the actual financial information for the academic year that was  
 just ended for July 1, 2021-June 30, 2022. Rose Ramos shared the comparison of  
unaudited actuals for 2021-22 with estimated actuals (6/23/22), use of one time  

                 funds, multi year projections with beginning fund balance from unaudited actuals to 
                approve the 2021-22 unaudited actuals financial report. 

 
Public Comment:Taylor Kayatta has concerns regarding funds being spent. 
Terrence Gladney stated that the budget needs to show if the budget is getting better 
than the year before. 
 
Board Comment:Member Villa emphasized that some of the budget is out of the  
control of the Board due to certain restrictions.  Ms. Rose Ramos stated that the 
surplus is mainly due to the decrease in the enrollment decline. 
 
Member Rhodes made a motion to approve with a second by Phillips. 
Superintendent Aguilar took roll call with a vote of 5-0 with Pritchett and Garcia 
absent. 
 

       9.2  Approve the Submission of a Credential Waiver Application to the California 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (Cancy McArn)  

 
      Ms. Sabrina Jaquez spoke to the Board regarding approval for Submission of a  
      credential application to the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
      Public Comment:Terrence Gladney commented on the needs of the black and  

                  brown student population. He feels that should be our focus on improvement. 
      
      Board Comment:None 
      Member Woo makes a motion second by Villa and Muawski to approve 
      Superintendent Aguilar roll call to approve, 5-0 with members Pritchett and 
      Garcia absent. 

 
 

 

 

       9.3  First Reading of Revised Board Policy (BP 5141.21) Administering 
Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions (Victoria Flores) 

 
      Victoria Flores brought the first reading of revised Board policy 5141.21 to the 
      Board to share that our schools have ready access to emergency medication and 
      equipment needed in the district. 
 
      Public Comment:None 
      Board Comment:Member Villa commented on administering medication,and 
      wanted to make sure that we have at the school sites covered. She also wanted to 
      make sure medication is checked for expiration dates and ready to go when needed. 
      She also wanted to confirm that everybody required to be trained to administer  
      Medication is trained. Member Woo wanted to confirmed the age group 
      of opioid use among students. Member Phillips asked about the use of medicinal  
      use among students.   
 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  7 

 

 

       9.4  Approve Board Policy (BP 4040) Employee Use of Technology (Bob Lyons) 
 
        Bob Lyons presented Board Policy 4040 to the Board for approval. 
 
       Public Comment:None 
       Board Comment:Member Phillips questioned if there are any policy thant talks 
       about Wi-Fi and Smart devices in our classrooms 
       Member Rhodes makes action to vote, Member Woo makes motion second by 
       Member Villa Superintendent Aguilar roll-call to approve motion.  Motion 
       Approved 5-0 with Member Pritchett and Garcia absent. 
 

 

 

        9.5 Approve Board Policy (BP 5125.1) Release of Directory Information (Bob 
Lyons) 

 
        Mr. Lyons shared Board Policy 5125.2 and stated that a directory pertaining 
        to students be limited by parents and or guardians approval. 
      
       Public Comment:None 
 
       Board Comment: Member Woo asked if this is an opt-in service. Bob Lyons 
       commented that it is an opt out issue. Member Woo made motion, second by 
      Member Muawski. Superintendent Aguilar roll-call with a vote of 5-0 with  
      Members Pritchett and Garcia absent 
 

 

 

    9.6  Approve Board Policy (BP 6163.4) Student Use of Technology (Bob Lyons) 
 
     Mr. Lyons shared that the last update was in 2018.  This policy would assure that 
     students are linked up with staff. 
 
     Public Comment:None 
 
     Board Comment:None 
    Member Woo made motion second by Member Villa. Superintendent Aguilar roll 
    call with a vote of 5-0 with Member Pritchett and Garcia absent. 
 

     9.7  Approve AB 1200 Disclosure and Approval of Successor Negotiations – District 
      Proposal Between Teamsters, Local 150 and the Sacramento City Unified School 
      District (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
      One of the key components for AB 1200 is the article of compensation. The fiscal  
      impact is a total of 1.3 million across three years with a one time $681,000 and  
      ongoing on $622,000 in the ongoing years.  
  
     Public Comment:None 
 
     Board Comment:None 
    Member Rhodes made a motion to approve, second by Member Villa. Superintendent 
    Aguilar roll-call to approve motion, 5-0 with Member Pritchett and Garcia absent. 
 
 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  8 

    9.8  Approve AB 1200 Disclosure and Approval of Successor Negotiations – District 
       Proposal Between Teamsters Classified Supervisors (TCS) and the Sacramento 
      City Unified School District (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
     This agreement is for Teamsters classified supervisors. The key proponents is 4  
     percent ongoing for the 2021-22 school year. There are 2 individual one-time  
     stipends for the fiscal year 2021 and fiscal year 2022. There is an increase to the  
     longevity to increase annual stipend to 1,030 from 792. Also, a comprehensive  
     classification and compensation study. They will now be receiving 100 percent  
     Kaiser active rate across the board along with the 100 percent dental and vision  
     benefits. Allowance will go up to $200 from $120. The fiscal impact is $663,000  
     across the 3 years with a one-time cost of $217 and the ongoing cost of $446 over  
     the remaining 2 that will be funded out of restrictive and unrestrictive general  
     fund.  
 
    Public Comment:None 
 
    Board Comment:None 
 
    Superintendent Aguilar roll call to approve motion, Motion passes 5-0 with 
   Members Pritchett and Garcia absent. 
 

     9.9  Approve AB 1200 Disclosure and Approval of Increased Employer Contribution 
       for Non-Represented Employees’ Regarding Dental and Vision Benefits 
      (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
     This is designed to provide 100 percent dental and vision benefits to nonrepresented 
     employees and their dependants. The fiscal impact would be an ongoing 325,000 
     across the 3 years funded with unrestricted general fund. 
      
     Public Comment:None 
 
     Board Comment:Member Rhodes commented that it is a very equitable thing to do 
     and is needed and will help out many of our employees. Member Woo request a 
     motion second by Member Villa. Superintendent Aguilar roll-call to approve  
     motion, motion passes by 5-0 with Member Pritchett and Garcia absent. 
     Superintendent Aguilar wished to“Thank” Member Rhodes for the positive  
     comment for unrepresented employees.  
 

 
 10.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 10.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA- No update 
 SEIU- No update 
 TCS-  No update 
 Teamsters- No update 

 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  9 

 UPE-  No update 
                                   
 

 10.2 District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee- No update 

 District English Learner Advisory Committee- No update 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee- 

No update 

 Student Advisory Council- No update 

 African American Advisory Board- No update 

 

 

 
  10.3 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar)  

     Superintendent Aguilar wished to thank everyone as there was no open 
session last week in colsolidating two agendas into one board meeting.  
Also, as we enter the third week for this academic year, he is still 
seeing a lot smiles among our students and families and the amount of 
energy among our students and our families and staff.  Superintendent 
Aguilar wanted to commend our Facilities Department in repairing air 
conditioners due to the heatwave at the beginning of this school year 
also our electricians who had to work to repair our kitchens at the 
school sites. Also, acknowledging transportation who drove in the heat. 

 

   10.4 President’s Report (Christina Pritchett)  Absent 

   10.5 Student Member Report (Liam McGurk)    

     Liam McGurk requested a time of Silence for those who died from 
COVID-19. 

   10.6 Information Sharing By Board Members 

     Member Phillips had the pleasure in participating in a program serving 
under privledged individuals working in construction 

     Member Villa reiterated  what Superintendent Aguilar had experienced 
at the beginning of school year and is excited for all the work being 
done at the sites and in the offices and classrooms. 

 
 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                     

 
Generally, routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
11.1 Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  10 

 
11.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 

Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
11.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 

 
11.1c Approve Donations to the District for the Periods of June 1-30, 2022; 
 July 1-31, 2022 and August 1-31, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
 
11.1d Approve the Updated 2022-2025 Title I Nonprofit, Private School (NPS) 

Consortium Memorandum of Understanding for Students Attending NPSs  
 (Kelley Odipo) 

 
11.1e Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers Issued for the Period of June 1-30, 2022; July 1-31, 2022 and  
 August 1-31, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
11.1f  Approve GANN Spending Limit (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
11.1g  Approve Resolution No. 3285: Resolution of Intention to Convey Utility 

Easement Entitlements to the Sacramento Municipal Utilities District for Hiram 
Johnson High School Athletic Fields (Rose F. Ramos and Nathaniel Browning) 

 
Vice President Rhodes requested a motion. Motion made by Member Woo, and second by 
Member Villa. Superintendent Aguilar roll-call to approve motion with 5-0 approval with 
Member Pritchett and Garcia Absent 

 
 12.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS  

 12.1 Business and Financial Information: 
• Purchase Order Report for Periods May 15-June 14, 2022;  

June 15 – July 14, 2022 and July 15-August 14, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 

. 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 October 6, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session,  
Serna Center, 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 October 13, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session,  
Serna Center, 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 



Board Agenda, September 15, 2022  11 

 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
Vice President Rhodes made a motion to adjourn with all in favor at 9:56 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, 
to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 48 hours 
before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you.  
[Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   Any public records 
distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to an open session item 
will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1m 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the October 6, 2022, Regular Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the October 6, 2022, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the October 6, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Agular, Superintendent 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday October 6, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2022/23-6 
 

       Allotted Time 
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:35 p.m. by President Pritchett. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Villa 
Member Murawski 
Member Rhodes 
Member Pritchett 
Member Phillips 
Member Woo 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Garcia 
Member McGurk 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

No public comment 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of 

Education, it also recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside 
of the public eye.  Closed session meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  
They primarily involve personnel issues, pending litigation, labor negotiations, and real 
property matters.  



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

2 

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Three Potential Cases) 

b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 
section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

c) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of government code section 
54956.9 (OAH number: 2022080223) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 
 

3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 
 
3.4 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 

a) Chief Academic Officer 
b)  Principal, Rosa Parks K-8 
c)  Principal, Sam Brannan Middle School  
d)  Principal, School of Engineering and Sciences 

 
 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The meeting was called back to order by President Pritchett at  6:50 p.m. 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Superintendent Aguilar 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement was presented by Student Board Member McGurk 
 
4.3 Stellar Students Soren Bremby and Emily Le both Seniors from West Campus 
  High School, were introduced by Member Villa 

 
 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There is 1 annoucement that came out of closed session: 
- The Board approved a settlement agreement related to Special Education services by 

a vote of 7-0. Also, there is a public comment on this announcement. 
 

Terence Gladney wanted to mention that he noticed a couple of Principal positions, but 
he was glad that they weren’t announced, because there was rescheduling of community 
meetings, so he hopes there continues to be authentic community engagement around the 
replacement of important positions. Especially, at neighborhood schools which are under 
the unslaut of the district by negligence and failure to uplift and support them. With that 
being said and a point he continues to make, specifically at these 3 schools, he hopes we 
can find out why we’re losing good leaders at school sites. We need to have that 
information, if we’re going to be a data driven district. 

 
 6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 

 
Member Pritchett made a motion to adopt the agenda. Member Garcia made a motion 
with Member Villa as a second. The Board voted unanimously to adopt the agenda. 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                            15 minutes 
 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 
in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 
two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 
heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 
discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.  
 
Taylor Kayatta 
Terrence Gladney 
Jeane Shanley 
Jim Scheible 

 
 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  

 
 8.1 Approve Resolution No. 3287: Recognition of Filipino 

American History Month (Darrel Woo) 
 
Member Woo presented the resolution. Filipino presence in the 
continental US was October 18, 1587, when the first Luzones 
Indios arrived in Morro Bay, California, on board the Nuestra 
Senora de Esperanze, a Manila-built galleon ship. Filipino 
American National Historical Society recognizes 1763 as the 
year in which the first permanent Filipino settlement in the US 
was established in St. Malo, Louisana. Filipino American 
community is the third largest Asian American and Pacific 
Islander group in the United States, with a population of 
approximately 4,000,000. It is essential to promote 
understanding, education, and appreciation of the history and 
culture of Filipino Americans in the US. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Board Comment: None 
 
President made a motion to approve the resolution. 
Superintendent Aguilar took roll call with a vote of 7-0. 
 

 

 8.2 Approve Resolution No. 3288: Recognition of the Week 
of the School Administrators, October 9-15, 2022 

  (Cancy McArn, Tuan Duong, and Aprille Shafto) 
 

Dr. Tiffany Smith-Simmons presented on the recognition of the  
Week of the School Administrators, October 9-15, 2022. School  
Administators Week is an opportunity for the district to  
recognize and acknowledge the administrators who support the  
students, staff and community, in the support of students’  

 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

4 

success. 
 

          Public Comment: None 
 
         Board Comment: President Pritchett wanted to thank all of the  

administrators, and shared that she attended Mrs. Easter’s 
celebration of life. She was a dear Principal in her area, and she 
was surrounded by other Principals and staff in the area, and 
hearing the student come up and talk about her, it really hit her 
hard, and she shared that is someone she wants to be more like. 
She wants to be remembered as a person that students remember 
down the road, and it’s inspiring work that they do. She thanked 
staff again for their work. 

 
         President Pritchett made a motion to move. Superintendent   
        Aguilar took roll call with a vote of 7-0. 

 
 
 
 

8.3 Approve Resolution No. 3289: Recognition of National 
School Lunch Week, October 10-14, 2022  

  (Rose F. Ramos and Diana Flores) 
 
Diana Flores presented the resolution. Ms. Flores shared the 
history of school lunches and shared that under the Biden-
Harris White House Conference on Hunger, the focus is on the 
highest quality school meals, engaging children around healthy 
food, investments in school nutrition workforce, and expand 
access to free school meals nationally for 9 millio more 
children by 2032. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Board Comment: Member Phillips thanked Ms. Flores for the 
resolution, but wanted to share that she hopes that in all efforts 
that we maintain a level of recognition of racism in the districts, 
and would love to see some kind of way a more developed 
history of how students have been effected by the school lunch 
program. She wants to put it out there, because we tend to not 
talk about racism in the school districts, so we might be feeding 
certain children and not other children, or trying to 
Americanize the immigrant pallet, but she’s not sure. It’s really 
important we talk about this, if we really want to change things. 
Everything is effected by racism. Child need to see how they 
have been effected by policies that have been put into place to 
make sure they’re not going to eat what other kids eat. Maybe, 
there’s an agenda behind it. 
 
Member Villa witnessed that students are so happy to have the 
salad bar back and fruit access, and she is happy that students 
have access to that in schools, especially elementary school. 

 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

5 

 
President Pritchett made a motion to move. Superintendent   

           Aguilar took roll call with a vote of 7-0. 
 
 
 

 
 9.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 

 
 9.1 Bond Oversight Committee Measures Q and R Annual 

Report 2021-2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
Annual activities were shared which include bond sales and 
project expenditures in progress, all the meetings that were held 
in the 2021-22 fiscal year, reviewed reports prepared by 
Accounting Department, and reviewed audit reports prepared by 
Crowe LLP. Major projects include Martin Luther King Jr. roof 
replacement, door security improvement, and Hubert H. Bancroft 
Project-playground and security fencing. Measure Q & R 
expenditures include building improvements- $6,071,939, land 
improvements- $2,770,853, program management- $961,368, and 
program development and design- $673,845. Audit conclusion 
includes SCUSD expended Measure Q Obligation Bond funds for 
the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with the 
requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)C 
of Article XIII A of the California Constitution. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Board Comment: Member Garcia wanted to share her thanks to 
the presenter. Member Garcia shared the desire for parents to 
have the locks that lock from the inside for the main entrance of 
the door that opens to the school. She wanted to know if these 
were for the classrooms or main entrances for the school. Also, 
how do we create a space for parents that want to participate in 
these conversations. The lock project includes all doors, 
including the entrance doors. Each school is different since some 
of the doors are old and historic. We went through a very 
rigorious outreach from May through the better part of the 
summer, and received a number of applicants that were vetted, 
and working with scheduling a committee to review those 
applicants, so we can bring those appointments to the Board.  
 
 

 

 9.2  Facilities Master Plan Update (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
Nathaniel Browning shared a brief background of a facilities 
master plan, how SCUSD’s facilities master plan is different than 
others, recognition for the district’s facilities master plan, how 

 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

6 

initial projects were identified using the equity index, stakeholder 
engagement around the initial projects, and next steps. 
 
Public Comment: Terrence Gladney wanted to thank the 
committee who really push for a center on equity. It took a huge 
amount of humility for staff to say that they didn’t know what they 
don’t know. When we look at new schools being built and the F & 
P, that is a different mindset that has not yet existed, because our 
schools are so old. We’ve been ok with being ok, if we even want 
to say that we’re ok. He mentioned that Nathaniel is new in 
facilities and he spoke to Terrence to gather insight on how they 
can work together to focus on equity. For the equity matrix, he 
would like for the Board to go through a workshop, so he see 
what it looks like in each step to come to the outcomes to still 
decide on these schools. Gladney touched on unfulfilled promises, 
like still having a school named ‘Sutter”and a plan that’s been in 
the process has gone stale.  
 
Board Comment: Member Garcia confirmed that the three new 
sites presented will be all torn down and rebuilt. She shared how 
exciting that was. Nathaniel shared that his department has taken 
feedback from the community on the site and from district staff, 
and they are sharing a lot of the same things that the Board is 
asking for and requesting.  
 
Member Villa is really thankful excited about these projects that 
are long overdue. 
 
Member Rhodes have said that staff have done an amazing 
job.Especially, speaking to parents at back to school nights to 
gather community and parent input.  
 
Member Pritchett looks forward to learning more in the near 
future. 
 
 

 
 10.0 PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

 

10.1 Public Hearing on Resolution No. 3290: Resolution to 
Convey Utility Easement Entitlements to the Sacramento 
Municipal Utilities District for Hiram Johnson High 
School Athletic Fields (Nathaniel Browning) 

 
In accordance with the education code, we are required to allow 
the public to comment on when the district intends to grant an 
easement to dedicate real property to another public entity. In 
this case, we’re talking about a utility easement to SMUD for 
Hiram Johnson Athletic Fields. This easement is to provide 

 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

7 

adequate power to that facitlity. The resolution will be voted on in 
tonight’s consent agenda. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Board Comment-None 

 
 11.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 11.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA-David Fisher shared how the district’s budget is 
stronger than it’s been in the last few years with those 
running again for Board see that projections looks solid 
with projected surpluses for years. These surpluses include 
the district accepting the $47 million fine for refusing to 
accept their proposal, and closing schools during the 
strike. Fisher touched on the shortage of certificated and 
classified staff at the start of school year, and how SCUSD 
is understaffed at almost every site. Fisher shared issues 
related to TK expansion, community schools, and how 
administrators are continuing to deny special education 
students co-teaching services that are required by their 
IEP. 

 SEIU- No update 
 TCS- No update 
 Teamsters- No update 
 UPE- No update 

 

 
 11.2 District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee- First general membership 
meeting was in September, and there is an all new executive 
committee this year. There was a great turnout, and parents 
and committee members voiced concern about students with 
disabilities, and the concern about quality and instruction of 
services as well as transportation issues. The committee has 
created workshops for the year to support students and their 
families. The first workshop in October will focus on the 
transportation crisis and safety issues. Meetings are still being 
held over Zoom. 

 District English Learner Advisory Committee- No update 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee- 
LCAP has not had a meeting since the departure of Mr. Fong. 
Committee has been asking to meet, but has been told that they 
will mostly have to wait until there is a replacement for Mr. 
Fong. Gladney feels that it’s out of line that we have an LCAP 
item and the committee isn’t even functional at the moment.  

 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

8 

 Student Advisory Council- McGurk shared that they shared that 
there first newspaper this month. The group wants to know if 
particular items have been included into the budget, and who 
replaced the LCAP person. 

 Black/African American Advisory Board- The Board has  
elected to move their meeting schedules for the general body to 
a quarterly schedule, and they will continue their committee 
work monthly to drill down on the core pieces of the work. The 
Executive Committee meetings are monthly as well. The next 
meeting is tenetively scheduled for January 4th. 

  
 11.3 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar) 

       Superintendent Aguilar wanted to thank everyone listening and 
watching. Superintendent Aguilar thanked everyone who came out to 
learn more about the facilities master plan. He shared that there are 
other facility improvements happening across the district. There are 
shade structures, playground updates, and stadium renovations. There 
will be a ribbon cutting ceremony at O.W. Erlewine for the reopening 
of their campus library. The Superintendent shared the school finder 
app, congratulated Yolanda  from Central Kitchen who won the 
Veggie of the Year contest, encouraged the community to stop by 
vaccination clinics, and thanked the health services team on the return 
to health team.  

 

 11.4 President’s Report (Christina Pritchett) 

                   President Pritchett wanted to give a shoutout to the Golden Empire  
                   Community, and impact that Mrs. Easter had on the community. She 
                   asked Cancy McArn how many vacancies there were currently. There 
                   are 53 total. 
 

 11.5 Student Member Report (Liam McGurk)-No update 

 11.6 Information Sharing By Board Members 

                   Member Garcia shared after school programming that is still a little 
bumpy at some of our sites, wants to think ahead about how we can 
work more closely with our providers to make sure that we know on 
both ends how many families how many students are asking for after 
school spots in the program. She shared college savings accounts for 
students, and wondering how we can work with the state agency to tell 
families that they can claim these accounts that are already in place. 
It’s a state investment, so the district would need to share this 
information with families. 

 
 12.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                     

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
 
 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

9 

12.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

12.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
12.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 
12.1c Approve Mandatory Reporting to the Sacramento County Office of Education – 

Uniform Complaints Regarding the Williams Settlement Processed for the 
Period of July 2022 through September 2022 (Cancy McArn) 

 
12.1d Approve C.K. McClatchy High School Meadows Debate Tournament Field Trip 

in Las Vegas, Nevada October 27-30, 2022 (Lisa Allen and Tuan Duong) 
 
12.1e Approve Consolidated Application (ConApp) 2022-23 Spring Report and LCAP 

Addendum (Kelley Odipo) 
 
12.1f Approve Resolution No. 3290: Resolution to Convey Utility Easement 

Entitlements to the Sacramento Municipal Utilities District for Hiram Johnson 
High School Athletic Fields (Nathaniel Browning) 

 
12.1g  Approve Resolution No. 3291: Resolution of Intention to Convey Public Safety 

Easement Entitlements to the City of Sacramento for a New Woodbine 
Elementary Fire Hydrant (Rose F. Ramos and Nathaniel Browning) 

 
12.1h Approve Revision of Board Policy (BP 5141.21) Administering Medication and 

Monitoring Health Conditions (Victoria Flores) 
 
Public Comment: Taylor Kayatta was compelled to speak on sending students on the 
debate team to Nevada. As someone who was in speech and debate, he thinks it’s 
amazing and we should have them more often, and we should celebrate these teams. He 
also wante to touch on the approval of administering medication and monitoring health 
conditions which the community heard about a couple of weeks ago. It’s amazing how 
timely and appropriate this is, and he hopes that we can educate district staff. These 
drugs are making there way into our communities and we need to be at the forefront. 
 
President Pritchett made a motion to approve with all in favor. 

 
 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 
 October 13, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 November 3, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 



Board Agenda, October 6, 2022  
 

10 

 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
President Pritchett made a motion to adjorn. The motion was passed unanimously, and the 
meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 
 

_______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 
 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, 
to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 48 hours 
before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you.  
[Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   Any public records 
distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to an open session item 
will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1n 
 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated February 16, 2023 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated February 16, 2023 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Ed.D, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 2/16/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
PENA ANGELA B Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1/20/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/20/23                                                                                               
WILSON ALYSSA B Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/9/23                                                                                                    

LEAVES
BRINKLEY STACEY A Teacher, Spec Ed PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 1/20/2023 6/30/2023 ADMIN LOA (PD) 1/20/23                                                                                              
ANDREWS KRYSTLE B Principal, Elementary School PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 LOA (INTERMIITTENT) FMLA/CFRA 11/17/22-1/18/23                                                          
DAVIS MICHAEL C Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 1/10/2023 1/30/2023 LOA EXT (PD) 1/10-1/30/23                                                                                            
DAVIS MICHAEL C Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 1/31/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 1/31/23                                                                                                 
DIAZ MARIELA C Teacher, Elementary EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 1/11/2023 2/28/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/11-2/28/23                                                                                              
HOLMES SAMANTHA A Principal, Elementary School JOHN CABRILLO ELEMENTARY 1/25/2023 3/8/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/25-3/8/23                                                                                       
HUNG MING HUI A Teacher, Spec Ed JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 3/20/2023 5/24/2023 LOA (PD) 3/20-5/24/23                                                                                                  
JENKS DANA A Teacher, High School GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 2/2/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (UNPD) 2/2-6/30/23                                                                          
JOHNSON JESSICA A Teacher, Resource EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/9/2022 1/20/2023 LOA (PD) 12/9/22-1/20/23                                                                                           
JOHNSON JESSICA A Teacher, Resource EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/21/2023 4/21/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/21/23-4/21/23                                                                                     
JOHNSON JESSICA A Teacher, Resource EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/22/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (UNPD) 4/22-6/30/23                                                                                          
LEE DONALD A Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 11/28/2022 3/3/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 11/28-3/3/23                                                                                      
MEDINA MELISSA 0 Teacher, Spec Ed C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 2/2/2023 5/5/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/2-5/5/23                                                                                        
MEYERS MORGAN A Teacher, Elementary CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 2/2/2023 2/5/2023 EXT LOA (UNPD) 2/2-5/23                                                                                          
MEYERS MORGAN A Teacher, Elementary CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 2/6/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN 2/6/23                                                                                                          
PEREZ ALEJANDRA A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 12/24/2022 2/26/2023 LOA EXT (PD) 12/24/22-2/26/23                                                                                        
RODRIGUEZ MARY A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/20/2023 4/6/2023 LOA (PD) 1/20-4/6/23                                                                                            
RODRIGUEZ MARY A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/7/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/7-6/30/23                                                                                       
SANCHEZ HEIDII A Teacher, Spec Ed CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 1/10/2023 2/21/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/10-2/21/23                                                                                      
SANCHEZ LEANA A Teacher, Middle School SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 1/28/2023 2/22/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/28-2/22/23                                                                                            

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
DENNIS MAYA B Counselor, Middle School KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 11/28/2022
FRIEND LISA B Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 2/21/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 2/21/23                                                                                                 
GROSSMAN AARON C Teacher, High School NEW TECH 12/13/2022 1/31/2023 STCHG 12/13/22                                                                                                
HOLT JASON C Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 1/19/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 1/19/23                                                                                                  
KEM-GREY VIDALYN B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 1/23/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 1/23/23                                                                                                 
MARTINEZ CARMEN B Teacher, Middle School KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 10/3/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 10/3/22                                                                                                
SHINTAKU ADRIANA B Assistant Principal, Middle Sc SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 1/30/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/30/23                                                                                      
SIMS MANISHA A Training Specialist SCHOOL CLIMATE 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 REA /STCHG 1/9/23                                                                                             

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
BRANGACCIO MARLA C Teacher, Spec Ed C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2022 1/24/2023 SEP / RESIGN 1/24/23                                                                                                    
MCCRAY DANITA A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/23                                                                                                    
NELSON CHRISTIAN A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 9/20/2021 6/30/2022 SEP / RESIGN 6/30/22                                                                                                   
RICHARDS ANN A Lang. Speech & Hearing Speclst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                     

TRANSFER
BARKER KELDA Teacher, High School CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 1/30/2023 6/30/2023 TR 1/30/23                                                                                                  
BAYZE JESSICA A Teacher, High School CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 1/25/2023 6/30/2023 TR 1/25/23                                                                                                       
FALLON MARGO A Teacher, Spec Ed C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 TR 1/9/23                                                                                                     
MUNN SARA R Principal, Supt Pr Sch K8 ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 TR 1/9-6/30/23                                                                                           
RODRIGUEZ KATIE R Asst Principal, Supt Pr Sch K8 ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 1/17/2023 6/30/2023 TR 1/17-6/30/23                                                                                           

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
February 16, 2023



Page 1 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 2/16/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
AMARO ARIANNA B Instructional Aide NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 1/18/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/18/23                                                                                                     
BUTLER KRISTIN B Clerk II PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/11/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/11/23                                                                                                     
CHAPPELL KRYSTAL B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/1/2023 6/30/2023 ELECT PROB 2/1/23                                                                                                      
CRONJAGER CONNOR B Warehouse Worker DISTRIBUTION SERVICES 9/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/22                                                                                                   
GLADNEY LAMINTA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/23/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/1/23                                                                                                     
GRANT JENNIFER B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/9/23                                                                                                     
GUERRERO MARCO B Clerk I ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 1/24/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/24/23                                                                                                     
IQBAL ZARINA A Library Media Tech Asst H.W. HARKNESS ELEMENTARY 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 RE-EMPL PERM 11/14/22                                                                                                    
JORDAN JOSHUA B Clerk III JOHN H. STILL - K-8 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 RE-EMPLOY PROB 1/9/23                                                                                                   
LIZAMA SAIRA B Instructional Aide EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 RE-EMPLOY PROB 1/9/23                                                                                                    
LUO HUI B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/1/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/1/23                                                                                                     
MARTINEZ ANGELICA B Clerk II ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 12/20/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/20/22                                                                                                    
MILLER BOBBIE B Office Tchncn III SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 2/1/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/1/23                                                                                                   
PORTER JESSICA B Noon Duty FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 1/23/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/23/23                                                                                                     
RODGERS SHANTAE B Campus Monitor LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 12/21/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/21/22                                                                                                
SAECHAO CHENG B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/6/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/6/23                                                                                                   
SANDOVAL MERCEDES B Custodian WEST CAMPUS 12/5/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/5/23                                                                                                     
SCHONEWEIS BROK B Custodian PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/17/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/17/23                                                                                                     
STIRLING TRICIA B Instructional Aide ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 1/18/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/18/23                                                                                                     
TOLENTINO STACI B Instructional Aide PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/26/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/26/23                                                                                                     
URENA MELISSA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/1/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/1/23                                                                                                  
WILSON SHERRY B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/21/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/21/23                                                                                                  
WISE KAYLA B Clerk I HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 1/24/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/24/23                                                                                                     
YANCY STEVEN B Health Aide HEALTH SERVICES 2/2/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/2/23                                                                                                     

LEAVES
ARAGON DAWN A Clerk II JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 1/2/2023 1/31/2023 LOA EXT (PD) HE 1/2-1/31/23                                                                                             
ARAGON DAWN A Clerk II JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 2/1/2023 2/28/2023 LOA (UNPD) 2/1-2/28/23                                                                                               
BROWN KAREN B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 1/13/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (UNPD) 1/13/23-6/30/23                                                                                             
CUENCA JUANA A Custodian SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/27/2023 4/24/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 3/27-4/24/23                                                                                        
DEARY NANCY A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/1/2023 1/31/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/1/23-1/31/23                                                                                            
DUNGCA KIRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/28/2022 12/4/2022 AMEND LOA (PD) 9/28-12/4/22 
DUNGCA KIRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/5/2022 1/22/2023 AMEND LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 12/5/22-1/22/23                                                                        
DUNGCA KIRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/23/2023 3/10/2023 AMEND LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/23-3/10/23                                                                          
GILBERT MICHELLE A Speech-Lang Pathology Asst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 1/1/2023 2/14/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/1/23-2/14/23                                                                                            
HILSINGER CAMI A Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1/30/2023 3/8/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/30-3/8/23                                                                                             
HUG JOHN A Carpenter FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1/20/2023 2/9/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/20/23-2/9/23                                                                                            
KORGE DEBRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 1/31/2023 2/28/2023 LOA EXT (PD) HE 1/31-2/28/23                                                                                            
LIEMTHONGSAMOUT LA B Accts Payable Lead Technician ACCOUNTING SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/21/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN 1/21/23                                                                                                         
MOSS MELISSA B Certified Occup Therapy Asst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 1/30/2023 6/30/2023 AMEND LOA (UNPD) 1/30-7/31/23                                                                                       
OLIVARES MOISES A Inst Aid, Spec Ed CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 1/23/2023 6/30/2023 ADMIN LOA (PD) 1/23/23                                                                                              
PAYAN PATRICIA B Educational Assistant JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 10/13/2022 11/11/2022 LOA (PD)10/13-11/11/22                                                                                              
PAYAN PATRICIA B Educational Assistant JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 11/12/2022 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 11/12/23                                                                                                   
RINCON SILVIA A Instructional Aide BG CHACON ACADEMY 1/1/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 1/1/23                                                                                                  
SALAZAR JOSEFINA A Custodian ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1/3/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 1/3/23                                                                                                  
WOOD MATTHEW A School Plant Ops Mngr I WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/1/2022 3/9/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 12/1/22-3/9/23                                                                                      
WOOD MATTHEW A School Plant Ops Mngr I WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/10/2023 4/30/2023 LOA (PD) 3/10/23-4/30/23                                                                                               

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
ALVAREZ BEVENS TINA B Contract Analyst PURCHASING SERVICES 1/11/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/11/23                                                                                          
BELL JOSEPH A Facilities Maint Laborer II FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1/31/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/31/23                                                                                                  
CALIGARI STEFANI DENISE A Inst Aid, Spec Ed DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/23/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 1/23/23                                                                                                        
CLARK MEMPHIS A Health Aide, Spec Ed HEALTH SERVICES 9/1/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 9/1/22                                                                                                            
FAIN ANDREW A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/30/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/30/23                                                                                                  
HERRERA ELISABETH B Inst Aid, Spec Ed GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/9/23                                                                                                     

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
February 16, 2023



Page 2 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
HUGHES RACHEL B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/9/2023 5/31/2023 REA/STCHG 1/9/23                                                                                                  
MAKIHELE KIMBERLY B Instructional Aide WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/20/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/20/23                                                                                                    
PHUNG LIEN A Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 12/15/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 12/15/22                                                                                                   
PINOLA RACHER B Instructional Aide WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/20/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 1/20/23                                                                                                        
ROBLES SILVIA A Van Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 1/20/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 1/20/23                                                                                                   
RODRIGUEZ NICOLE A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/9/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/9/23                                                                                                        
VALLADARES SEIDI B Administrative Asst-EIS LEARNING SUPPORT UNIT B 1/24/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/24/23                                                                                                 
ZHOU YU B Career Information Technician ENGINEERING AND SCIENCES HS 1/9/2023 2/28/2023 REA/STCHG 1/9/23          
ZHOU YU B Career Information Technician HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIGH SCHOOL 1/9/2023 2/28/2023 REA/STCHG 1/9/23          

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
ALEMAN VERONICA B Clerk II FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 9/19/2022 1/23/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/23/23                                                                                                      
BAINS HARMESH B Facilities Maint Laborer II FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 11/15/2022 1/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/16/23                                                                                                    
BELL JOSEPH B Maint and Grounds Asst Sprvsr FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8/17/2022 1/30/2023 SEP/TERM 2/3/23                                                                                                         
DE GOMEZ MARTHA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 12/1/2022 2/6/2023 SEP/39MO 2/6/23                                                                                                      
DEAN RICHARD B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 12/5/2022 1/17/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/17/23                                                                                                    
ESHANZAI MOHAMMAD Q Teacher Assistant, Bilingual C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 11/1/2022 12/23/2022 SEP / RESIGN 12/23/22                                                                                                   
HOBART DIEDRE B Inst Aid, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2022 1/23/2023 SEP / RESIGN 1/23/23                                                                                                    
JAQUEZ GLORIA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 7/1/2022 2/17/2023 SEP/RESIGN 2/17/23                                                                                                    
MILLER CHEVELLA A School Plant Ops Mngr I ENGINEERING AND SCIENCES HS 7/1/2022 1/24/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/24/23                                                                                                      
ROBINSON XAVIER B Noon Duty JOHN H. STILL - K-8 11/8/2022 1/25/2023 SEP/TERM 1/25/23                                                                                                   
SMITH COURTNEY B Ombudsperson CONSTITUENT SERVICES 8/19/2022 1/20/2023 SEP/TERM 1/20/23                                                                                                        
WASHINGTON DON B Plumber FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 10/19/2022 3/1/2023 SEP/RESIGN  3/1/23                                                                                                      
XICOTENCATL BERNARDO A Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 9/25/2022 12/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 12/30/22                                                                                                    
YANG ZHILING B FACE Technician STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 1/10/2023 1/25/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/25/23                                                                                                      

TRANSFER
MENTINK DOUGLAS A IEP Desig Inst Para-Sp Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 1/23/2023 6/30/2023 TR 1/23/23                                                                                                      



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Business and Financial Information 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Receive business and financial information. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of December 15, 
2022 through January 14, 2023. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of December 15, 2022 through January 14, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B23-00789 BERBER FOOD MFG INC dba 

MI RAN CHO

TORTILLA CHIPS FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

5,000.00 

B23-00790 INTERBORO PACKAGING 

CORP

BUN RACK COVERS FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

10,000.00 

B23-00791 SYNTECH SYSTEMS INC FUEL MASTER TECH 

SUPPORT RENEWAL

01TRANSPORTATION 

SERVICES

1,000.00 

B23-00792 FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 2022-23 - 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,501.82 

B23-00793 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

BLANKET ORDER FOR CCTR 

GRANT

12HEALTH SERVICES 34,600.00 

B23-00794 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

SUPP'L LIB SUPPLIES TO 

ENHANCE CURRICULUM 

FY23

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,500.00 

B23-00795 MEGAMEX FOODS LLC FRESH SALSA FOR 2022-23 

SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

81,294.44 

B23-00796 PRAIRIE MILLS BAKING CO 

LLC db a BAKE CRAFTERS 

FOOD CO

BREADSTICKS & PANCAKES 

FOR 2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

140,000.00 

B23-00797 NATIONAL FOOD GROUP 

INC

SUNFLOWER SEEDS FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

45,000.00 

B23-00798 SUNWEST FOODS INC RICE FOR 2022-23 SY 13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

55,000.00 

B23-00799 WARDS NATURAL SCIENCE 

ESTABLIS HMENT INC

BIOLOGY LAB & 

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 

FY22-23

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,500.00 

B23-00800 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB@ ROSA PARKS-GALEN 

MORAN

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B23-00801 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB@SAM BRANNAN-HUONG 

NGUYEN

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B23-00802 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY ARTS 

PAX LAB-DAVID ALLEN 

@WCW

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B23-00803 B & H PHOTO PHOTOGRAPHY 

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 

FY23

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

B23-00804 SAVORY LIFE LLC SANDWICHES FOR SUPPER 

FOR 2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

158,144.96 

B23-00805 CHERRY CENTRAL 

COOPERATIVE INC

DRIED CHERRIES FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

57,830.40 

B23-00806 J R SIMPLOT COMPANY FROZEN PRODUCE FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

156,304.86 

B23-00807 TREE TOP INC APPLE CRISPS FOR 2022-23 

SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

80,000.00 

B23-00808 KELLOGG SALES CO CEREAL & SNACKS 2022-23 13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

31,000.00 

B23-00809 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

Blanket Order for Riso 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,850.88 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 1 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CHB23-00370 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPLEMENTAL 

SUPPLIES

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

8,000.00 

CHB23-00371 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CAEP_ADMIN/OFFICE 

SUPPLIES- OFFICE DEPOT 

(113902)

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

3,000.00 

CHB23-00372 OFFICE DEPOT LPPA INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES FY22/23

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,000.00 

CHB23-00373 OFFICE DEPOT CJA  INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES FY22/23

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,000.00 

CHB23-00374 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

WIOA TILE II_ABE_HSE 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

2,000.00 

CHB23-00375 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT 2022-23 

SCHOOL SUPPLIES

01SUSAN B. ANTHONY 

ELEMENTARY

5,000.00 

CHB23-00376 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM/SCHOOL 

SUPPLIES

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

4,500.00 

CS23-00357 LIONAKIS 0510-433 CKM HVAC 

ADMIN/CAFE/SECUR 

CAM-ARCH SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

27,500.00 

CS23-00358 GLORIA MELCHOR DBA 

GLORIA'S IN TERPRETING 

SVCS

CONFIRMG-PARENT-TEACH 

CONF INTERPRETR 

NOV/DEC 2023

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

2,255.00 

CS23-00359 GLORIA MELCHOR dba 

GLORIA'S IN TERPRETING 

SVCS

INTERPRETING FOR 

PARENTS

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

10,000.00 

CS23-00360 CADENCE SOLUTIONS CADENCE - OPENTEXT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

SERVICES- YR1

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 145,600.00 

CS23-00361 BALFOUR BEATTY-CLARK & 

SULLIVA

460 CHAVEZ/KEMBLE NEW 

CONST-PRECON SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

74,810.00 

CS23-00363 DEPARTMENT OF SOUND SUPPLEMENTAL PROVIDER 01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 92,250.00 

CS23-00364 EMPOWERING 

POSSIBILITIES UNLIM ITED 

INC

EPU MOU WITH ROSA PARKS 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

50,000.00 

CS23-00365 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

LEADER IN ME PROGRAM 01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

7,500.00 

CS23-00366 STUDIO T 2022-23 SUPPLEMENTAL 

PROVIDER

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 100,800.00 

CS23-00367 TERRACON CONSULTANTS 

INC

0363-409 TJUDAH 

PLYGRND-GEOTECHNICAL 

SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

12,440.00 

CS23-00368 TERRACON CONSULTANTS 

INC

0265-461 OAK RIDGE NEW 

CONST-GEOTECH SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

52,415.00 

CS23-00369 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

22-23 LEADER IN ME 

MEMBERSHIP AND 

COACHING

01JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY

8,600.00 

CS23-00370 PRO YOUTH & FAMILY INC PRO YOUTH & FAMILIES 01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,091,080.00 

CS23-00371 DOCUMENT TRACKING 

SERVICES

DTS TRANSLATIONS 2022 

LCAP

01CONTINUOUS IMPRVMNT & 

ACNTBLTY

41,655.16 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 2 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS23-00372 BIGGER THAN US ARTS 2022-23 SUPPLEMENTAL 

PROVIDER

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 133,200.00 

CS23-00373 TERRACON CONSULTANTS 

INC

0327-401 SEQUOIA 

RR-GEOTECH SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

13,195.00 

CS23-00374 EXPANDED LEARNING 

ACADEMY

Expanded Learning Academy 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

62,000.00 

CS23-00375 PLACEWORKS 0265-461 OAK RIDGE NEW 

CONST-CEQA RPT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

81,458.00 

CS23-00376 UC REGENTS UCD MESA CENTER (WILL C. 

WOOD)

01INDIAN EDUCATON 2,000.00 

CS23-00377 UC REGENTS UCD MESA CENTER (SAM 

BRANNAN MS)

01INDIAN EDUCATON 2,000.00 

CS23-00378 STUDIOS FOR THE 

PERFORMING ART S 

OPERATING CO

Clara 10 week in school art 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 56,000.00 

CS23-00379 KCB INVESTMENTS LLC 0032-416 CALEB 

GREENWOOD PLYGND 

INSPECTION

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

11,400.00 

CS23-00380 EARTH MAMA HEALING INC STUDENT 

INTERVENTION/SUPPORT

01KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 20,000.00 

CS23-00381 CENTER FOR FATHERS & 

FAMILIES

AFTERSCHOOL CENTER 

FOR FATHERS & FAMILIES

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 135,394.57 

CS23-00382 BUREAU VERITAS 

TECHNICAL ASSES SMENTS 

LLC

OLD MARSHALL PROPERTY 

ASSESSMENT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

24,330.00 

CS23-00410 NATIONAL UNIVERSITY 

ATTN: STEP HANIE MARSH

NATIONAL UNIV. SCULP MOU 01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

126,000.00 

P23-01499 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SAFETY EQUIPMENT FOR 

SCHOOL

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 293.20 

P23-01551 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

BLANKET ORDER FOR CCTR 

GRANT

12HEALTH SERVICES 22,405.75 

P23-01552 TARADIGM INC ANNUAL RENEWAL OF 

BLUBEAM REVU

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

1,924.00 

P23-01553 EUGSON WONG dba JOE 

SUN & CO

LAW - UNIFORM 

ALTERATIONS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

535.69 

P23-01554 BILL SMITH PHOTOGRAPHY CONFIRMING COMPLETED 

ORDER - STUDENT I.D. 

CARDS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,409.97 

P23-01555 CRISIS PREVENTION 

INSTITUTE

INV. # CUS0317369 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

346.16 

P23-01556 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

BRIGANCE MATERIAL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,892.73 

P23-01557 COMMUNITY PRODUCTS 

LLC

RIFTON SUPINE STANDER - 

LINE 155 POZZEBON

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,430.57 

P23-01558 APPLE INC AAC MULTIPLE STUDENTS 

(LINE 157)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,757.23 

P23-01559 VIRCO INC VIRCO - OUTDOOR TABLES 

W/BENCHES - PRESCHOOL 

SITES

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

45,674.98 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 3 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01560 DEL PASO PIPE & STEEL MFG_WELDING_INSTUCTION

AL MATERIALS

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

6,203.15 

P23-01561 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

LAMINATOR FILM 01THEODORE JUDAH 

ELEMENTARY

256.04 

P23-01562 SACRAMENTO CHINESE 

COMMUNITY S ERVICE 

CENTER

SUPPLEMENTAL SUPPORT 

JUNE 2022

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,005.40 

P23-01563  SETTLEMENT TRUST 

.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

77,480.00 

P23-01564 UNITED SITE SERVICES CONFIRMING - WASH 

STATION RENTAL @ ST. 

HOPE

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,059.24 

P23-01565 UNITED SITE SERVICES CONFIRMING - WASH 

STATION RENTAL @ ST. 

HOPE

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,059.24 

P23-01566 CA DEPT OF GENERAL 

SERVICES DI VISION OF 

STATE ARCHITECT

0327-401 SEQUOIA RR-DSA 

START UP FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

21,330.00 

P23-01567 RAYMOND NAVARRETE CALENDLY - TREAT AS 

CONFIRMING

01WEST CAMPUS 108.00 

P23-01568 ALICIA JAIME-RAZO ZAMBOMBAZO MEMBERSHIP - 

TREAT AS CONFIRMING

01WEST CAMPUS 83.99 

P23-01569 THE HOME DEPOT PRO AFTERSCHOOL CUSTODIAL 01LEATAATA FLOYD 

ELEMENTARY

1,480.40 

P23-01570 THE HOME DEPOT PRO AFTERSCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLY

01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

1,436.24 

P23-01571 THE HOME DEPOT PRO AFTERSCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

01SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

981.19 

P23-01572 THE HOME DEPOT PRO AFTER SCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

01EDWARD KEMBLE 

ELEMENTARY

983.01 

P23-01573 3D SYSTEMS INC SUPPLIES FOR 

ENGINEERING PATHWAY - 

KEN DAVIS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

4,110.75 

P23-01574 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,004.30 

P23-01575 B&H FOTO & ELECTRONICS 

CORP B& H PHOTO-VIDEO

DRONES AND CASE FOR 

STEM LEARNING - CJA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

579.42 

P23-01576 AMERICAN RIVER NATURAL 

HISTORY  dba EFFIE YEAW 

NATURE CENTER

EFFIE YEAW-WLM.B. POND 

3/31/2023 LEONARD, 

SHARON

01SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

390.00 

P23-01577 SCHOOL SPECIALTY FLAGS FOR SCHOOL 01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

200.38 

P23-01578 SCHOOL SPECIALTY TEMPURA CAKE TRAY CLASS 

SET FOR ART ROOM

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

631.90 

P23-01579 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

JOB CENTER 

PROGRAMS_TONER

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

495.42 

P23-01580 SERGEANT KNOTS SUPPLY 

CO

TWISTED ROPE FOR 

TRAINING AND EXERCISE - 

CJA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

235.31 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 4 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01581 RUSSELL BURCH dba U PAY 

WE TRA VEL

TREAT AS CONFIRMING 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

802.50 

P23-01582 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 

CO

MFG_TECHNICIAN_INSTRUC

TIONAL

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,005.22 

P23-01583 GRAINGER INC MANUFACTURING_FORKLIFT 

PART

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

469.77 

P23-01584 DUMMIES UNLIMITED RESCUE DRAG TRAINING 

DUMMY FOR STUDENTS - 

CJA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,990.26 

P23-01585 CDW GOVERNMENT QUOTE #NDCF045 - XEROX 

CARTRIDGES

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

613.90 

P23-01586 AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL - 

QA/QC M&O WHSE 

INSPECTION

01RISK MANAGEMENT 3,920.54 

P23-01587 LEARNING PLUS 

ASSOCIATES

MATH INTERVENTION 01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

1,047.26 

P23-01588 BILL SMITH PHOTOGRAPHY 21-22 ADDITION YEARBOOK 

ORDER

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

54.36 

P23-01589 ROLAN NOGHLI dba 

PARKLANE CLEA NERS

TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING: 

AFJROTC UNIFORM DRY 

CLEAN

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,939.11 

P23-01590 APPLE INC CLASSRROM APPLE TV 22.23 01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

573.11 

P23-01591 STARFALL EDUCATION 

FOUNDATION

CURRICULUM FOR KINDER 

STUDENT LEARNING

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

70.00 

P23-01592 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LASERJET PRINTER - 

MICA BROWN

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

525.00 

P23-01593 SOJEONG STOUTAMORE CLASSROOM SUPPLIES - 

QUIZIZZ/GRADE TRANSFER

01WEST CAMPUS 83.88 

P23-01594 FREEPORT CLEANERS TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING: 

AFJROTC UNIFORM DRY 

CLEANING

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

791.85 

P23-01595 CDW GOVERNMENT CDW-OPENTEXT LIC AND 

MAINTENANCE - first year

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 461,951.02 

P23-01596 AIRCRAFT CARRIER 

HORNET FOUND USS 

HORNET MUSEUM

TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING: FT 

USS HORNET 12/7-AFJROTC

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,440.00 

P23-01597 ALL WEST COACHLINES TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING: 

BUSES TO USS HORNET 

AFJROTC

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,976.46 

P23-01598 JONES SCHOOL SUPPLY 

CO INC

ATTENDANCE INCENTIVES 

(BRACELETS) FOR MLK 

STUDENTS

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

55.94 

P23-01599 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CHILD DEV CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

305.23 

P23-01600 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

DELIVER TO DR.DANITA 

MCCRAY, PRESCHOOL, 

ROOM 4

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,153.52 

P23-01601 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CHILD DEV CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

300.97 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 5 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01602 AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

AURORA BIANNUAL AHERA 

INSPECTION

01RISK MANAGEMENT 10,795.20 

P23-01603 CALIFORNIA 

INTERSCHOLASTIC FED 

ERATION - SAC JOAQUIN

CIF Sac-Joaquin Membership 

Dues FY 23

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

25,178.35 

P23-01604 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

FRIENDZY SEL PROGRAM 01ST ROBERT'S SCHOOL 1,625.00 

P23-01605 MIDSTATE SPECIALTIES INC CONFIRMING - REKEY EARL 

WARREN ELEMENTARY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1,000.00 

P23-01606 MIDSTATE SPECIALTIES INC CONFIRMING - REKEY 

NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1,000.00 

P23-01607 INTERNATIONAL 

BACCALAUREATE

KIT CARSON IB FEES 

9.1.22-8.31.23

01AREA ASSITANT 

SUPERINTENDENTS

20,694.00 

P23-01608 APPERSON INC SCANTRONS FOR TESTING 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

921.26 

P23-01609 FREEPORT CLEANERS TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING: 

LPPA JACKET DRY 

CLEANING

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

598.85 

P23-01610 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK AND MASTER 01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

131.94 

P23-01611 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

PRINTERS FOR PE 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 217.48 

P23-01612 VEX ROBOTICS INC IQ COMPETITION KIT 2ND 

GEN-MICA BROWN @ W. 

CAMPUS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

3,755.02 

P23-01613 KLINE MUSIC INC KLINE MUSIC - UKELELE 

BUNDLE BAG BLACK 

SOPRANO

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 388.24 

P23-01614 EAN SERVICES LLC RENTAL CAR FOR GIRLS 

BBALL TOURNAMENT IN SAN 

DIEGO

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

413.54 

P23-01615 AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

AURORA HMBP AND DOT 

SPOMS TRAINING

01RISK MANAGEMENT 13,787.51 

P23-01617 MBS ENGINEERING INC GAS LINE REPLACEMENT 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 101,000.00 

P23-01618 WESTERN TOOLS AND 

EQUIPMENT

MFG_TECHNICIAN_INSTRUC

TIONAL

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

333.45 

P23-01619 SPLASHTOP INC QUOTE 00015187 - KEN 

DAVIS-ENGINEERING

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

13,379.60 

P23-01620 DEMCO INC LIBRARY SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

242.55 

P23-01621 DEMCO INC LIBRARY SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

69.28 

P23-01622 Nuove Sales, Inc COVERS FOR ELA NOVELS 01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

933.73 

P23-01623 GOPHER SPORT PE EQUIPMENT 01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

115.83 

P23-01624 DELTA WIRELESS INC MOTOROLA BATTERIES AND 

CLIPS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

369.26 

P23-01625 CDW GOVERNMENT Laptop for Board Member 

Taylor Kayatta

01BOARD OF EDUCATION 1,232.59 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 6 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01626 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

Scholastic News Edition 

Edition 2 - 2nd Grade

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

162.85 

P23-01627 CAL DEPT OF SOCIAL 

SERVICES

DSS COMMUNITY CARE 

LICENSE APPLICATION FEE

12HEALTH SERVICES 484.00 

P23-01628 FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC SCIENCE SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,171.48 

P23-01629 RUSSELL BURCH dba U PAY 

WE TRA VEL

BASKETBALL LEAGUE FEES 

DECEMBER 2022

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

630.00 

P23-01630 CURTIS ROBERTS 

INSPECTIONS

TRANSPORTATION DEPT 

MOLD/IAQ INSPECTION

01RISK MANAGEMENT 800.00 

P23-01631 CHEFS TOYS LLC DISPLAY STAND, BASKETS & 

PASTRY BASKETS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

6,329.25 

P23-01632 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ATTN: PAOLA LOPEZ EL&C 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

201.25 

P23-01633 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SECURITY RADIOS 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 172.90 

P23-01634 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES GLUCOMETER TEST STRIPS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

58.51 

P23-01635 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Melissa Sigars Popcorn 

Machine

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

377.88 

P23-01636 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT ORDER LoMo @ PONY 

EXPRESS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

43.45 

P23-01637 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AAC ORDER - MULT 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

261.77 

P23-01638 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MIRROR FOR BATHROOM 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 165.28 

P23-01639 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES EINSTEIN - SKATE CLUB 

HELMETS

01INDIAN EDUCATON 398.49 

P23-01640 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES DIGITAL SCALES FOR 

BIOLOGY/CHEMISTRY IN 

D-WING

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

880.74 

P23-01641 JILLORI THOM Rembursement- Jillori Thom- 

Training

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,995.00 

P23-01642 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES LIBRARY SUPPLIES 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

446.56 

P23-01643 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CALM RM D 8 SUPPLIES 

ESSER APPRVD

01KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 795.49 

P23-01644 VICKI KARLOVICH REIMBURSEMENT FOR 

KAHOOT - KARLOVICH

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 108.00 

P23-01645 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

REPLACEMENT WHSE 

LAMPS

01DISTRIBUTION SERVICES 486.06 

P23-01646 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

JCBA - PRESENTATION 

PAPER

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

86.98 

P23-01647 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

WHITE BOARD-CAREERS 

INFO-B. HERNANDEZ

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

1,798.15 

P23-01648 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

INK FOR LEADERSHIP 

PRINTER

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 671.96 

P23-01649 CDW GOVERNMENT ARUBA CLEARPASS 

SECURITY SOFTWARE 

LICENSE

21TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 53,896.84 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 7 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01650 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

ELDER CREEK PRESCHOOL 

HALLWAY CONTRACT# 

080819-TFU

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

18,670.22 

P23-01651 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

ELDER CREEK PRESCHOOL 

K4 CONTRACT# 080819-TFU

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

24,709.62 

P23-01652 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

ELDER CREEK PRESCHOOL 

RM 1 

CONTRACT#080819-TFU

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

14,927.17 

P23-01653 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

ELDER CREEK PRESCHOOL 

RM 2&3

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

29,918.18 

P23-01654 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

JAMES MARSHALL 

PRESCHOOL RM1 

CONTRACT# 080819-TFU

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

19,030.85 

P23-01655 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PE MISC ITEMS 01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

320.71 

P23-01656 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES GENETICS LAB MATERIALS 

FOR BIOLOGY

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

665.89 

P23-01657 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PHYSICS LAB MATERIALS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

162.40 

P23-01658 SCANTRON CORP RENEWAL OF MAINTENANCE 

CONTRACTS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,618.00 

P23-01659 E&M ELECTRIC AND 

MACHINERY INC

REPORTING SOFTWARE 

LICENSE RENEWAL 

CENTRAL KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,695.00 

P23-01661 CDW GOVERNMENT AT ORDER - LINE 143 

WATTENBERG

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,895.62 

P23-01662 SILKE COMMUNICATIONS SILKE COMMUNICATIONS - 

FCC ANNUAL 

LICENSE/USAGE

01TRANSPORTATION 

SERVICES

62,857.08 

P23-01664 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HOMELESS SERVICES 

(SUPPLIES/MATERIALS)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,751.85 

P23-01665 SUNSHINE COMPUTERS & 

SOFTWARE

INNOVATION COMPUTERS 01NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

2,676.92 

P23-01666 CA DEPT OF GENERAL 

SERVICES DI VISION OF 

STATE ARCHITECT

0363-409 TJUDAH 

PLYGRND-DSA STARTUP 

FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

11,250.00 

P23-01667 CA DEPT OF GENERAL 

SERVICES DI VISION OF 

STATE ARCHITECT

0530-434 LBHS CORE PHASE 

2 DSA-1 FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

24,300.00 

P23-01668 SETTLEMENT 

REIMBURSEMENT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,430.00 

P23-01669 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC ALL WEST BUS FOR CJA FT 

ALCATRAZ 3/14/2023

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,908.60 

P23-01670 ALCATRAZ CRUISES LLC TICKETS TO ALCATRAZ FIELD 

TRIP 3/14-CJA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,937.60 

P23-01671 LUX BUS AMERICA CO ANNUAL 6TH GRADE 

SCIENCE CAMP TO SLY PARK 

2023

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

5,133.50 

P23-01672 ULINE LABELS FOR NS WHSE 

STORED PRODUCT

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

445.58 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 8 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01673 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT ORDER IsGa @ SUTTER 

MIDDLE (LINE 163)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

49.73 

P23-01674 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT ORDER SaBr @ SES (LINE 

146)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

107.66 

P23-01675 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HOMELESS SERVICES 

(SUPPLIES/MATERIALS)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,355.85 

P23-01676 CDW GOVERNMENT AT/VI ORDER -  AnTa @ 

ROSEMONT (LINE 153)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

110.96 

P23-01678 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HOMELESS SERVICES 

(SUPPLIES/MATERIALS)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,511.41 

P23-01679 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES DHH SUPPLIES 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 576.85 

P23-01680 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AMERICAN FLAGS 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 260.56 

P23-01681 SPHERA SOLUTIONS INC RM COMMUNICATION 

SUBSCRIPTION-CONFIRMIN

G REQ

01RISK MANAGEMENT 1,521.64 

Total 4,485,068.67 Total Number of  POs 182 

Fund Recap

Fund Description PO Count Amount

01 General Fund 133 2,830,038.14 

09 Charter School 2 191,394.57 

11 Adult Education 7 13,507.01 

12 Child Development 14 213,759.62 

13 Cafeteria 14 828,044.49 

21 Building Fund 12 408,324.84 

Total 4,485,068.67 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 9 of 10



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/15/2022 - 01/14/2023 ***

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B23-00308 7,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3,000.00 

B23-00315 4,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,500.00 

B23-00318 8,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00-

B23-00348 .00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,500.00-

B23-00357 28,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00-

B23-00392 1,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 10,000.00 

B23-00423 7,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00 

B23-00432 .00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 10,000.00-

B23-00434 3,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00-

B23-00442 .00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,000.00-

B23-00444 .00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 2,000.00-

B23-00501 11,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 7,000.00 

B23-00506 4,600.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 320.00 

13-5690 Cafeteria/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 1,280.00 

1,600.00 Total PO B23-00506 

B23-00529 1,800.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 800.00 

B23-00629 120,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 19,330.13 

B23-00707 8,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 4,475.83 

CHB23-00002 20,000.00 12-4320 Child Development/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 4,200.00 

CHB23-00024 2,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CHB23-00217 3,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CHB23-00300 11,800.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 3,500.00 

CS23-00139 19,360.00 11-5800 Adult Education/Other Contractual Expenses 1,760.00 

CS23-00199 237,464.40 21-6170 Building Fund/Land Improvement 10,072.00 

CS23-00200 277,250.00 21-6170 Building Fund/Land Improvement 7,250.00 

CS23-00278 151,681.58 21-6210 Building Fund/Architect/Engineering Fees 17,020.00 

CS23-00330 23,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 3,000.00 

P22-02000 1,464.08 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 507.08 

P22-02194 437.69 09-4310 Charter School/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2.99-

P23-00444 85.50 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 11.40-

P23-00445 85.50 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 11.40-

P23-00446 85.50 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 11.40-

P23-00661 82.12 12-4320 Child Development/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3.65 

P23-00927 395.08 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 392.61-

P23-01443 1,967.94 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 367.43 

P23-01498 2,427.30 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,774.80-

Total PO Changes 76,681.52 

Information is further limited to: (Minimum Amount = (999,999.99))

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Feb  7 2023  

4:34PM

Page 10 of 10



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# _12.2_ 
 

 
Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023     
 
Subject:  Head Start/Early Head Start Required Reports   
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Academic Office/Early Learning & Care Department 
 
 
Recommendation:  None 
 
Background/Rationale:  The Office of Head Start, under the auspices of the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services/Administration for Children and Families, 
Mandates that all Head Start/Early Head Start governing entities receive specified 
reports related to the operational and fiduciary status of the program. These reports 
must include information and/or a status update in the following areas: budget, credit 
card usage, USDA meals/snacks, enrollment, and program updates or summaries, if 
applicable. Attached are essential monthly reports for Board members’ review. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Engagement; Safe, physically and emotionally 
healthy learning environment 
 
 
Documents Attached:   

1. December 2022 Head Start Fiscal Report 
2. December 2022 Special Education Report 
3. December 2022 Head Start Monthly Enrollment & Attendance Report 

 
 



Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Melissa Sigars, Director 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  


















	Agenda Packet February 16 2023_2.14.22 Update
	7 February 16 2023_Agenda_
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	AGENDA

	8.1 Recognition of National Eating Disorder Awareness Week Res No 3307
	8.1 BR Cover Sheet - Nat Eating Dis Awareness 2023
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	8.11BR - Nat Eating Dis Awareness 2023

	8.2 AO 2-16-23 Agenda Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  February 2, 2023

	8.3 Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update
	8.3 2-16-23 FMP UpdateV3 (002)
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	8.3.1 2-16-23 FMP Update Exec SummaryV5
	I. Overview/History of Department or Program:
	II. Driving Governance:
	III. Budget:
	IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:
	V. Major Initiatives:
	VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:


	9.1 SEIU Sunshine Cover Letter

	SEIU Letter CUSD - Sunshine Notice - Reopener Notice - 2022-23 - Final
	Agenda Packet February 16 2023_2.14.22 Update
	10.1 SCTA Sunhine Proposal
	10.1.1SCTA Sunshine Cover sheet
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	10.1.2_ District Public Hearing Notice SCTA Draft
	10.1.3Sunshine Negotiation Proposal Draft --SCTA Reopener 2022-2023 (SR794387xD9697)

	11.1a Grants Entitlements and Other Income Agreements
	11.1a Grants Entitlements Etc
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1a1 A23-00060 City of Elk Grove with CAJ
	Attachment A Proposal.pdf
	2. Table of Contents
	3. Qualifications and Experience
	Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center
	Budget and Funding Sources
	List of Jurisdictions and Projects Similar To The Proposed Program
	Primary Liaison For This Proposal:
	Key Staff

	Lemon Hill Job Center
	Budget and Funding Sources
	Key Staff

	Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance
	Budget and Funding Sources
	Organizational Information
	List of Jurisdictions and Projects Similar To The Proposed Program
	Key Staff


	Table 1 -Program Roles and Responsibilities
	Table 2 -CAJ and Lemon Hill Job Center Funding Sources
	Table 3 -SVMA Funding Sources
	Table 4 -Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Courses
	Table 5 -Project Expected Timeline

	4. Work Plan
	Manufacturing Training Program for Elk Grove Residents
	Population Served: City of Elk Grove Demographic Profile
	Program Design, Development and Implementation
	Program Marketing to Residents and Businesses
	Marketing to Elk Grove Residents
	Marketing to Businesses

	Intake and Enrollment of Students
	Step 1 -Orientation
	Step 2 -Assessments
	Step 3 -Job Center Coach Conference
	Step 4 -Job Services Pathway Determination
	Step 5 -Register for CAJ Manufacturing Pre-Apprenticeship Program Class

	Enrollment of Businesses Wishing to Accept Program Graduates
	Model of Service Delivery
	Strategies To Ensure Skills Development & Employee Retention
	Skills Development

	Course Instruction
	Postgraduate Job Placement, Tracking, and Payment of Employment Bonuses
	Job Placement
	Employee Retention
	Program Incentives for Elk Grove Residents
	Payment of Employment Bonuses

	Past Performance and Planned Outcomes
	Workforce Development Employment & Training Services Program Experience
	Key Benchmarks And Outcomes

	Strategy For Monitoring, Measuring Performance, And Outcomes.
	WIOA Title I Participants
	Non-WIOA Title I Participants

	Staff Capacity
	SCUSD Non-Discrimination Policy
	Project Expected Timeline


	5. Conflict of Interest Statement
	6. Supportive Information/References
	Resumes and Applicable Credentials of Key Staff
	Exhibit 1: Angela Hatter’s Resume
	Exhibit 2: Todd Frazee’s Resume
	Exhibit 3: Todd Frazee’s Credentials
	Exhibit 4: Eileen Ramos-Prince’s Resume
	Exhibit 5: Dean Peckham’s Resume

	Project References
	Exhibit 6: Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center
	Exhibit 7: Sacramento Valley Manufacturing Alliance

	Detailed Intake Process Outlines
	Exhibit 8: Basic Career Services: Information-only and Self-service activities (WIOA Title I enrollment not required)
	Exhibit 9: Individualized Career services: WIOA Title I Program Enrollment required

	Overview Of The Region’s Manufacturing Sector
	Exhibit 10: North Advanced Manufacturing

	Illustrative Exhibits
	Exhibit 11: Certifications and Certificates Issued by CAJ Programs

	CAJ Manufacturing Training Program Descriptions
	Exhibit 12: Manufacturing Technician Program Description:
	Exhibit 13: Manufacturing Technician Program Structure:
	Exhibit 14: Forklift Operator Course Description:
	Exhibit 15: Material Handling and Logistics Course Description:
	Exhibit 16: Introduction to Manufacturing Course Description:
	Exhibit 17: Electro-Mechanical Assembly Course Description:
	Exhibit 18: Welding Fabrication I Course Description:

	CAJ Refund Policy
	Exhibit 19: CAJ Refund Policy

	CAJ Student Enrollment
	Exhibit 20: Program Student Enrollment Voucher

	Program Business Enrollment
	Exhibit 21: CAJ Employer Verification Form


	7. Budget And Fees
	Table 6 -Aggregate Proposed Program Fees
	Table 7 -Proposed Training Scholarship and Placement Bonuses
	8. Secretary of State
	Elk Grove Workforce Development Training and Certification Programs CAJ Mfg Proposal 2022 -R5.5 Table 8.pdf
	Table 8 -Schedule of Expense Payments ‐ Elk Grove City Grant



	11.1a2 SA23-00043 Kami Kalay Amendment No. 1
	SA23-00043  Kami Kalay Amendment No. 1

	11.1a3 S23-00014 Care Inc.
	S23-00014  Care Amendment No. 1
	S23-00014 Care Inc.
	Executed - S23-00014 CARE


	11.1a4 R23-03241 Bluum USA
	11.1a5 SA23-00188 Margarita Maldonado Amendment No. 1
	SA23-00188 Margarita Maldonado Amendment No. 1
	SA23-00188 Margarita Maldonado Amendment No. 1
	SA23-00118 Margarita Maldonado.pdf
	SA23-00118 Margarita Maldonado.pdf
	SA23-00118 Margarita Maldonado.pdf.pdf
	Maldonado_Contract




	SA23-00118 Margarita Maldonado 020823

	11.1a6 0262-461 Otto Bid Form and Proposal
	0262-461 Otto Bid Form and Proposal
	0262-461 Otto Bid Form and Proposal

	0262-461 CBW-D-M Otto Agreement

	11.1a7 BHarte Plygrnd-DSA Startup Fees

	11.1b Approve Business and Financial Report
	11.1b Warrants  Checks Cover 02.16.23
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1b1 2023.01 JAN2023 All Payments

	11.1c Donations to the District Jan 1-31 2023
	11.1c Donations Report Cover Sheet Febuary 16 2023
	Meeting Date:   February 16, 2023

	11.1c1 AR06a Receipt Detail January 2023
	Receipt Detail
	Main Body
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	BA23-0001653
	BA23-0001680



	2
	2023
	01
	




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	BW23-0000651
	BW23-0000654



	2
	2023
	01
	

	09
	






	Recap
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	C




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	C









	11.1d Update of Board Policy Titles and Numbers
	11.1d CS Update of Board Policy Draft
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1d1 Copy of Sacramento City USD WIP_REV_2-7-23
	Policies to Rename


	11.1e VAPA Policy
	11.1e1 VAPA Policy Agenda Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1e2 2 VAPA Board Policy Executive Summary18
	11.1e3 VAPA Board Policy Clean Copy
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:

	11.1e4 VAPA BP Track Changes 2.0
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:


	11.1f Approve Feb 2 2023 Minutes
	11.1f Minutes Bd Mtg feb 2 2023
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1f1 Approve Feb 2 2023 Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	11.1g_Approve McClatchy Spain Portugal Trip
	11.1g Agenda Title, McClatchy Spain_Portugal Trip
	11.1g1 McClatchy Spain_ Portugal Field Trip Docs

	11.1h_Approve McClatchy NYC Trip
	11.1h Agenda Title McClatchy NYC Trip
	11.1h1 McClatchy NYC Field Trip Docs

	11.1i_Approve JFK Washington CD Trip
	11.1i Agenda Title JFK Washington DC Trip
	11.1i1JKF Field Trip Docs

	11.1j Approve Aug 11 2022 Minutes
	11.1j Minutes Bd Mtg August 11, 2022
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1j1 Approve August 11 2022 Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	11.1k Approve Sept 8 2022 Minutes
	11.1k Minutes Bd Mtg September 8, 2022
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1k1 Sept 8, 2022 Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	11.1l Approve Sept 15 2022 Minutes
	11.1l Minutes  Bd Mtg Sept 15, 2022
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1l Sept 15 2022 Minutes Template
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	11.1m Approve Oct 6 2022 Minutes
	11.1m  Minutes Bd Mtg Oct 6, 2022
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1m Approve Oct 6th 2022 Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	11.1n Approve Personnel Transactions
	11.1n 2-16-2023 Cover page Personnel Transactions_
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	11.1n1 2-16-2023 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	11.1n2 2-16-2023 Classified Board Agenda (003)
	Sheet1


	12.1 Business and Financial Information
	12.1 Business and Financial Cover_02.16.23
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	12.11 PO Report 12.15.22-01.14.23_Redacted
	Board Report with Fund
	97
	1
	B23-00789
	B23-00790
	B23-00791
	B23-00792
	B23-00793
	B23-00794
	B23-00795
	B23-00796
	B23-00797
	B23-00798
	B23-00799
	B23-00800
	B23-00801
	B23-00802
	B23-00803
	B23-00804
	B23-00805
	B23-00806
	B23-00807
	B23-00808
	B23-00809
	CHB23-00370
	CHB23-00371
	CHB23-00372
	CHB23-00373
	CHB23-00374
	CHB23-00375
	CHB23-00376
	CS23-00357
	CS23-00358
	CS23-00359
	CS23-00360
	CS23-00361
	CS23-00363
	CS23-00364
	CS23-00365
	CS23-00366
	CS23-00367
	CS23-00368
	CS23-00369
	CS23-00370
	CS23-00371
	CS23-00372
	CS23-00373
	CS23-00374
	CS23-00375
	CS23-00376
	CS23-00377
	CS23-00378
	CS23-00379
	CS23-00380
	CS23-00381
	CS23-00382
	CS23-00410
	P23-01499
	P23-01551
	P23-01552
	P23-01553
	P23-01554
	P23-01555
	P23-01556
	P23-01557
	P23-01558
	P23-01559
	P23-01560
	P23-01561
	P23-01562
	P23-01563
	P23-01564
	P23-01565
	P23-01566
	P23-01567
	P23-01568
	P23-01569
	P23-01570
	P23-01571
	P23-01572
	P23-01573
	P23-01574
	P23-01575
	P23-01576
	P23-01577
	P23-01578
	P23-01579
	P23-01580
	P23-01581
	P23-01582
	P23-01583
	P23-01584
	P23-01585
	P23-01586
	P23-01587
	P23-01588
	P23-01589
	P23-01590
	P23-01591
	P23-01592
	P23-01593
	P23-01594
	P23-01595
	P23-01596
	P23-01597
	P23-01598
	P23-01599
	P23-01600
	P23-01601
	P23-01602
	P23-01603
	P23-01604
	P23-01605
	P23-01606
	P23-01607
	P23-01608
	P23-01609
	P23-01610
	P23-01611
	P23-01612
	P23-01613
	P23-01614
	P23-01615
	P23-01617
	P23-01618
	P23-01619
	P23-01620
	P23-01621
	P23-01622
	P23-01623
	P23-01624
	P23-01625
	P23-01626
	P23-01627
	P23-01628
	P23-01629
	P23-01630
	P23-01631
	P23-01632
	P23-01633
	P23-01634
	P23-01635
	P23-01636
	P23-01637
	P23-01638
	P23-01639
	P23-01640
	P23-01641
	P23-01642
	P23-01643
	P23-01644
	P23-01645
	P23-01646
	P23-01647
	P23-01648
	P23-01649
	P23-01650
	P23-01651
	P23-01652
	P23-01653
	P23-01654
	P23-01655
	P23-01656
	P23-01657
	P23-01658
	P23-01659
	P23-01661
	P23-01662
	P23-01664
	P23-01665
	P23-01666
	P23-01667
	P23-01668
	P23-01669
	P23-01670
	P23-01671
	P23-01672
	P23-01673
	P23-01674
	P23-01675
	P23-01676
	P23-01678
	P23-01679
	P23-01680
	P23-01681

	2
	2023

	3
	B23-00308
	B23-00315
	B23-00318
	B23-00348
	B23-00357
	B23-00392
	B23-00423
	B23-00432
	B23-00434
	B23-00442
	B23-00444
	B23-00501
	B23-00506
	B23-00529
	B23-00629
	B23-00707
	CHB23-00002
	CHB23-00024
	CHB23-00217
	CHB23-00300
	CS23-00139
	CS23-00199
	CS23-00200
	CS23-00278
	CS23-00330
	P22-02000
	P22-02194
	P23-00444
	P23-00445
	P23-00446
	P23-00661
	P23-00927
	P23-01443
	P23-01498





	12.2 Head Start Early Head Start Reports
	12.2 2nd Board Agenda CFA 1-19-23
	Meeting Date:  February 16, 2023

	12.2.1Head start docs





